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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property Investment Trust plc is to maximise shareholders’
total returns by nvesting in the shares and securities of property companies and property
related businesses internationally and aiso 1n investment property located in the UK.

Atroducton

TR Property investment Trust plc (the "Company™) was formad in 1905 and has been a dedicated property investor
since 1982, The Company is an Investment Trust and its shares are premium listed on the London Stock Exchange

The Company seeks to achieve its objective by investing in shares and secunties of property companies and
property related businesses an an intermnational basis, although, with a Pan-European benchmark, the majonty of
the investrments will be located in that geographical area The Company also invests in jnvestment property locatad

in the UK only.

Further detals of the Investment Policies, the Asset Allocation Guidelines and policies regarding the use of gearnng are
set out In the Strategic Report on pages 24 to 235 and the entire portfolio 1s shown on page 16.

Invastmeant Manages
BMO Investment Business Limited acts as the Company's alternative investment fund manager ("AIFM”) with
portfolic management delegated to Thames River Capital LLP (“the Portfolioc Manager” or “the Manager”)

Marcus Phayre-Mudge has managed the portfolio since 1 Apnl 2011 and been part of the Fund Management

team since 1997

The directors are all independent of the Manager and meet regularly to consider investment strategy, to monitor
adherence to the stated objective and investmeant policies and to review performance Details of how the Board
operates and fulfils its responsibilities are set out in the Report of the Directars on page 41

2riormania

The Financial Highlights for the current year are set out opposite and Histonical Perfermance can be found on
page 2 Key Performance Indicators are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 26 and 27

The Company currently conducts its affars so that its shares can be recommended by Independent finanaal
Adwvisers (“IFAs"} in the UK to ordinary retail investors in accordance with the Finanaial Conduct Authorty ("FCA™)
rules in relation to non-mainstream mvestment products and intends to continue to do so. The shares are excluded
from the FCA's restrictions, which apply to non-mainstream investrment products, because they are shares in an

authonsed investment trust.

Ceneral shareholder information and detaiis of how to invest in TR Property Investment Trust ple, including an
investment through an 1SA or saving scheme, can be found on pages 89 to 102 This informabon can also be
found on the Trust's website wanw frrapars, 2o




Financial Highlignts and Performance

Year ended Yadr 2 ded
31 March 30 Maro ’n
2019 23 (harge
Balance Sheaet
Net asset value per share 418.54p 395 640 +5.8%
Shareholders’ funds (£'000) 1,328,254 1,255,559 +5 8%
Shares in i1ssue at the end of the year (m) 3174 3174 +0.0%
Net debt'* 10.0% 14 690
Share Prica
Share price 394.00p 382 500 +3 0%
Market capitalisation £1,250m £1,214m +3 0%
- C Yearended s ee:
31 March o or
2079 3 Charge
Revenue
Revenue earnings oer shars 14.58p 15220 +10 3%
Dividends®
Interm dividend per share 4.90p 455> +5 4%¢
Final dwvidend per share 8.60p /530 +13 9%
Total dvidend per share 13.50p 1220 +10 7%
Performance: Assets and Banchmark
Net Asset Value total return - +9.1% +15 5%
Benchmark total return +5.6% +10 23
Share price total retum*” +6.2% +25 5%
Ongoing Charges Ratio °
Including performance fee +1.10% +1 433
Excluding performance fee +0.63% +0 55%
Excluding performance fee and diract property costs +0.61% +0 861

Nat debt 1s the total vat.e ot 0ar ~otas, loars (nduding noticnal axposure to CFDs) ‘ess cast as a propertor ot net assat value
Cwcends per share arz e 2nvcends o resoect of the finanaal year endad 31 March 2013 Ao intenm 2nedend ot 2 300 was oad n
lanuary 2012 A finai dvidend 3f 3300 (2013 753p) will pe paid on 30 July 2013 1o srarabolders o the ragstar on 21 lune 2019
The shares will e quotad =x daderd on 20 june 2013

The NAV Total Retur~ for ire vaar s caiculated by rainvastng the dividends in tha assets of the Corrpany frar the r2ievant 2x dividand
daw2 Dvidands are deamad o o2 rarvasiad on the ex-dividend datz as this s the protocol used by the Compary's berchrmiark and
other indizas

Tha Snare Pree Total Retur s cacdlatze oy r2investing the diadends in the sharas of the Cormpany fram e rafova~t ax-divcend
ddte

Ongoing Charges are calc.lated 'n accorzarce with the AC rethodology The Orgoing Charges ratios dravded m e Company's Koy
Informration Jocument arz Zalcclatos niline with the PRIPs ragutaion which is differant to the AL mrethodology

Zonscersd 1o be an Aermative Te<forrance Measare as defined on page 89



Historical Performance

I A~ -

Performance for the year:
Total Return (%)

NAV(A -405 526 154 -85 215 224 283 82 80 155 9.1
Benchmark® -486 606 152 -89 178 149 233 5.4 65 102 5.6
Share Price© -412 60 3 126 -95 258 377 295 -16 91 255 6.2

Shareholders’ funds

(€m)

Total 400 598 §/0 588 684 809 1,010 1,065 1,118 1,256 1,328
Crdwnary shares 324 476 531 470 584 809 1,010 1,065 1,118 1,256 1,328
Sigma shares®™ 76 122 139 118 - - - - - - -

Ordinary shares
Net revenue

{pence per share)
Earnings 649 518 634 707 674 809 889 8 36 1138 1522 ¥4 58
Dividendst® 375 575 600 660 700 745 770 835 1050 1220 15.50

NAV per share

{pence) 126 10 18520 20/10 18360 21525 25494 31812 33556 35242 39564 41854
Share price

(pence) 10600 15840 17710 15450 18630 24750 31050 29750 31450 348250 39300
Indices of growth

Share pnce'”? 100 150 167 146 176 233 293 281 297 361 m
Net Asset Value©) 100 147 164 146 171 202 252 266 280 314 332
Dwidend Net® 100 100 104 15 122 130 134 145 183 212 235
RPI 100 104 110 114 118 121 122 124 127 132 135
Benchmark (M 100 153 165 147 167 178 213 218 227 243 249

Aiguras bave Jeen prandied oo ddr wnth FR5

(AY Tha NAY Total Retum for each vear » 2alcuiamed 3y 2irvest. g e dnaderds noie assets of the Lomoany fom the ievart 2vdnidend Zate Tnider oo 12 Jewmed
0 b reirvestad ot the eeoniderd date 15 s s e 27ioo o ased oy e Compary s bencrmand Ard e edicas T s corsdered o te i itseratee
Pertaimarce Medsure 3s detired on dage 83

(3) 3ercnmiarcirdes Jampasite NEEX Lo sirg e TTse 2R, NARZT Developed Zurope TR rdex Lo o March 2013, ar d therearte the FTHE S92 NARET
Deveivped Soiope Capped index soure Thames Juar Zapey

(LY Tre snare Prez Total Return s calculat= oy esrvesin g P dnvicizeds o the sidres ot she Campary from e -mevant ax-dders date
(D) The Sigra srare Jdss was id-rched n 2007 rd sigima seares sere 2desgnated 45 Jrdirary sra es ar 1) December 2042

(E) Dwiderds per share e the year 12 abick then decgranor =atas ard pot the vear they were paid

(7 Seare anices ory Trese do aof rerlect dyvicerds ddis

[GY Capital valy varges These qi rat etk dnviderds a4

L) Price only valde of e indices »et ol e (3) sbove
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Chairman's Statement

Hugh Seaborn
Chairman

ey e Sy
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it has been a good solid year for the Trust Even more 50
given the heightened volatility amudst macre-economic
and politcal uncertainty The Net Asset Value (NAVY total
cturn for the year of 9 1% was well ahead of the
benchmark at 5 6% and results in a five year annualised
return of 13 620 The share price total return of 6 294
exceeded the benchmark but was less than the NAV
growth due 1o a shight widening in the discount between
the share price and the asset value In addition, the Trust
delivered revenue growth of 10 3% and has now
increasad 80 2% over the past five years equating to
+12 5% per annum

The year under review fell broadly inte three phases
Share prices rose steadily through the early part of the
year and into the summer manths  This was followed by
a dramatic change in mood as equity markets across tne
globe sold off sharply for the remainder of 2018 on
concerns from the US/China trade war escaiation through
to more localised geo-political i1ssues. However, the
beginning of 2013 has seen a resurgence in stock markats
as central banks from the Fed to the ECB have offered
dovish commentary away from further monetary
tightening Real estate has been a significant beneficiary
and the Trust's asset value has more than recovered from
the fall expernenced in the last quarter of 2018

The steady growth in underlying earnings has supported
returns whilst our Manager has sought to navigate the
weakness of UK property equities when compared with
their Continental European counterparts. The other striking

feature has been the continued divergence of
performance between asset types with retail property the
clear underperformer contrasting with demand for logistics
assets from occupiers and investors, which remains
unabated

A consequence of the deferral of interest rate rises,
courtesy of the central banks, has been a renewed focus
on ionger term income streams and in particular those
wich benefit from indexation. This theme, which

i raferred to last year, has contributed to strong
nerformance from property with these charactersiics
nauding healthcare and student accommaodation througr
to residential Prvate Rented Sector (PRS) and

supermarkets

The value of our physical property portfolio, which
rapresants less than 10590 of the assets, also reflectad the
demand for long income as aur largest asset, The
Colonnades in Bayswater, was subject to an increase in
value ied by the index-inked, long leased income from
our largest tenant, Waitrose
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e revenue increase of 10 3% has been driven by
realthy growth in the underlying dividends from our
investments, more datails are given n the Manager's
=zport. The Board 1s delighted to announce a similar
ncraase in the level of the full year dvidend and s
recommending a final dvidend of 8 60p per shara
bringing the full year dividend to 13 50p

a2 a2 D oo
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The early part of the current financial year is producng
cons.stent earnings which suggest modest growth for the
year ahead

Of course, the usuai caveats apply and include earnings
being affectad by a change in the tming of dvidends
acaved around our year end and corporate activity As we
have expenenced in the past, a major vanable s foreign
axchange rates as just over nalf our income s non-Sterling
denominated This can have a significant impact on
earnings for the year




Chairman’s Statement

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return over 10 years (rebased)

600

500

400

300

200

100
Mar-09 Mar-10 Mar-11 Mar-12 Mar-13

W Benchmark Total Return

R

Not debt has been reduced from 14 63, as reported at
tna pravious year end, to 10 0% These figures include the
arpact of CFD exposure This reduction In gearing was
primariy due to listed companies being takan private at
signidicant pramiums, however, gearing nas been
mantaned at this level since the year end in view of the
pravaiting paitical uncertainty All our revoling loan
facilites nave been renewed so that furtner finance 1s
avanabig if and wnen an Increase in geanng levels s

corsdered by the Manager to be beneficial

(]

A )

Currancies were lass volatie over this financial year than
cunng the pravious two years Sterling ended the year
marginaly stronger than at the beginning However, over

tre year st fluctuated through a 79 range

Our baiance sheet curency exposure remans hedged in
1ne Alth the benchmark, however the income account 1s
un-hedged, therefore strengtnening of Sterling wili have an

adverse effect on our income

Tz o2 Dial a0l v N

Il TR Property Share Price Total Return

Mar-14 Mar-15 Mar-16 Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19

TR Property Net Asset Vaiue Total Return

The dhscount™ widened shightly dunng the year from 3 2%
to 5 3% 2t the year end This range remains well within
the 10 vear averaga of 7 170

No snarss were repurchased during the year

R o
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Suzie Proctar ratrad from the Board in February 2019 and
wouid ke to record the Board's thanks for her

cortr bunon over the last six years An experienced
racruitment consultant spediaiising in non-executive
dirzctars s actvely seeking another high calibre director to
join the 3oard

In Novemper. | concluded that whilst the £C3 had
sigraiied (5 Intention to r2sume a more normalisad
ntarast rate cycle, this could well be deferred if economic
growth dampened We now find ourselves in that state of
affarrs with globar trade tensions and att2ntion on
Garmany, the turopean powerhouse, which is focused on
exports and nerce giobal growth Racent econemic news
nas bean weaker than anticpated and this has
encouraged the ECB to remain dovish towards the timing
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Chairman’s Statement

of the next interest rate increase Market expectations for
interest rate nses have therefore moved out to 2020 and
possibly beyond, the longer end of the interest curve also
remains very subdued For our companies the ability to fix
longer term debt at record fow levels remains highly
attractive and helps the predictability of companies’
earnings

in an environment where investors are seeking income,
property benefits from the charactenstic of offering
refatively high income returns, often growing with inflat.on
CQur Manager continues to focus on real estate businesses
i areas and sectors which offer the likelihcod of rental
growth Tne divergence in performance between
comepanies with those attnbutes and the remainder has
widened to record levels. This does create the nsk of the
most popular names becoming averbought and the [east
popular are at nsk of being oversold Cur Manager
remains vigilant, keeping a very close eye on earmings -
the bedrock of this asset class

Our confidence in the stability of earmings and the relative
atractiveness of the asset class versus other rnsk assets
offers little succour in the event of broader markat
weakness. The impact on the UK, and to a Jesser extant
Continental Europe, inflicted by unprecedented levels of
poiitical uncertainty may well only become apparent in
years to come What we do know, at the time of wnting,
Is that we remain in a pericd of great political uncertainty
and | take the opportunity to remind sharaholders of the
broad pan European spread of our assets

Hugh Seaborn
Chairman
6 June 2018




Vianager's Report

Marcus Phayre-Mudge MRICS
Fund Manager
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The Net Asset Value totai return far the year of 9 152 was
anead of the 5 620 benchmark totar teturn The snare price
total return exceeded the benchmark at 6 270 but was less
than the growth in the NAY due to a siight wdeming in the
discount between the share price and the 3sset vaie

Again | report that our Contirental European graperty
companies outperformed their UK counterparts Tre
Continental European companent of the beacnmars, wnen
measurad in EUR returmed 10 530 whiist the Uk names,
meaasured in GBP, collectively managed a paitry G320
Whilst this regional dispanty was broad the generar direction
of travel through the year was similar with both ragrons
intially enjoying positve returns 0 Q2 2013 foicwed by

a corrective phase for the second naif of 2018 Real estate
equities then participated with gusto i the Q1 2019 aquity
rally fueled by dovish commentary from the “ederdl
Reserve and the ECB

While the macro concerns of heightened rsk frem 3 global
slowdown and tar ff wars weighed neavily on 2quity
markets these concerns also deprassed bond marcets Real
estate therefore continued to be appreciatad for t5 core
charactenstics of relatively high income oftan growang in line
with inflation However, property s a pro-oyciican assot class
and where the prospects far economic growth ook mutad
or hard to predict the sector enjays less suppert. Quite
simply when presented with the opportunity of choosing
axposura to the UK or Centinental Eurcpe, the Bravit factor
weighed heavily on sentiment regardless of skert term
performance indicators

The second overarching theme of the perod 'was the
ongoing undemerformance af retail propert, 102 weaknass
of tre underlying asset class was magnified by the almost
universai poor balance sheet managerment frem histed
companies Essontiaily, the vast majority of therr nave for

some time been overly optimistic about the prospects far
thewr assets. This is indefensible gwven that this sector’s woes
are nothing new There has been cne exception which has
enjoyad both positive retumns and even raised further capital
which | will elaborate on later in the report.

Running paraliel to the depressing saga for retal property
has been the positve momentum benind logistics property
required to sustain the secular shift in consumer benaviour
i report significant outperformanca of alt our companies
exposad to this market and our overweighit position in ths
area, across all geographies, was a kay driver of
performance

Eisewnere our performance was driven by overseigrt
positons 11 German residential, Swedish offices, Sparisn
rotels and Parisian offices The underwverght to snepping
centres across Continental Eurcpe aided refatve
performance but even our imited exposura in the U sull
hamperad rcturns The rationale betund our expasura s
coverad fater Alternatives in the UK including seff-storags,
student accommodation and heaithcare continled to add
value in the perod Safestore (our iargest seif storage
exposure) was the top performing U« name rcturning

24 8%, Unite (our student exposure) returmed 19 174 and
Target Healthcars 18%

Our large undenweights to Switzerland and Batgum werz
detractors to performance as these companies, ail
produced, to varying degrees positive, if modest,
performance

The Trust's UK overyeight requires expianaton i surmimary,
| have been increasing exposure to index-linked, iong-dated
and secure income streams Although all our Cort.nental
European companies have indexdinked income, the
average leasa length s much shorter than the growing st
of UK companies with these long-dated income streams
We thersfore have significant exposure to heaithcarz,
budget hotels, leisure and suparmarkats We rerran under
exposed In terms of equities to Central London affice, retatl
and particularly residential prefering our awn assars at
Wandsworth and Bayswater

1o conclude on performance, | am pieased to report tre
sale of our holding in Terreis Jacqui Lorenzett, 3 senal
property entrepreneur and 50%: snarenclder, begar
assembing an unrvalled portfolio of hugn quality Central
Pars offica buildings in 2010 having soid his previous real
estate businass with impeccabie tming in 2067 ir rebraary
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Manager's Report

this year, he announced an agreement to sell 80%e of the
portfolio (€ 1.6bm) to Swiss Life and take the remainder of
the business private, thus buying out ail minority
shareholders The price (€ 58 per share) was a 40%
premium to the undisturbed share price and a 770
premium to the net asset value. The holding equatad to

2 3% of the Trust's assets and nearly 5% of Terreis. Our
imitial investments made in 2011 (€ 12-13 per sharc) were
augmented over the intervering peniod, particularly when
small caps were out of favour even whilst fundamentais
were sound This holding has been a poster child for cur
strategy of backing strong management who are aligned
through thetr co-ownership and focused on a particular
submarkat However, the gestation period for these tynes of
positions 15 always unknown The portfolio has a number of
such holdings where the market continues to gnore treir
fundamental qualtties, often citing size and iquidity as

a concern | therefore remain confident of being abie to
quietly add to these names whilst they remain
unappreciated.

Ofces

The performance of London offices continued to confound
the "Brexit bears' with Knight Frank reporting take up of

14 8m sq ft in 2018, the highest since 2014 The numbers
were dominated by larger deals witn 19 transactions over
100,000 sq ft, a record, against the long term average

of 12 in defence of those (including curselves) who felt
that tradonal City tenants might defer property decisions,
the financial services sector’s share of take up did indeed
slip to just 19% The surprise has been the robustress of
the TMT sector as well as impressive growth in
pharmaceuticals and life sciences In the Intenm Report,

I highlighted the growth in the fiexible office sector, this
accounted for 16% of all take up last year and nowv forms
over 5% of all London office stock. Quality of
accommadation and flexibility of tenure are the watch
words and businesses are prepared to pay for it itis difficult
to assess genuine net take up when so much of the
headline leasing 1s to flex operators who 1n turm then need
to find real tenants to occupy the space Demand
expectations have always been very tricky to predict Supply
— at least the 2/3 year horizon ~ 15 easier to foracast and
there we take great comfort in the decreasing suppiy profile
together with how much of this pipeline space 1s pre-let Of
the current 11m sq ft under construction, 43% 15 already
pre-let The consequence of this ambient market backdrop

I5 that rents have remained stable over the period,
particularly for high guality bulldings This in turn has
continued to attract pverseas investment buyers, who
appear far less fazed by our potential departure from our
most significant trading partner Transaction volumes remain
elevated (£16 3bnin 2018) 1530 ahead of longterm
average. Overseas investors account for 83% of turnover
dominated, again, by Asian investors

Panis expenenced an overall slowdown in take up in 2018
versus 2017 and this was particularly the case in the mora
suburban markets (defined as the inner and Outer Rim)
Meanwhile La Defense and the CBD markets enjoyed year
on year growth and nsing rents with a noticeable decrease
I tenant incentives. investor demand remained robust with
turnover reaching a new high of €2 4bn according to
ImmoStat as buyers remain drawn to the aty wide vacancy
level dropping below 6%, a 10 year low Yet the range of
vacancy levels remains broader in Pans than in ather major
cites The CBD recorded sub 3% whilst decentralised
locations such as Pen Defense and the Northern Inner Rim
and Rwer Bend are still +10%

Dublin continues to benefit from both Brexit concerns and '
the near continuous growth from TMT occupers attracted

by the low corporate tax rate and well educated, youtnful

population Take up reached arecord 1 1m sq ftin

Q1 2019 and whilst supply has expanded back close to ail

tme highs of 4m sq f1, our crucial pre-let measure remains

hugh at 49% This remains a small city enjoying boom times

again and our ownership of 3% of Green REIT, the largest

listed insh REIT, reflects our positive views

The seven largest office markets in Germany saw a
slowdown in take up 1IN 2018 (4 0m sq M) when
compared to 2017 (4 3m sq m) However, both of thesa
years were significantly ahead of anything expenenced n
the previous ten years Lack of supply response combired
with the healthy take up resulted in vacancy rates dropping
even further and reaching sub 2% 1n 3erkin and sub 3% 1n
Cologne and Murich

As with the rest of European office markets such conditians
continue to underpin investor appetite with turnover for
office assets reaching €2 9bn and prime yields tightening
further

Madrd and Barcelona mirrored other markels having
shrugged off the political disruption from Catalonian
separatists Much like Germany, tzke up was lower than
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2017 but higher thai i any other year post the GFC. The
vacancy profile 1s similar ta Pans, with the CBD sub markets
enjoying strang raductions in vacancy whilst more
penpheral markats are still trying to get the percentage of
vacancy into single digits with the overhang of bullt space
from the boom times still to be absorbed

R=ta”

The rravails of the retad sector unfortunately remains work
In progress It feais ke 3 drama box set where a new
season brings new vikains and more tragedy What has
become increasingly apparent 15 that the consequences for
retail property of the secuiar shift in consumer behaviour
(to omn: channel retanng) Nas been underastimated by all
market particpants T-e compounding element in this saga
has bean the umiguely 3rtsh upward oniy rent review
structura whicn was nistarcally combined with much longer
leases than in Cortirenta curope With iess turnover
through physicai stares, rataners have focused on
ranonalsing therr estatzs The supply of available shops, as
retalers seek to wunicad unprofitabla units let on long leases
at historic migh rents, nas reached unprecedented levels
The conseguence has been both a dramatic fall in market
rent leveis and a coilectve nability of retaiers to nd
tnemsalves of these labiltes This nas led to an expiosion
in CVAs as a way of getting rid of unwanted labilites and
resetting to market rents Failura to secure agreement with
craditors for such veluntary administrations often leaves
companies with hitie altermative but to proceed to winding
up Rccent nigh profile cases include Debenhams, whilst
Arcadia are rumetrad o be in discussion with creditors on
a VA Noene of s will be news ta the Trust's sharshalders
as | have been comimerting on this issue for many years
now The most recant manifestation of the probiem has
been the collapse » Uk sropping cantre investment
turnover witn just £1 150 recorded for 2018, the lowest
level since the nadir of the GFCin 2008 indeed three large
deals (Leicester, Turbrdge Weils and Clapham Junction)
accounted for 1/3 of the volume with the remaining deal
size averaging JuLst £21m Quite simpiy, with the exception
of the (foohhardy few investors fael the uncertainty around
tenart affordabiiity ard ~ence the secunty of cashflows s
too great to justfy Increasing exposura

The environment s a attle ditferent across Conunental
turope Online saies grawth s siower and coming off a
lower base in ail courtres when compared to the UK We
are not comrplacars, the tain attractiors of the anline

experience — price and convenence — will dnve customer
behaviour The dfference in Continental Europe 15 simply
the current cost of physicai retai space when compared to
the UK. Leases are shorter and rants are index finked There
15 a much smaller gap (f any in some cases) between
market rents and passing rents We fully anticipate there will
be store ratonakisation as onune 53les grow in importance
but the empincal evidence so far nas been that retailers are
managing the process mors succassfuily than in the UK.
Having said that, investors do remain cauticus and we
expect yield expanson (va.des to fail) in the coming
quarters Although the furopezn snopping centre landlords
performed relatively better than thewr UK counterparts, this
investor caution was reflected .o negative share price
performance over the year

In my cpening statement . zommentad on the one retall
sub-sector in the Us whicn nas seen yeld stabiity and price
resilience and that 15 suparmarkess Online grocery sales are
less than 620 of ali food sales and the rate of growth has
been much slower than for nard goods Ve are increasingty
confident that a physical stor2 notwverk 15 3 crucal part of
the grocery online provision However not all stores will be
part of that omni-chanrel approacn Identifying these
winners ard losers s cruciar ard we have focused our
awvestment througn a specaist venicle, Supermarkst
Income RET Unlike shopping cantres there has been a raft
of supermarkeat transactions whch gves us comfort on the
vaiuatior of our exposurz

DS LT BT T LT

Structural dnvers for this assat cass continue to offset any
concerns around the irpact of a siowing UK economy
Even the 270 fail In year cn-year manufactunng output
growth 1n 2018 faiied to dent demmand Industnal take up of
units over 50,000 sq ft reacred 378m sq ft, 399% ahead of
2017 drven by anlire rataiing n fact the retail

sector — either dirsct or tirougn 3PL (third party logistics)
accountad for 5890 of all *big shed' (+100,000 sq ft) take
up versus 53%.n 2017 Pame rents across all unit sizes
experiencad growth The hignest (+ 109 year on year
growth) was in the smaller, ursan Lrits whilst the biggest
boxes saw much more modest growth

Logistics ramains the sector 'du jour’ recording record yields
and investment volumes Slose to the all tme highs set in
2017 The £8 3bn of transacticrs racorded was 53% ahead
of the 10 year average Supniv contnues to fall as new
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construction starts have not kept pace with the levels of
take up However, we are seeing signs of broader ragional
dispanty with the automotive heartland of the vwest
Midlands experiencing the deferral of decision making by
potential tenants Meanwhile In the Thames Vailay/Western
Corridor take up 1in 2018 (5 6m sq ft) matched the strong
2017 figure Both years were over 20%0 higher than the

15 year average of 4 6m sq ft.

Rental growth remains more subdued across Continental
eurape but that is reflected i1 higher yrelds Pars saw
logistics take up well ahead of the 10 year average but
lower leveis than both 2016 and 2017, The rate of growth
and level of online penetration remains well beiow UK
levels and househoid consumption also sipoed partiaily
impacted by the 'gilet jaune’ protests However supply
shortages, particularly in the key metropoitan ar2as
underpins valuation and investor sentiment Y.2ids
continued to compress across all sizes of units

2as5idental

CGerman residential praperty, 1n the form of PRS (private
rented sector) rather than housebuiiding remains the Trust's
largest single subsector Two factors underpin cur
confidence, affordabilty of rents which are rising in excess
of inflation but remain sub-market and tne glaciai pace of
supply expansion Germany enjoys neaarly fuil empioyment,
even with the ongoing economic slowdown and wage
inflation 1s 4% The companies we nvest in 2njoy
occupancy levels above 983 Demand contnucs to
outstrp supply aided by net migration wrich nas stabilised
but 15 stll elevated compared with pravious decades
Construction [evels are picking up and the 280,000 units
completed In 2018 15 & huge increase on the 150,000 low
point of 2009 However, the minimum raguirad given
imrigration, household formation and replacement is aver
350,000 units per annum Rents remain heavily regulated
and construction cost inflation has dampenad profit
margins for contractors so we don't expact any dramatic
acceleration m supply

Much of what | have stated has been our investment
rationale for a while This year's reduction in exposure

has been drven by our concerns over tenant actnism
where rents have grown very quickly, prncipaity In Berlin
We responded early selling out of our hoiding in

ADO Properties and reducing exposure to e largest Berlin
fandiord, Deutsche Wohnen We have maintaired our

holding in Prhoenix Spree who are not deemed a significant
landlord. We don't expect the authorities to even consder
the outlandish demands for property expropnation but
pressure to dampen the rate of (state contralled) rent nses
would be much more feasible and is indeed likely

In Sweden we remain drawn to the private rented sactor,
although exposure 1s harder to find with only a coupie of
small cap nvestable opportunities The market dynamics
remain similar to Germany with a large amount of poor
quality housing stock built in the 13705 0 need of
refurbishment coupled with regulated rents Populaton
migration towards the larger cities continues o drve
demand and rental growth

PRS in the UK remains embryonic comparad t¢ Germany
but it has attracted a huge amount of capital amengst iorg
term funders who see annuity style incoma streams Qur
experience through PRS REIT is that vacancy and
delnguency levels are much lower than expected Tenants
will absorb rent increases, even consistently ahead of
inflation, if the quality of the product 15 high We reman
cautious on London values and rents Our only exposurs 15
through Teifcrd Hemes, a business which has evoived from
being a higher nsk 'build to sell’ develcper to being a lower
nsk development partner for insttutional Investors creatng
‘build to rent’ portfolios The commensurate drop in futurs
returns led to share price weakness but we remain
comfortable with the business model

UK house prices continue to wane and the proverbial ripple
effect from London and the Scuth East is visibia once agan
We see few positwe price dnvers and have minimised wnat
little exposure we had to regional residenuai iandbarxs,
primarily via St Modwen.

A, S20 At a3
AL DL T

| introduced this additional sector classification in the
Intanm report There are now several mportant asset
classes beyond the traditional areas of office, retall,
industrial/logistics and residential The largest thrae are
student accommodation, seif storage and healthcars

Student accommeodation remains a core hoiding through
Urite Group which returned 1990 1n the period The sector
has matured since Unite’s first purpose built student
building 28 years ago and the estimated sector vaiue in the
UK alone is now ¢.£50bn Given the well flagged 330 fall in
the nurber of UK 18-20 year olds this yaar ('the Millenium
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dip), the drop of just —0 1% in university acceptances 15
encouraging Overseas student numbers from non-EU
applicants are up strongly (+6.5%) but it was also
encouraging to see EU numbers nse by 2 8% given the
Jrexit uncertainty Looking forward the rapid reversal of the
demographic dip from 2021 and the steady growth in
unwersity participation rates {35% 1 2015 to 38% in
2018) remain key positive taiwinds Unite s constantly
improving its portfolio (focusing on 22 key markets)
through its development pipeline alongside an exit strategy
from subscaie locations

Seit storage, often viewed as the most economically
ensitive subsector had a stunning year with Big Yeilow
~13:n) and Safestore, our larger ovenwe ght, returring
485 These two businesses dominate search engine
nguines and e pened saw both aczupancy and rate
growtn The sactor continues to be ripe for conschdation
with @ nuge number of 'mom and pop’ operations (ess
tran 10 stores) and both these businesses have made
accretwe corporate acquisitions In Continental Europe we
saw tnhe PO of Shurgard, the largest pan European operatar
Wiose business pian Is predicated on sector consolidaton
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Healthcare covers a bread range of use types from primary
(Cr surgeres and hospitals) o elderly Iving {assisted,
nursing and acute} The commonality is the quality and
duraticn of ncome charactensed by a high level of implicit
cr axpiait state funding and almost always structured wita
ndexation These characteristics have proved very popuiar
witn investors and these stecks reman firmly 1n demand
Agan, we have seen consaiidation in this sector with the
merger of PHP and Mediox. Our nursing home exposure s
thtougn Target Healthcare which focuses on the fighest
qualty accommedation with commensurate fugher levels of
private funding

Tne final area is socal housing whichn we class 3s an
aiternative rather than part of the residenual exposure given
that these companics are agan valued as income straarms.
We nave not invested i this area due to concarns over the
quigiity of operator and therr exceptionaily low margin
businesses Botn Cvitas and Iriple Point nave delwered
negative returns since their respactve 1°0s
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A sightly quieter penod for rzal estate equity capial markets
with Just four IPOs and all of them fecused on Continental
—uropedn mar<ets In the first hait there were two medest

sized offers, Eurobox and Kojamo Eurobox, a London listed
cash box externally managed by the Tritax Big Box team
ntends to replicate their UK vehucle investing in large
logistizs properties but across Continental Europe as
coposad to the UK They raised €300m and are busily
invest.ng the cash The Trust did not participate as we have
muitiple exposures to European logistics companies The
stock returned —2 5% since IPO 0 June 2018 Kojamoe
rased € 150m 0 a mix of primary and secondary in order
o expand trer residential portfolio focused on Helsinki The
fattar nas enjoyed strong returns post IPO whilst Eurobox
2mans subduad gven the expectation that the external
maragement medeal will rasult in further capital requests in
short order October saw the largest IPQ, albeit where

2x5t ng sharehoiders mantained significant positions
Siurzard, Contnental Europe's largast self storage business
~ow 25 a frae float of €500m and has performed strongly
post iPQ The Trust particpatad in the raise but so:d the
pesthon on vatuaton grounds more recently On a more
rradest scaie, the Axiare management team naving sold the
2usiness to Colonial (another listed Spanish property
comrpany). launched Anma raising € 100m te invest in
\ladrid and Barcelona offices requiring refurbishment. The
Trust's invoivement in Axiare was profitable and we backed
tre ranagemant team at iPO N the new venture

There were a number of follow on raises in the perncd
across Continentai Europe [0 Sweden, Hemfosa raised
Se€ | Obr anead of the proposed sphtting of the business
o o vehicles, Hemfosa and Nyfosa The largest raise
was €335m by voravia, Continental Europe’s largest listed
orzperty company who announced that they intended to
zcquire contron of a small residential business in Sweden,
Victona Park. W expect them to expand much further in

this new market

ir the UK Tritax B1g Box raised £230m to acquire 872 of
DB Symmetry, a private logistics developer with a 2,500
J0r2 (g7oss) iogishcs landbank The Trust participated in the
sub-underwrting of this transaction earning £0 3m 1n fees
Crarger, the private-rented residential portfolio operator
arreunced 3 ngnts 1ssue to acquire a jant venture partner's
stake 0 theriargest London-centac portfolio Workspacs,
tre London focusad office operator raised £180m for
axpansior and investment

Te smaiigst raise was by the only Continental European
wsted student accommeoedation vehicle, Xior whao raised
=37 1or 2xpansicn ThIs Compdny remains too smaii for us
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but we monitor 1t closely given our positive views on this
asset class

Private equity was also busy elsewhere in the sector with
Kildare Partners successfully taking Technopolis, a smali
Finnish owner of business parks, private for € 750m

Debt markets continue to offer very attractive funding terms
but most of the debt raised i1 the penod was refinancing as
opposed to increasing overall loan to value ratics This 1s
heaithy given the matunty of the cycle. Total iIssuance i the
debt markets by listed property companies totalled over
£12bn 0 the year, considerabiy less than the same pernod
last year (£19 5bn).

Fooo2ny Snares

Pan turgpean property shares when viewed as two bas<ats,
UK and Continental Europe, both enjoyed a strong first
quarter of the financial year with returns close to 5%¢
However, the second quarter saw a wide divergence of
performance with the UK basket giving back ali of the first
quarter gains and booking a4 negative total return af O 57
over the sx months Continental Europe managed to hang
on to its first quarter gains Thus divergence of performanca
persisted through the autumnal market weakness and then
widened a little further in a Q1 2019 raily

We aftribute the particular weakness in the UK to two «ay
factors, overarching Brexit related concerns and the
accelerating detenoration in the valuation of retail property
as retailer administrations and restructunngs increased and
rents continue to fall investors have focused not oniy on
the corporate charades surrounding Intu and Hammerson
{covered in the Intenm Report in November) but
ncreasingly on the scale of the over renting in the UK
versus Continental Europe UK fandiords have historicaliy
required longer leases with five yearly review patterns whiist
Continental Eurcpe saw shorter leases with indexation The
conseguence 1s that as demand weakens there 1s far
greater ‘over renting’ In the UK than in Continental curope
The UK's woes have been compounded by much swifter
online penetration into sales than across Continental
Europe resulting In a collapse N demand for physical sales
space Whilst the autumnal seli off was broad based we
were not surprised to see a much greater recovery 11 Q|
2013 in the European retail names than n the UK In fact
the 12 menth returns prove the relative resilience of the
European companies, with ratums ranging from Klepierre
+4 4% to Unibail —15 5% The latter was a pariicularly poor

performer as Investors punished the company for what was
seen as iiljudged expansion nto the US wia the takeover of
Westfield However, these figures Jook relatively positive
when compared with the UK's retail companies who
endured 12 month retums of —42% for intu, -32 6% for
Hammerson and ~46% for Capital & Regional

The most surpnsing respanse has been in the London
office names Civen the absence of a resolution to the
Braxit issue we had expected yield expansion (and failing
capital vaiues) for London assets given that this globally
onentated city had the most to lose in so many respects
However, Investors responded to the ewidence of steady
tenant demand and international buyers continued to
acquire, taking advantage of a weak GBP and a long term
view of London's potential. The three pure play names
2turned as follows' Denvent London +7 9%, Great
Portland +13 8% and Workspace +1 3%, the latter
subdued from its last raising which was in effect a thinly
velled degeanng

Meanwhile Parnis, the second largest office market

{by value of listad companies) saw its office focused stocks
underperform even whilst the lie de France region
produced strong take up figures and supply remains tignt,
particularly in central Pans. The exception was Terreis as
covered earlier

the German residential sector remains the fargest
sub-grouo N our universe and was a steady performer in
the penod underpinnad by sound fundamentals with
companies reporting close to full occupancy and renta
growth With little opportunity to acquire significant
portfolios domesncally the largest companies are either
looking to other countries (Vonovia acguinng n Sweden
and mvestigating opportunities in France) or other sectors
with similar charactenstics (Deutsche Wohnen acquired
more elderly Iving assets) We remaim happy with the
former's strategy particularly in Scandinavia but less
impressed with the latter’s drive into the already crowded
German elder care market

The strongest performing region was Sweden with an
astonishing collective total return of 36 6% Sweden doesn't
have a REIT regime and therefore property companies tend
to have higher ievels of gearing as they are able to offset
the associated interest cost against tax The combination of
a dowish central bank maintaining very low interest costs
and a strongly performing economy resulted in elevated
expectations of rental growth across all commeraial property
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sectors particularly Stockholm offices and logistics The
nigher level of geanng then ampiified these retumns

Of course gearing 1s N0 panacea and we remain vigliant for
signs of either an economic slowdown or the czntral bank
turning hawkish which seems unlikely at the moment given
the rhetonc from the Riksbank

Tre logistics/industral asset class was, onge agan, the
strongest performer and this was duly mirrerad i tne iisted
companies’ returns This subset of our universa s however
becoming crowded and every company stands on
premiums to asset value That 15 of course entirely
appropnate if they continue to delvar markat beating
returns We are now focused or those businesses with an
organic development pipeline whicn can deiwver mucn
higher yieids on cost such as Segro, Argan, WOP and

VIB Vermoegen, as oppased to buying standirg assets
acquired from developers whers tne opporturity for further
yield compression is becoming margina
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Turnover of Investments (purcnases and saies dvided by
nwo) totalled F262m equating to 207 ¢ of the average net
assets over the period This compares to £370m or 31 279
of average net assets In the previous 12 morth period

The vear under review saw lower ievels of botn prmary
issuance and follow on capitai raisings tham in previous
years and this is reflected in the much reduced tumaover
figure However, we did have two s.ignibcant delistirgs with
the sale of Hispamia (£58 3m holding) to Blackstone n
September last year and then more recenty n rebrudry the
sale/privatisation of Terrais (£32 5m nalding)

The Trust's overail geograprical positoning between the UK
and Continental Europe showed a small incraase over the
pernod with exposure 1o UK equities beirg 35 170 of assets
compared to 33 4% in March 2018 Mugh ke a2 year ago,
the rationale remains one of 'bottom up’ stock picking
ratner than a desire to seck exposure to Uk plc Over the
perod i Increased exposure to Secure income RET and
Supermarket Income RET bath of which reflect my desire
tor more long dated, secure, index-inkad income wnich s
not dependent on the immediat2 bmng of the business
cycle Within the rest of the alternatyes group, incraased
exposure to self storage and studert accomimodaton, the
latter adding to the UK through our large roiding »n Unite
but also In Belglum failowing the IPO an x.or Our
heaithcare exposure reduced durmg the penod witn the

sale of our Primary Healthcare Properties, on valuation
grounds, but rebuilt with the addition of more Assura shortly
after the year end. The saie of PHP was poorly imed with
the announcement a month later of a takeover of therr
nearest histed nval, Mediex and the market duly pricad in
optimistic central and debt cost savings

Cerman residenual remains a stahwart of the portfoho
{22%) but there was considerable stack rotation particularly
in our Berlin exposure as explored eariier

Retail exposure remained heavly subdued In the UK,
adjusting for the supermarket exposure, we have ess than
2% of assets nvested In retail Yet even tat modest
amount was too much with Capital & Regonal failing —45%0
and New River Retall —10% Supermarket Incomea

RZIT — wath its long, secure income focus — rase + 729 and
remains the one success story In the retal sector 2ost the
yaar end it completed its first purchase usirg s equity as
currency with an insttutional investor effectively swapping

a iarge supermarket for part casn/part paper e paper was
issiied at the prevailing snare price, 30 870 pramum
asset vaiue Most encouraging

In the Interm, i referred to the Intu/Hammarson saga wnicn
nas finally played out as a 'nil score draw’ Both comparies
are now Undertaking independent restructunrg initiatves
against a backdrop of relentiess asset vaiue corrections

| did close our underweight postions in botn stocks duning
the year when | deemed takeover or privatsaton hikaly In
the case of inty, this lkelihcod dimmed and | s0id the
position in December So far this calendar year that nas
proved to be the corract strategy Nonetieiess my
performance in the year . ths (albeit smail} subsectar,
driven by an expectation of M&A actvity, was 3 little
disappointing

The incraased undenveight to Continental Zurooean retail
was a mora successful tale Aithough | firmiy beneve that
retailer affordability (as discussed earlier) s far graater in
most CE lecations (when compared to the UK) thare are
stil considerabie pricing adjustments to come cquity pricas
discount these expected fails in asset vawes, vind.cating our
reduced exposurz However, markets do overrzact and

I bought back inte the larger retail owning companies i the
last quarter of the finanaial vear, particuiarly
Unibail-Rodameco-Westheid This stock sufferad 4 dramatic
corecton failing from a financial year bigh of €237 per
snare in May to a low of €133 per shara \n December The
other side of the undenveght to retail Zor nas been the
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ovenveight to industral and logistics, the much touted
expression 'sheds are the new shops’ has cartainly been
shouted with guste by market partapants including
ourselves Stand out performers, whers we continued to
add to positions, include Argan (=55 total return) in
France, Catena (+60% total return) and VIB Vermoegen,
a mare modest but stll healthy 1470 1n the UK we
participated in the undenwntng of the £230m capital raise
by Tntax Big Box for its acquisition of DB Symmetry,

a logistics developer | reman concarned about the external
management corporate structura of this business and the
position was subsequently soild Our U< industriai/logistics
exposure still expanded with the opening of a holding In
Mucklow Group, a West Midlands investor/developer and
we now hold almaost 525 of tus well run small cap

Alongside the sale and deiisting of Tarrais, the other
significant privatisation for the Trust was the sale and
delisting of Hispania in July 2013 Tne purchaser was
Blackstene, a trmely reminder that much more commercial
property s owned privately tan through the public
markets Our holding equated to 4 47¢ of the Trust's NAV
and the transaction was covered .n more detail in the
Intenim Post the sale, our only major notel exposure was
through the Scandinavian vehicle, Pandox which returned
a comfortable 14%6

Londan offices was a markat we were nervous about going
nto 2018 As examined earlier, our concems have proven
{at least for the moment) untounded and the London
specialist names recoverad weli post the summer even with
the Brextt mayhem unresolved | took the opportunity to
reduce exposure, saling out of Derwent London as it
moved back to pre Referendum pricing [ would add that
this sale was on valuaton grounds as this s a very well run
business, neverthetess it should aiso be noted that the
highly regarded CEQ is retinng and becoming non-executive
Charman Whilst against madern comparate governance
protocol, we like to see his steady hand contnuing to assist
his long estabhshed management team

Ravenue and Ay anu2 LT 2o

Ravenue growtn for the year was a healthy 10 3% although
lower than the levels of growth seen in the previous two
years, ahead of expeciation

Revenue grawth over the last five years has been 80 2200,
the equivalent of 12 5% pa This exceptional growth is
largely due to the significant Increaseas reported in 2017 and

2018 fuelied by the weakening of Sterling folowing the
UK referendum result This increasad the vaiue of our
non-Sterling income in Stering terms i addition, the
revenue tax charge has been supprossed by successful
historic withholding tax reclaims in the last bwo years plus
the impact of beneficial wathholding tax rates on some
current distributions due to the natura of the distributions
themselves.

Tris weakening of Sterling may reverse when there is more
certainty about the final Brexit model and tre negatve
impact that would have on our income nas been well
flagged Monetheless we must continue to highught it.

We do expect the underlying income on miost of our
portfolic to continue to grow We have avaded or are
undenveight those sectors which we 335255 as the most
vulnerable to revenue decline Athougn t should be noted
that some of the facters, sucn as debt refirancing, which
have enhanced some companies’ earnings over recent
years have largely played out, so we axpect the rate of
underiying earnings growth to be morz muted over the
next financial year

Gaamgand D2

Cearnng reduced from 14 6% at the last year end to 12 3
at the intenm stage and then 1009+ at the year end
Corporate actions have returned some sgnificant amounts
of cash to us and i have not sought to rewnvest this The
more uncertain political outiock, not oniy i the UK,
warrants @ more cautious gearing appriach The current
level remans at 9 9%

We are maintaining cur flexible debt faclites and are in
a position to increase the level of gearing at any pointin
ume

Diract Fropert, PO

The physical property portfolio praduced a totai return of

6 5% with an income retumn of 3 5% and a capital retum of
3% This compares well to the total raturn from the IPD All
Property index of 5 8% which saw a higher incame returmn
of 5 2% but a capital return of just O 490

The major activity since the interm has been the
subrmission, in December, of a planning appiication for the
redevelopment of our industnal estate n Wandsworth, We
are proposing a mixed use scheme whicn increases the
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density an the site and includes 106 residental units, with
35% affordabiz, together with 50,000 sq ft of new office
space and 50,000 sqg ft of new hght industral space.
Amenity space Inciudes a new community playground and
an enhanced and enlarged station square This 15 a major
apphication and Wandsworth Counail's assessment of cur
proposals will take ime

We have had a busy pericd of lettings 1n the second half,
completing 6 new ieasas and generating an additional
£300,000 of rent, 3 75%¢ increase

I Hariow we 2t 7000 sq ft to CUA Ltd, an insurance
comparty, on 3 10 yvear iease at a new neadine rent for the
bullding of £15 per sg ft. an increase of 209 from the last
iethng This ieavas cniv 4,200 sq ft vacant at the buillding
and thera 1s 3 gocd iever of intarest

in October the 1argsst terant at our industrial gstate in
Wandswortn, Apsaiute Taste, vacated their four units due to
a ralocabon outsde Landon Toree units have been re-let in
urder saven mortns There continues 1o be strong demand
for light mdustrial space i this location even though we are
oniy able to offer snurt lease terms ahead of the petential
radevelopment

At The Colonnades .n 3avswatar, we have et 2,500 sq ft to
Specsavers on a new 10 year iease at a rent ahead of the
valuers’ expectations The rental level reflected therr need
for a new unit as tneir previous local premises are being
redeveloped The etung of this end of terrace unit
bookends the screme and this tenant will generate further
foctfail providing supoert to the letting of the remaining
adjacent rastaurant unit

u-—l.‘._’(\

While politcar uncartainty across Europe and the nsk of

a siowdown 0 gicbal growth are central macro themes we
take some corrfort 0 the pragmatic response of the central
banks Ther dowish meassaging 1s helpful in mantaining the
historicaliy low zost of irance Property offers a healthy
source of iIncome particularly at imes such as these wnen
bends yeid so e raman confident that outside of the
retail sector, income generation from this asset class
remains robust Ywe see ongoing eamings growth drven by
a lack of deveiopment of new property in many of our
markets Thes rastrcted development cydle, caused by

a reluctarce of capital to fund speculative construction
(and taking tonant rs«) remeains a key underpin for the
asset class Fowever those sactors with rental growth

prospects are all weli bid and wnilst we do see future
earnings growing we find it harder to predict yield
tightening Capital growth will therefore be a function of
rental growth rather than higher multiples being applied to
the valuation of revenue streams

In a similar vein to the Chairman's commentary | would like
to conclude by reminding sharefioiders that not enly are the
majenty of the Trust's assats octsde of the UK (and GBP)
but that whera we Jdo have a UK focus it is invanably
backing companies wath 2ither secure bafance sheets
(lower than average ieverage) or long income from high
quality tenants AMuch of this income s modestly priced as
investors nave sought to avord the UK n these tumultuous
timas We ramain acltziy anare of the vast range of
outcomes for the Uk ecenomy in the coming quarters and
years but we will sti seeg JUtvaiue winen we see it

rmispricad

Marcus Phayre-Mudze
rund Manager
6 Junc 2019
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- gucted 162,338 52.3 8l1531> 566
- {F D exposura: 67,135 4.6 48,257 52
Total investment Exposure” 1,458,098 100.00 | 441,725 1000
. LSRAATLY I5.tes '
J _/
" Portfolin Summary N Net Currency Exposures A
| ot
2019 2013 2617 2003 RISTS Fund Benchmark
E'000 £0C0 E 300 c JCO =) g Yy
|
lotai imestrents £1,291m £1.316m £1,145m £1,099m 1.Jd50m X :
et assets £1.3286m  £1206m  EL113m  E106>m  =idiom | L3 271 272
‘ ) | eLR 571 563
UK Juated aroperty shares 33% 319 29 ERR Tig o
UK hxed ntergst 0% vy QU Ry e Crir 54 57
Overseas juotad oraperty shares 59%% 5240 5590 ST e
Se< 9o S5/
Dwrect oraperty (2xtarn ; R B% ¢ o -
niert seoverty (axtarrally valued) 8% 7% 3t 9ty a | N0k 98 05"
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I
o ./

Distributian of lnavestments

Distribution of Investments

Nar _r eaised qan or TFD _ortracts held as balarce
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Investment Portfolio by Country

N 2 Yoo 2009
Vit vue VMar<e: vai.2
£ 000 in £'000 b
Austria United Kingdom
CA Immobilen 14,371 1} Lindsac 54,384 42
SeaR0 o411 35
13,071 1.1 Urite Crous 42171 53
Belgium Cis Hoidings 334,495 27
Warshousing and Orstnibution de Pauw 19,135 1o aaZonmetnc Property 29,708 25
LY 3,058 a3 Creat Portland cstates 25,235 20
rtevest Offices & Warehauses 2212 J2z No<ay securtes 21,89/ 17
Mantea 1,905 a7 LY arasnace 19,063 =]
3efimnio 1775 a1 satastara rloldings 17862 14
Waraldhave 5.5 Snaftesoury 16687 13
~armuarkot e 25 s}
29,137 23 susermariet ncame Reil 15,140 12
A% Mucklow 12,260 10
France Sraroran 13,865 a5
Lrsad-radamea-Weastf eld 72,207 EIE] S 2ol 13689 24
Argan 34,148 2 s2oute poome 4T 10,6714 08
v 50./3o * 4 A55013 8,260 Jo
Zocra 25 /a2 20 ey 8,143 22
Nearziaws 7329 U2 5LS 7312 )
cevers 4,004 J3 S ¥2low Jroun /304 25
Atar23 1,253 J Tebord Homes VRN J2
176,293 13.7 ety 2300 v
NERRATE ST IR 4395/ o
Cermany St vladaen 5598 Cs
MelRINE! 43995 a Stor 512> a2
e 78.7.3 &l Target “eaitnicare 2,193 a2
Jeutszhe Waonner 59,454 o4 T e an 1,238 J1
v 3 Vermoegear 13,590 13 _scal sromoing R T /b3 Q1
Aourdiowr 9502 49 Atrata Caotsl 377 -
327,469 254 427,175 33.2
Iraland Dir2¢t Proparty 101,929 79
are2s Ro 273501 21 i
= Lo CFD Pasitions {includad in
27,301 2.1 currant liabilities) (3.210) (0.2}
Netherlands Tatal Investment Positions 1,288,232 100.0
CUTDCITITRry Propartes 17142 5
17,145 1.3
Norway
-3 243498 19
24,998 1.9
Spain
Mearlin 13,612 V3
Airma Real 2state J 300 a7
25,6812 2.0
Swedan
racege 44 554 34
<angseder 30223 24
Yin'borgs 25045 14
Aardav 33 S
Jatena 2873 a5
Herrola 3,/35 o=
120,312 9.3
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Twelve Largest Equity Investments

VONOVIA

; L ' —— 1V'acHe
Vonowvia o Radamno astield LEG
sz - i}
(Cermany) (rFranz2) (Germany)
31 March | 31 Waren 51 March | 31 dartk 3t March | 3 W p
2013 2013 2013 2013 2019 LT
Snarehoiding value - EI233n SPatan0o g g 1202 - | E1056m Shasenolding value - £7yd
o of Investment 1930 3t ovRst vant 8500 To of .nvestment _
portfol o’ S porrs 0 ' porto! o i
Jg of equity owned IR Yo gl 2ty Jwoes 05 S ot eguity owned 13
Y 5
Shara p- L2 N €43 29 sSnare pree - €135535 Sn4r2 price €313
F

Vonovia 15 the largest German residental
landlord (as well as the largest European
quoted property company by market cap)
following the acquistion of Cagfah in
2014, Sudewo portfolio in 2015, Conwert
in 2016 and Buwog n 2017 with more
than 358,000 units under management
In 2018, the company closed the
acquisition of Victoria Park, a Swedish
company which owns 14,000 residental
units in the Stackholm, Gothenburg and
Malmo regions In additon, the company
acquired @ 10Y% stake in a 4,000-unit
potfolo  sold by French  SNCF
Ceographical split 15 now CGermany
(90%0), Austna (6+0) and Sweden (40}
Vonovid runs a large in-house craftsman
crganisation which allows the company to
run an innovatwe strategy focusing on
improving and modernising its €39bn
German portfolio (£43bn for the tofal

portfolio),  whilst  offerng  further
economies of scale by acquinng
additonal  partfolios  and  modular

construction N addition, the acquisition of
Buwog allows the company to add
development for sale to its business
model The company s putting a specal
focus on ecologicai and socal matters
wnich are ganing more and  more
attention in the highly regulated and
poliically drven residenual sector The
company reported a like-for-like rental
growth at 4.4% n 2018 and expedts to
reach a similar level in 2019 The adjusted
NAV per share growth reached +16 7%
implying a totat accounting return of 20%
for 2018 The total sharsholder retum
since hsting in July 2013 has been 2240%

Unibail 'ost ther tite of the largest property
compary oy ket cap as  nvestors
questoned  the  rawonale  of  the
transformationar acgasiton of Westheld it
does however ramiain the largast in terms of
gross assats with 2 € 356n portfolio located
in Fance (34-0) US (24°0). UK (89),
Central Europe (272), Germany (600, Spain
(820), Scandinavia {570), Austria (4%} and
the Netherlands (3's) Tha company s the
world's preryer devaloper and operator of
flagshup  shooping  destinations with an
historical focos on large Eurcpean aties
befor2 expanding this year in the US and In
the LK n an emuronment whera the brick
and mortas vetar owners  are faong
axistental  threats (online  competiian,
change of consurer behaviour, over-supply
of physica, retai space), Jnibal ams to
capitalse on ther strengths to offer an
omni-channel expenance to consumer and
outperform the rest of the compettion To
sepplarent -eturns the group also pursues
an opporunistic stratagy  (buy/buid and
sa) In officas (5% of the total portfolio)
mostly 'ocated 10 Paas CBD and La Defense
The company intends to deteverage its
balance shast, a topic which has been a key
pont in iIrvestars’ agenda last year A total of
mor2 than € 3on of disposals has already
besn executad or signed sinca June 2018
The target s a further € 3bn of disposals ta
be campleted 5y 2023 to lower the LTV to a
range of 30-4C0¢ Considenng this partfolio
streamiining, the group 15 guiding for an
adusted EPS betwesn €1180-1200 n
2013 and an EPS CAGR (rebased for
disposals)  oetween  +5%  and  +7%
betwesan 203 and 2023 The five-year total
shareholder -eturn has been -2 3%

Berertage Of rvestinert Porfolio sosihions PILdE 23000 LR o s
Note: 1he 2ortfel o st sut on pags */ nuudes *he Iryscdl ~adirgs 0y FULded 1oy asteerts el 2t valuz m e 3alines sreat The of 3 rant or 065 20st0n § L uded

nocurent w2t

LEG 15 a German resdental campary
focused on the economicaly sirong
region of North Rhine-Westphaia The
company s one of the largest real estate
companies in Germany with more thar
133,000 units under management wii
a combined value of €100bn LES 15
characterized by a siwronyg balance sneet
with a net LTV of 4130, an average debt
matunty of more than seven years and
an average cost of debt of 16% The
CEQ Thomas Hegel retired in Mav
replaced by Lais von Llackum, Chief
Cigal Officer We expect a smooth
transition as Thomas rlege: will stay 0
the company for some tme as an
advisor In key areas which wil ease the
SUCCESHON  process Tne company
discloses a two-year guidance lustrat.n
the good visibility on earmings For 2019,
the company 15 guiding for a like-for-like
rental growth between 3 0% and 3 2
and an FFO increasing by 7% comparad
to 2018 For 2020, the company s
seaing a lkefor-lke rental growth
between 3 2% and 3 342¢ and an FFO
per share growing by 5 5% The five-year
total shareholder return has been 17530
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Landsec
= i .

Landsac Deutsche Wohnen Gezinz

(UK) (CGarmany {(rranze
31 March | 53 Vars 31 March | 31 Maicn 3t Marsv ] 50 Marer
2013 2003 2013 2013 1913 2018
Snarenoding value - £5338n srarenalding value Coem E378m Snarenold ng value £33 Im
Yo of investment 55, Ty ot imvestment . e Yo of nyasttient .
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Landsec 5 the UK's largest 23T by Deutsche Wohnen s Cermany's second  Gecana 1s the iargast othce andlord 1n

portfollo value, managng £74bn o
assets  (including its share of jon
ventures and devalopments) While t»
company s often thought of as haf
retall, halt London offices’ in reaiy ne
portfolio 15 442 London offices w
11% m central London shops, 117~ n
leisure properties including hotels, and
just 34% consttuting ‘tiaditona. retall

— e

L

(6% retal parks, 28% sheppimg
cenfres) Hawving underaxen mutple
refinancing  actions  to purchase

expensive legacy bonds and reissue
cheaper alternatwes, the cormrpany's
earnings yield (and dividend yieid) have
reached attractive leveis (¢54%0 and
C 5 340 respectvely), with the earmings
outstrpping those of its main peer 3atsh
Land in a trend we expect to continue
VWe aiso believe that Landsec’s retai
portfolio 1s much better placed han
Brtish Land's to weatner the shuctura,
storm which 15 currently httrg the
UK retal sector Nanagement nas
remaned cautious on the outlook tor
UK real estate, kesping developrent sk
to a mimmum and financiar rsg low (T
¢ 26%0), and we believe the company
rernains well placed to capttaisa o ary
upcoming markat  weakness e
fve-year total shareholder retuin has
been 8%

R PO S E R TR R S & T W A T S N B

{

argest residential company with the
bulk of its exposure to Greater Berhin
(77%) The company owns 3
“igh-quaity portfolo conssting of more
‘nan 164,000 units with a combined
value of €22bn  Despite increasing
pressure on the regulatory front and
more negative headlines around Berlin
landlords, Deutsche Wohnen
experenced another strong year in
Berlin with valuation uplft of +132%,
and NAV +18% In addition to s
resdential exposure, the company s
ceveloping a Nursing and  Assisted
-ving  business  which  currently
represents 8% of the Group E3ITDA
and could grow to 15% 0 the coming
years The company 1s guiding for FFO
growth of 12% YoY while assuming
a prudent 5% Berlin Mietspiegel rent
review (was +9% two years ago for the
las:  rzlease) The five-year tota
shareholder return has been 21130

g -1

Continental Eurgpe waih g portfolio of
more than &5bn focused almost

exciuswvely on the Cars region (972% of
the tota wvalug) . addion, the
compaty owns a poito. 0 of €3 3bn of
esidental assats (of wn o1 €330m in
student housing) predomiranty located
in the Pars 12gion Finany, the company
owns a pardfoio of exclusve high street
retall asse's for a va.ue of £35bn The

managament s capitl.zng on a large
development pipeline of more than
&bn (15% of Gross Assat value) *o be

defivered I the next thige yedrs In
2018, following its tota. return sirategy,
the company delnerad very sol.d results
with a NAV increas g by 5 4% whie
FeCJITNg 2aiNINgs par srare Increased
by Stu drven by a tota. uke-for-like
rental growth of 2 522 Sirce the Zurosic
acquisiton 1 20'7 the company has
sad for close to €2 2hn of non-core
assets at a pramwum to .ast appraisal
value close o +&'0 Tmis nas allowed
the company 1 have an even greater
focus  on  core ocations  whie
deleveraging the bdance sheet fo
a consarvatve TV of 38w The five-year
shareholder tota, ratury has been 77%

3
3
m
&
(&)
e
[nx]
-l
<
_’




&
[
&
T}
o
o
2
2
&

Twelve Largest Equity Investments

SEGRO

WHERE BUSINESS WORKS

=5
Segro
(U<)
31 Marlh B R et
23173 RO
Sharanodiig va ue =172n
Y of investrment .
B 33
portforo
37 equity oweed . 23
Sna-a pree { s 0p

Segro has become the .argest UK REIT
by market cap, and s ne a:gest
operator of logistics and  ~dustral
property listed in the UK w'n a total
portfohio of £9 4bn ( 68'¢c 1 the UK,
329% in Continental Europe, witn 573
urban warehouses, 319, big boxes and
200 other uses) in the UL, the group Is
exposed to CGreater London .rdusnal
and logistics space and nat.onal logist.cs
space Rental growtn in these markets 1s

running  at record levels as  there
remamns  an  acute  suppy-demand
imbalance,  fuelled by  tenants’

requirements to deal wit e growth In
e-commerce In Contrenta. Europe,
Germany and France are the goup’s
laigest markets with Powand third, these
markets have a fla%er rartal out'oox
(and are geographically less space-
constraned) but are experencng some
yield comprassion as .nvestors continue
to chase income The group aiso has an
extensive development exposure that it
manages to largely pre-.et and develop
at yelds significantly 0 excess of
nvestment values (2776 yierd o0 cost
vs an EPRA net imitial yieid of 3 Suo at
FY18) We expect this to drve both
earnings and NAV growth over the shoit
to medium term, &s we. as high
shareholder total returns In our view
the loan-to-vaiue ratic s relatively low
nsk at ¢29%, and the deveiopment
pipeline has been funded by frash
equity The five-year totar sharehoder
return has been 1513¢

“Per_entage of srarat bing i v u JLe

Unite Group

o
(U <)

30 March | 30 Marp

2019 20138

5rarenoid ng value i £11 8m
toof nvestment C1n

parfonal 2

‘o of eguity owned A 207

Snare prce /91 3p

Unite 15 the UK’s largest purpose-bunt
student housing developer, owner and
operdtor The group manages just over
48,800 student beds either
wholly-owned or within jont ventures
Over 2018/19 the asset class has
remained attractve for institut.onal
Investment Rental  growth  has
remained strong (32%) and Unite
continues to outperform the market
Unite offers a strong development
pipeiine of 6,600 beds funded through
retained resources and active portfolio
recycling  This, alongside  continued
3-2% annuai rental growth, 1s expected
to drive ¢ 125% compound annua:
growth 10 earnings per share over
FY18-21 Overall there remans an
excess of appiicants to unwersity
acceptances, resuiting in a
demand-supply dynamic strongly in the
landlards” favour The LTV of 29%
means that nsk 1s well controlled and
provides the group with sufficent
firepower to continue its development
actvity as 1t looks to ncrease its
partnership projects with universit.es
The five-year total shareholder return
has been 138%

“nosnrent Farttrio sesmans rouds exposur2 thiough 2T

9 Fé?egg
(Sn2liz

37 March | 3" Mach

013 2018

Snarero s g Jue £329m
Ty of nyester

purﬁfougfﬂ B 250

v of ecaty cweed 0o

Sharep e 5ck 13080

Fabege 15 an owner and developer of
Stocknolm offices. with a SEK 68bn
portiolic The Stockholm office market
has seen, a~d .~ our view 15 set (o
contnue o 3e2  strong  rental
growth — prime r2ats in Stockholm have
reacned ¢S5cd 7300 psm, up from
SEK 4,500 psm |ust four years ago in
additon to captunng this strong rentai
growth (ke for a<e rental growth was
0% in ~¥1i8) 1 1ts  Iinvestment
portfolic, Fabege undertakes a large
amount  of  development (4 s
respansibie for £ 5046 of all new office
devewpmerts 1 Stoccholm) and has
enjoyed wvery strong returns on o its
project pordono (ROWC in FY18 was
98%, a long way anead of the
company's ‘arzeted  >509%  level)
Having  execated large  scale
developmment  :n Arenastaden  the
company 1as ~ow urmned its focus to
Flemingsberg 1o e south of the aty
We contirue  to back  Fabege's
development focased strategy, and
estimate wat rabege has cne of the
strangest wial return outlocks of all
Swedish  property  companies  The
five-year sharenolder total return has
been 2184010 G3P terms




Twelve Largest Equity Investments

COVIVIO

McRay
Ay CLS
f T, . By -
s e McKay Secuntas ‘|2 CLs
{=rarze) (UK) (U0
31 March | 30 Varck 31 March | 31 Marth
2013 2013 2013 2018
EER=L VT S - £48 1 Shaeho Jiig vaue S5ha amoung s2ae - £35 3m
ot weste I of nvestraent Te b nwestmaat
N N N i - )
porte o 330 partial o >2 PRIl - 23
T T Ve IOREN . 28 ‘o of 2qutv owned [ N-] oot 2guty owned - 37
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Covnvio farrmary koown as Forcers des
Regiors) s a cresied company with a
coarschdatzl oottolio of €230n of assets
(310 growp snar) Tre corpary s maniy
rvest2d W merdh acd tanan offices (58%
gouD sraral Cerman Residertal (2590
gro.p »rate)y and rotes (1570) wnile
Por-strategic assats account for omy 20 of
total group share In Decemicer 2018, the
merger wlth (3 f3uan sebsdiary Beni Stabih
eorasartad 3 aer sten towards  the
simplficaton of the company structare The
company was actve on the oortfolio rotation
font through the Jisposal of €14be of
as32%5 0N 4 gro.p share bass with the goal
of erbarcrg e portfolic gualty and
rorRaseg  praseroe o major Egropesn
ates Besides, the corritted development
pipeling was wroreased o €1250 on a
group srdre 2ass sout Debaeen Frerch
officas (570 of w2 tota), Itanan Offices
(239r ot ®re whal), Carran resdertial (570
Fthe wota) ard ratels (470 of the total)
e orpamny delwvered  a very  solid
aoerationd: er‘armarca in 2013 wath a otal
lika-for-iig2 erta growth of +3 ¢ and 4
ika-for-ilka corfouo value growth of +4 3o
amarg an cPRA 2amings o2r share Incraase
of 4 57 ard an ZPRA NAV per share up by
552 o1 2013, tha company 1s taking @
weicomed  Lorsenamve  stance on the
balarce sheet Tont targeting ar LTV Delow
40 y2rs08 3 sravious arget cehween 000
anc 457 and 1 2018 raported level of 42 %0
At the sare nre the comopary 1S sl
targeting 3 postve EPRA farmings per share
oWt 2f At east +3%0 based on a
Jonsgratve lixa-for-hka  rental
gowth  at groop level  The  fiwe-year
sharehclder “otal return nas seen 88
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McKay Secuntes' £479m portiolo s
focused on markets where we be eve
the  fundamentais  are  attractue
Geographical split 5 537¢c Soutt Zast
Offices, 25 London Offices, 13-
South East Industral and 522 10 Otrer
ectors  Therz remams  sgmficant
reversion within tne portfono (23 3),
and after having de-nszed its office
deveiopment programime the company
has shown that it 1s preparad ‘o fa<2 3
controlled  amount of nsk  througn
speculative development N .0g'shcs,
including constructing a 134< sa R
urban warehouse In Theaie We be.eue
the company 15 set to delver strorg
earnings growth n the coming yezars,
while keeping leverage under cortrai
(LTV 34%0), and the discount o NAY
(2890) underpins our wiew of e
relative value of the shares todav The
frve-year total sharanolder returmn ~as
been 3720

ales mI e o o Thougr e 2s

£19bn portfoilc  across
59m sg f It owns primanly office
propettes  83%0,  with Student
aecommodaton 52, Hotels 4% and
<2ta. 23 and 1s geograpaically spht
betusen e UL {51%), Cermany
{3325) and france (15%) The German
assets 1N part.cular have led value
growtn for CLS (+9 320 1n local currency
terrs n FY18), while recent disposais
{ nowding Frst Camp) have tdied the
porfole and allowed capital to be
recycled info attractwve acquisitons The
corrpany's disciplined but oppertunistic
appreach to capital allocation s one of
its most attractive qualities In our view,
whee e hign level of Government
znants on the rent roll (28%) gves
soad covenant strength and stability to
the ncome stream  We befieve the
porfalio today provides a good base
fram which to drive future returns, and
with TV at 3720 financal nsk remains
weid ab sensible levels The five-year
snarenolder total return has been $6%
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Spr2ad of Direct Portfolio by Capital Value () \w ( L2ase Lengths within tha Direct Property Portfoiio N
P i ‘i . oo - Grosmre iy et e |
otz "] 0t 5 years 500
EE adusir 5 v T | 5t 10 vears Yoo
C oo 100
vwest =rd of London 40 0% - 14 00 Shoe, | | (VM 1oyears 0]9
irer Lor * 1 45 21 34 20 | 5 10 20 years 2317 )
initer Londan o UC - 223% | 203 years 3%
ourd W2 - ; - AN
fxr\)u. AR 9 79 E 100%
Soutn st — 135 599 - 13 5%
Total a1 4% a1 6% 11.0% 1900 Contracted Rent b
| e £5,600000 |
*arer London detined as inside the Morth and South Cirzular ' vears 2-3 £10,750.000 '
V3T e €= S0
Y 2413 2 E15,725,000 )
Value in excess of £10 million
T s TN s = I - -~y
Tm2 Zo.oonnadzes, Bishops Bridge Road Londa )2
T Sector Yixed Use
. Tenure Frazhoid
Size (sq ft} 63,000
Principal tenants Waitrose Ltd 1Rebei
Graham & Green Specsavers

The proparty comprises a large mixed-use block in
Bayswater, constructed in the mid-1970s The site
extends to approximately 2 acres on the north east
corner of the junction of Bishops Bndge Road and
Porcnester Road, close to Bayswater tube station and
the Whiteieys Shopping Centre The commercial
eternent was extended and refurbished in 2015 with
a new 20 year lease being agreed with Waitrose

Tarmar Strazv ndustnial Estate, Wandsa o, Lonam 30013

Sector Industnal

Tenure Freehold

Size (sq ft) 36,000

Principal tenants Mossimans -

Kougar Tool Hire Ltd  Page Lacquer

Site of just over an acre, 50 metres from Wandsworth
Town ravway station In an area that 1s predominantly
residential The estate comprises 16 small industral
units generally let to a mix of small to medium-sized
private companies
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Value less than £10 million

Yodel Unit, Woodlands Park, Almondsoun.,. Bristol BS32

) Sectur_ ’ -
Tenure

3 Size (sq f't)_

Principal tenants

Sector
Tenure

Size (sq ft)

Sector
Tenure
Size {sq ft}

Principal tenants

Industrial

Freehold
53,000

Yodel Delivery
Network Ltd

g Located on the juncticn of the M4 and M5, this
industnal bullding is let to Yodel, the parcel delivery
company, on a l2ase expinng 1IN 2019 at a low rent of
£S5 per sq ft. The bulding sits on a 5 75-acre site
giving a low site density and a large yard offering

a vaniety of alternative uses for the site

Industnai
Frashald
53,000

SCI-MX Investmants
Infusion GB

The IO Centre compnises six Industna units occupiad
" by five tenants and sits on a 4 5-acre site Gloucester
Business Park is located to the east of Junction 11A
of the M5 and one mile to the east of Gloucester City
Centre The property also has easy access to the
A417 providing good links to the M4 wia juncticn 15

Qfficas
Freehold
64,000

Teva UK Ltd
Capital Undeswniting Agencies Ltd

Located next to Harlow Town railway staton, the
bulding was constructed in the late 1980s and
compnses a 566,000-5q ft office buiding on a site of
3 5 acres 80% of the buiding by cRV 151et to Tova
UK Ltd on ieases expinng .n 2023
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Investment Objective and Benchmark

The Company's Objective 1s to maximise sharanolders total return by investing in the shares and securities of property
companies and property related businesses internationaily and also in investment property located in the UK.

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Eurape Cappad Net Total Return index in Sterling The index,
calculated by FTSE, is free-float based and currently has 108 constituent companies The index limits exposare to anv one
company to 10% and reweights the other constituents pro-rata The benchmark website v 220y oL contains furtner
detalls about the Index and performance

Business Model

The Company’s business model follows that of an externaly managed mvestment trust

The Company has no employees ts whoily non-executve doard of Directors retains responsibility for corporate stratogy,
corporate governance, nsk and control assessment, the overail investment and dividend policies, setting limits an gear~g
and asset allocation and monitoring investment performance

The Board has appointed BMO Investment 3usiness Limitad as the Altemative Investment Fund Manager with portfono
management delegated to Thames Rwer Capital LLP Marcus Phayre-Mudge acts as Fund Manager to the Company on
behaif of Thames Rwver Capitar LLP and Alban Lhonneur s Deputy Fund Manager George Cay is the Direct Property
Manager and Joanne Elliott the Finance Manager ey are supportad by a team of equity and portfolio analysts

Further information in relation to the Board and the arrangements under the Investment Management Agreement can be
found in the Report of the Directors on pages 35 and 4o to 47

In accordance with the AIFMD, BNP Parbas has been appainted as Depositary 10 the Company BNP Parbas aiso pravide
custodial and administration services to the Company Company secretanal servicas are provided by Link Company
Matters

The speafic terms of the fnvestment Management Agreemant are set Out on pages 46 and 47




Strategy and Investment Policies
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The investment selection process seeks to dentify well managed companies of ail sizes The Manager generally regards
future growth and capital appraciation potential maere highly than immediate yield or disceunt o asset value

Although the investment objective ailows for investment on an international basis, the benchmark 15 a Pan European
Index and the majority of the investments will be located in that geographical area Direct property investments are
located in the UK only

A3 a dedicated inwvestor in the proparty sector the Company cannot offer diversification outside that sector, however,
within the pertfolio thers ars limitations, as set out below, on the size of individual investments held to ensure
diversification within the portfelio

|+ .
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The maximum hoiding 1N the stocc of any one 1ssuer or of a single assetis hmited to 1520 of the porfolo at the point of
acquisition in additan, any heidings in excess of 5% of the pertfolio must not in aggregate avcead 4071 of the portfolio

The Manager currently appias th2 toilowing guidelines for assct allocation

UK listed equitizs 25 -50% Other listed eguities J-5%
Continental curopean listed eguites 45 — 75" Listed bonds Q-5%
Direct Property — UK 0—20% Unquetad investments C-bleg
Qther iisted equites 0-5%

523003
The Company may employ leveis of gearng from tme to time with the am of enhancing retums, subject to an overall
mavmum of 25%0 of the portfoiio vaiue

in certan market conditions tre Manager may consider it prudent not to employ geanng on the baianca sheet at all. and
to hold part of the portfolio 12 cash

The current assat aliccation guideine 15 10% net cash to 25% nat geanng (as a percentage of portfono value)

.
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investment properties are vaiced avary s months by an external independent vaiuer Valuations of ail the Group’s properties
as at 31 March 2019 rave ceer caned out on a "Red Book” basis and these valuations have been adopted n the accounts.
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On the basis of the Bcard's axpected iong term spit of returns in the form of capitai gains and .ncare, the Group
charges 7570 of annuar bass maragement tees and finance costs to capital All performance fees are charged to capital.
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it 15 the Board's currant intzrton 1o noid no mare than 152 of the portfolio in listed dosed enced irvestment
companies

Some companies nvestirg n commeroial or residential property are structured as iisted exernaily maraged closed-ended
nvestment companes and trerafars form part of our .nvestment universe Aithough this 15 nat 3 Tedei usuaily favoured by
our Fund Mandger, some investments are made in these structures in order to accass 4 particular sector of the markat or
wnere the management team 15 regarded as sspecally strong If these companies grow and become 3 iarger part of our
investment unversa and,/sr new companies come to the market in this format the Manager may wisr 0 no2ase exposure
to these vehicles if the Manager wishes to Increase nvestment to over 1570, the compary wiil mak an announcament
accordingly



Key Performance Indicators
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The Board assessas the parformance of the Manager in meeting the Trust's objective against the foilowing Key
Performance [ndicators { '<2is")

KPl Board monitoring and outcome
y, 2=2Tmn ® The Board reviews the performance in detail at each meeting and
s a discusses the results and outlook with the Manager
The Directors regard the Company's net asset Outcome
value total return performance in comparison 5 Years
with the benchmark as baing an overall NAV Total Return* (Annualised) 3 12 13.6%

measure of value delwverad to the

; ) Benchmark Total Return
sharenolders’ over the wnger term

(Annualised) 5 6% 10 0%

w21 W ety rdthe Lompary
208 2arvestac or e

TN Totbn RSTLn s Ll aaten Ty e vy oy Te

Fom the zlevant sediicend de Inoerds 12
ex-dividerds Jdare far *pe bercemy

Sro

‘=2 on | @ The Board reviews statements on income racawed to date and

P L, L= e D T

YNNI e T el tarm income forecasts at each meeating

(R 5

The principal objective of tha Company is
a total return objectva, however, the Fund

Manager aiso ams to deliver a reliable Compound Annual Divdend

dividend with grawth over the ionger-term Growth* 10 7% 12 6%
Compound Annual RPI 24 23%
e tinal awiderd i ohie ime ser ey Jvicd oy Pe P n e 2 e e Denod ased o

e sower of Tdiviced oy be ramper o1 vears ke e 2

Tra Do~ 20 Trzom oy At ® The Board takes powers at each AJM to buy-back and issue
Amon Pma Taemoae s snacas trada shares When considening the merits of share buy-back or
N P T, issuance, the Board looks at a number of factors in addition to the
S mT o e e e e short and longer term discount or pramium to NAY to assess
Whilst expectation of Investment performance whether action would be beneficiai to sharaholders overall.

i5 a key drver of the shara price discount or Particular attention is paid to the current markat sentiment, the
premium to the Net Asset Value of an potential iImpact of any sinare buy-back actvity on the hquidity of
investment trust over tho longer-term, there the shares and on Ongoing Charges over the longer-term.

are perigds whan the discount can widen

The Board 1s aware of the vulnerabiity of a
sector-specialist trust to a change of investor 5 Years
sentiment towards that sector, and the impact Average discount* _2 0% 4 504
that can have on the discount

Outcome

Total number of shares
repurchased Nif 150,000

" Average Zaily disLOLRE IO :gP0uT the period 2 s i "0 Capitdd o v NAY
Source 3loomoerg




Key Performance Indicators
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L 3f Ongong Charges

The Board 1s conscious of expenses and ams
to delwer a balance between excelient service
and costs

The AIC definition of Ongoing Charges
ncludes any direct property costs in addition
to the management fees and all other
expenses ncurred in running a publicly histed
COMpPAny A3 nNo other investment trusts hold
part of thair portfoiio 1n direct property (they
either hund 100% of their portfoiio as
proparos s2cunties or as direct property), In
addton to Ongoing Charges as defined by
tne AL tnis stabistic s shown without direct
property costs to allow a clearer companscn
of overal administration costs with other
furds investing 0 secunties

The 3card mondors the Cngaing Charges, in
compar.san to a range of other Investment
Trists of 2 simular size, botn property sector
speciausts and other sactor specialists

rd monitoring and outcome

® [xpenses are budgetad for each financial year and the 8oard
reviews regular reports on actual and forecast expenses
throughout the year

Ongoing charges excluding

performance fees 063% 0.69%

Ongoing charges
excluding Performanrce rees and 0513 065%
Direct Property Costs

® [he ongoing cnarges are compettve when compared to the peer
group

Tre Camrpanry must continue to operats
n order to meet the requirements for
Secton 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act
20°3

® The Board reviews firanca nformation and forecasts at each
meeting which set out tre requirsments outlined in Secticn 1158

® The Directors belieue trat the condiions and ongoing
requirements nave beon mat n respect of the year to 31 March
2019 and tnhat the Company wil continue to meet the
requirements
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

in delivering long-term returns to shareholders, the Board must aiso .dentify and monutor the nsks that have been taken in
order to achieve that return. The Board has included below details of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company and the appropriate measures taken in order to mitigate these nsks as far as practicable

The nsks are all in line with the prior period and none are considered more or {ess significant than in the prior year.

Risk Identified | Board monitoring and mitigation

ST 272 price performs poorly in compatsan
> e undaryiing NAY

Thea shares of tha Company are fisted on the London Stock
Exchange and the share pnce 15 determmed by supply and
Jemand The shares may trade at a discount or premium to
the Company's underlying NAV and this discount or pramium
may fluctuate over time

The Bodard monitors the level of discount or premium
at which the shares are trading over the short and

longer-term

The Board encourages engagement with the shareholders
iha Board recaives reports at each meeting on the activity
of the Zompany's brokers, PR agent and meetings and
2vents Jttended by the Fund Manager

Tha or-pany's sharas ars available through the BMO
sharz scherres and the Company participates In the active
rmarkatng af these schemes The shares ars also widely
avallacle on open architecture platiorms and can be held

diectly thiough the Company's registrar

The Boasd takes the powers to buy-back and to 1ssue
shar2s at 2ach AGM

oL - - + . - Lo
oo mLestmant oarfarmance of tha

2ol o relatve 1o the penchmark

The Company's portfoho 1s actively managed in addition to
investrent secunties the Company also invests m commergial
property and sccordingly, the portfolic may not follow or
sutperform the return of the benchmark.

The Vlanager's abjactive 1s to outperform the benchmark
The Beard regularty reviews the Company's long-term
strategy and investmeant guidelings and the Manager's
reiatve positions against these

The Managament Engagerment Committes reviews the
Varage s performanca annually The Board has the
powers to change the Manager if deemed appropnate

vl <z
;2720 TeK

Both share prices and exchange rates may move rapidly and
acdversely impact the value of the Company’s portfolio

Although the portfolio 1s diversified across a number of
geographical regions, the investment mandate 1s focusad on
a single sector and therefore the portfclio will be sensitive
towards the property sector, as well as global equity markets
more generally

Property companies are subject to many factors which can
adversely affect their investment performance, these include
the general economic and financial enwronment in which ther
renants operate, nterast ates, avalability of nwvestment and

The Board recawves and considars a regular report from the
Manager detailing asset allocation, investment decisions,
curency expasures, geanng levels and ratonale in relation
1o the prevailing market condiions

The report considers the potental impact of Brexit and the
Manager's response in positioning the portfolio




Principal Risks and Uncertainties
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development finance and regulations issued by governments and
authonties

As highlighted since the result of the UK referendum n June 2076,
parts of the UK property market may be adversely affected by

Brexit The negotations continue and untl the structare of our
future relationship with Continental Esrope w5 clearar we zanng

fully asses impact on occupation across each sedtor In addinon any
strengthening or weakening of Stering will have a dirsct .rpact as a
propartion of our Balance Sheet s held in non-GBP denorinatad
currendies The carrendy exposJre 1s mantained in ine with =

1]

benchmark and wall change over time As at 31 Mach 2072 /237~
of tha fund exposure lles to currencies other than SG3P

oard monitoring and mitigation
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Lower samings :n the underiying porfolio patting pressare oo e

Company's ability to grow the dvidend coaid -asalt from 3 ~arser

of factors

® |ower eamings and distnbutions in investee compenies,

® prolonged vacancies in the direct property portfund

® strengthening Sterling reducing the value of sverseas duiderd
raceipts in Starling teims,

® adverse changes . the tax treatment of dvidends or other
income recewed by the Company, and

® changes in the aming of dwidend recaipts from investee
companies

The Company has seen a matenal increase in the level of 2arings

In recant years A significant facter in this nas been tre weakaning

of Stering following the Brexit decision This may raveise n e

near or medium term as the longer ferm mplications of 3 2xt and

the impact on the UK economy are understood, weading to a fail in

24rmings

® Tthe Board recenves and considers regular incorra
foracasts

® income foracast sensitivity to changes in FX rates 1s also
monitored

® The Comrpany has revenue reserves which can be drawn

upon when -eguired

LV
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Drsruption or falure of systares and processes undernirning
the servicas provided by third parties and the nsk that thase
suppliers provide a sub-standard service

® Third party service providers produce panodic reports 0 the
Board on theirr control environments and ousiness
continuation provisions on a regular basis

® The Management Engagemant Committee onsiders the

nerformance of sach of the senace providers on a reguler basis
and cansiders thair ongoing appointment and terms 2nd
conditions

® The Custodian and Oeposaary ara rasponsible for the

safeguarding of assets \n the avent of a loss of assats the
Depositary must return assats of an identical type or
corresponding amount Jniess abie to derronstrate that the
loss was the resuit of an svent beyond ther -eascnable
control
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risk Identified 1 Board monitoring and mitigation

finanaal nsks

The Company’s investment actwvities axpose [t to a vanety of
financal nsks which includs counterparty credit nsk, hquidity
nsk and the valuation of financial Instruments

® Detalls of these nisks together with the policies “or
managing these nisks are found in the Notes ta the
Financial Staterments on pages 64 to 88

- s [R—
[
' =

T N

8]

LOss o7 Invastmeart
The Company has been acceptad by HM Revenug & Custorns
as an investment trust, subject to continuing to meet the
relevant eligibiity conditions As such the Comrpany 1s exempt
from capital gaing tax on the prafits realised “rone the sals of
Investments

Any breach of the relevant ehigiblity conditions cauld lead to
the Company losing investment trust status ard 2eing subject
to corporation tax on capital gains redlised wathin the
Company's portfolio

® The Investment Manager moniters the investment
portfolio, ncome and proposad dvidend levels to 2nsurs
that the prowsions of CTA 2010 ara not breachad The
results are reported to the Board at each meating

® Theaincome forecasts are reviewed by the Company's tas
advisor through the year who also reports to the Bea? on
the year-end tax position and on CTA 2010 compliance

Legal regulaiony and rapoim g s

L

Failure to comply with the London Stock Exchange Listing
Rules and Disclosure Guidance and fransparengy rules, failurs
to meet the requirements under the Altarnatye tnvestment
Funds Directive, the provisions of the Companias Act 2006
and other UK, European and overseas legislation affacting

UK companies Failure to mest the raquirad accounting
standards or make approprate disclosuras in the Int2nm and
Annual Reports

® The Board recawves regular regulatory updatas from the

Manager, Company Secretary, legal adwisors and the
Auditors The Board considers these reports and
recommendations and takes action accordingly

® The Board receves an annual report and update from the
Depositary

#® ntarnal checklists and review proceduras ara m olace at

service providers

® The External auditor review Intenm & Annual Raports 2nd
audit year end Financial Statements

lnap2-opnate use 0° 32370

LIV

Geanng, either through the use of bank dect or through the
use of derivatives may be utiised from tire t3 ime Vwhilst the
use of geanng 1s Intended to enhanca the NAv total return, it
will have the opposite effect when the raturn of the
Company's investment portfolio 1S negative

® The Board recewves ragular reports from the Manager on

the lavels of geannyg in the portivlic These are considarad
aganst the geanng limits sat in the Investment Guidelines
and also in the context of current markat candirons and
sentiment

Parsonna

- .y e . P
chanzas a7 n,23 2 Liana

Loss of portfolio manager or other key staf

@ The Charman conducts regular meetings with the Fund

Management team

® The fes basis protects the care infrastructure and deoth

and quality of resources The fee structure incentivises
good performance and 1s fundamental in the anility to
retain key staff
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In accordance with provision C 2 2 of the UK Corporate Governance Code, which requires the Company to assess the prospects
of the Campany over the longer term, the Directors have assessed the prospects of the Company over the coming five years
This pericd 1s used by the Board duning the strategic planning process and the Board consider this pencod of ume approprate for
a business of our nature and size

This assessmient ta<as account of the Company's current position and the policies and processas for managing the panapa rsks
set out on pages 28 1o 31 and the Company's ability to cantinue 1 operation and meet s liabi.tes as they fall due over the
period of assessmment n mawng this staterrent the Board camed out a robust assessment of the pricpar nisks facing the
Company, including those that might threaten s business model, future performance, solvency and quedity

In reaching thew conciusions the Directors have reviewed five-year forecasts for the Comrpany wth sensitwvty analysis to a number
of assumptions, investee orpany dwidend growth, interest rate, foreign exchange rate, tax rate ard asset value growth

In the assessment of the viability of the Company the Directors have noted that:

® The Company “as a ong-terT nvestment strategy under which it invasts mainiy in readiy raal sabe, publicly Lstad secunties
and which restrcts the eve. of borrowings

® Of the current porttono, 8572 could be Iiquidated within ten tracing days

® Current assets excead curant iabiltes at the Balance Sheet Date At the Baiance Sheet Date e Corrpany nad £65 million
undrawn on its revoning 0an faciiies
® The Company .vests i el osiate related cormpanies which hold real estate assets, and nvests © cormmercal real estate

directly These mvestrents provide cash recaipts in the form of dmidends and rental incorre

® The Company s able @ taka advantage of its closed-ended Investment Trust structure and abie to 1oid a proportion of its
portfoio in less hqud diract property with a view to long-term outperformance

® The structre nas also cnab.ed the Company to secure long-term finanaing ELR 30 loan notas s5.ed .0 2016 are due to
rratare at par in 2025 and GBP 15m loan notes 1ssued on the same date are due to maturz at pat .n 2631

® The expenses of the Corpany are pradictable and modest in comparnson with the assets Regular and robust monitorng of
revenue and expend.tare forecasts are undertaken throughout the year

® The Company has no orrp'ovess and consequently does not have redundancy or other errployrent related liabilities or
responsibiliies

® The Company retains ste o ts assets neld by the Custodian whicn are subject "o further sategLards irposed on the
Depositary

® Thempact of 3raxt mas been consderad in both terms of effect on Sterling and impact on the U< commeraal property
market 73% of the portfono s exposad to currences other than Sterting and 7004 15 irvested dracth, ir UK commercial
property assefs

The following assumptions have been made in assessing the longer-term viability:

® Real Sstate will cantnue ‘o be an investable sector of iInternational stock mrarkets and nvestcrs will continue to wish to have
exposdre ‘o trat sector
® C(losed-ended investrent Trusts will continue to be wanted by investors and regulation or tax eg siaton will not change to

an sxtent o maka the stracture unattractive in compansan © other invesirent products

® The performance of the Comrpany wall continue o be satisfactory Snould the performance be ess tran the Board deems 1o
be satisfactory, it hias the appropriate powers to replace the Investment Manager

The Board has concluded that the Company will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they
fall due over the coming five years. The Company’s business model, capital structure and strategy have enabled
the Company to operate over many decades, and the Board expects this to continue into the future.
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Corporate Responsibility
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The Board has approved a corporate governance veting policy which, in its apimion, accords with current best practice
whilst maintaining a pnimary focus on financal retums

The exercise of votng nghts attached to the Company's portfolio has been delegated to the Manager who takes a global
approach to engagement with 1ssuers and their management in all of the junisdictions in which it invests The Manager 1s
required to nclude disclosure about the nature of their commitment to the Finanaal Reporting Camimittee’s Stewardship
Code and detaiis may be found at & 1aras zome

. CIEREN [t v =" ey o -
Envyiron ety o0t s, Aosoally Responsiale Investmans
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The Company considers that good corporate governance extends to pelicies on the envirgnment, employment, human
rights and comrunity relatonships Corporates are playing an increasingly important roie 0 global economic actvity and
the adeption of good corporate governance enhances a company’s economic prospects by raducing the risk of
government and regulatory intervention and any ensuing damage to its business or reputation

The Company nas adopted an environmental policy in respect of its investmants 0 both pnysical property and listad
property companies Witin the context of the averall aim of the Company to maximise sharaholdars’ returns the
Diractors wll seex to imit the Company’s and its investee companies’ impact an the environment and will comply with
all relevant iegisiation raiating 1o its operations and actwities

The enviranmental policies and behaviour of all the companies 11 which the Company nvests are takan into account in
degision making

Cood environmeantal management can play a role in overall nsk management and 2iso nave 4 financial impact in terms
of savings through erergy and water efficiency Where approprate the Manager will 2nigage with investee companies to
raise concerns about environmentai matters

So far as direct property investments are concerned, the Company conducts environmentar audits prior to purchase to
identify contaminaton or matenals considered environmentally harmful The Company wiil taka remedial action or
enforce tenant obligations to do so wherever appropnate Tne Company's advisars assass the environmental impact of its
properties on an ongoing basis and will take all necessary action to comply with environmentai responsibilities

The Company has no greenhouse gas emissions to report from the operations of the Company, nor does it have
respansibility for any other emissions produaing sources under the Companies Act 2006 {Strategic Report and Directors’
Reports) Regulatons 2013, including those within its underlying investment portfoiie

J

Dwetst, Terzz 2z2omung and Human Righis Pal o

The Board recognises the requirement under Section 414 of the Companies Act 2005 to detail information about emplovee
and human rights, inciuding nformaton about any palicies it has 0 refation to these mattars and effectiveness of these
polcies As the Trust has no employees, this requirernent does not apply The Company 1s not within the scope of the

UK Modern Slavery Act 2015 because 1t has not exceeded the turnover threshold and s therefore not obliged to make

a slavery and numan trafficking statement The Directors are satisfied that, to the best of their knowiedge, the Company's
principal supphers, which are listed on page 98, comply wath the provisions of the UK Madern Siavery Act 2015

The Board currentiy comprises four male Directors and a recruitment process 1s currantly ongoing as referred to in the
Nomination Committee Report on pages 43 and 44 fThe Board's diversity poiicy is outlined in more detall in the
Corporate Governance Report The Manager has an equal opportunity policy which s set out on its website

SO T T DL

By order of the Board
Hugh Seaborn

6 lune 2019



Directors

Hugh Seaborn

Dand Watson

Hugh Seabarn, joined the Board of the
Company on 24 luly 2007 and became
Charrman in July 2016 He is a Chartered
Surveyor and has considerable
axpenence In the property arena, he s
the Chief xecutive Officer of the
Cadogan tstate He was a memboer of
the Councll and Audit Commuttee of the
Duchy of Lancaster until December
2013 From 2000 to 2009, he was Chief
Executive Officer of the Portmar cstate
he 1s Charman of the Knightsbrdge
3usiness Group, Is past Chairman of the
cstates Business Growp and past
Chairman of the Westminster Prooerty
Owners Asscaiation

David Watson, jomed the 3oard of the
Compaary on 1 Apnl 2012 He Secame
the Semor ndeserdent Directar in July
2014 and was Chairman of the Audit
Committee petween | fanuary 20135 ard
30 Sentemper 2018 He s a Chartarad
Accauntart and has had a distinguisired
carear in the rinarcal Servicss ndustr
re spent 9 years as finance Jirector of
Ma&C Grous olg, where he was 3 directar
of four egquity imvestrent trusts, and
more recertly at Aviva ol as Chief
Finance Otficer of Avwa Cenera
Insurance He s curently Deouty
Chairman ot Caurtrpwide 2lc ard &
non-2xecutive director of Kames Camital
plc and rFermeas Furd Managers mited,
where te s Chairman of the Audit
Committee e .5 also Chairmar of

Ihe lenms & Rackets Assocation Larmited

Simaon Marnson

At

Tim Giibanks

rdenerdent of the manager and dre mermbers o the dudit Jormmittes

Simon Marrison, joined the Board of
the Company on 28 September 2011
Mr Marnsan 1s CEO of Zurope at LaSalle
investment Management and has
responsibility for a portfolio of over

20 bDillion across Europe Mr Marmson
has been 2ased in Pans since 1990
hawing staited his careerin London Untl
1997 he was a partner at dealey & Baker
{now Cushman & Wakefhield) and from
1997 to 2001 he was at Rodamco
where e became Country Manager for
France e joined LaSalle investment
AManagement i 2001 as Managing
Jrector for Continental Zurane and
hezame C=0 of the entre furopean
DLSINRSS 1IN 2007 Mr Marmson is due

to sten down as CEO of rurope at
LaSaile 'nvestment Managemert to
sezome Chairman as at 1 julv 20193

Tim Gillbanks, joned tha doard of the
Comaany or 23 January 2014 ard
secarre Audit Committee Charrman an
1 Octooer 2018 Iim s 2 Chartered
Aclaurtant, with 30 years experence r
the hinancial senaces and Investments
ndustry Viost iecertly he soent 15 years
at Columina Thraadneedls Irvestrments
nitially as Thiet finanaial Officer, then
Chiet Ooerating Officer and finally as
rtenm Chiet cxelut ve Othicer so onings
argad exsenence of nvestment
maragement to the Board He s also

a rustee of Socdwise
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GOVERNANCE

Vianagers

ta Ellott

Caorge Gay

ar

Aiban Lhonneur

Marcus Phayra-Mudge rund Maeragor 1oired the Management team for the Company at denderson
Glabal investors 0 laruary 139, 0 tally maragirg the Com2any's diact oraoerty sortfolio and latterly
focusing on real estate equities, managog 3 numoer of UK and Pan curopean real estate eguity funds
N addtion ta activities 1 the [rust Marcus moved to Thameas Rwer Capital in Octoper 2004 where he 1g
also fund manager of Thames River Arzperty Grawth & Income Fund Limited  Prior to joiming Henderson,
Marcus was an rvestment survey 30 at Cugnit rrack (1999) and was made an Associate Jartner in the
fund management diosion {1395) He Lalined as a Chartered Surveyor in 1992 and has a 85¢ (11ons)
N Land Management fom R2aairg Lonesity

Jo Efliott, Finarce Manager, nas Teen - ~area Vandger since 1995, first at Henderson Glaopal nvestors
then, since January 2005, at Thames Ruer Caotal, when she jomed as CFO for the property team she
joined Hendersan Slonal nvestars 1390, abere she mast recently held the zositien of Director of
Property, Minance % Doeratans Lo 2revoausy she was Cormorate Firance Mdanager with Lordon

and cdirpurgh trust 2le ard or.2r 1o trat was g investment/reasury analyst with Heron Corporaton 3ie
1o has a 352 (rlons) in Zoawegy rae the Urversity of Sottingham and qualiied as a Chartered
Accountant wath Zrst & Yourg 1928 Jos 1 oo Dxecutve Jrector and Audit Carmmuttee Chawr of Palar

Casital Glopal nirancals rust ol:

George Gay, Direct Pracerty rurc Vanager, nas 2een the Direct 2roperty Fund Manager since 2008

He jomned [hames Rner Zaoitanin 27°Co 35 assistant duect sroperty manager and quahhed as a

Chartered Surveycr i 2000 J22rge w35 dravicusly at nizne Tty investment agent. Morgan Pepper wiers
as an invastment graduata fe 3rroa caesderazle imdustry 2xperience He Nas an MA In Property
valuation and Law fram <ty Lriversit,

Aiban Lhonneur, Desuby rurd Viarages ored {hamres Rwiver Capital in August 2008 He was previously
at Citigroup Clopal Markats 35 3 zquitv Researzh aralyst focusing an Contirental curapean Real cstate
Prior ta that he was at Soc efe Cererale Secunties, where ne focused on transport equity research He has
a 35c in Jusiness and Maragemert om the =30 laulouse Incduding ane year at the drunel University,
Lardor He alsa attended JoAW Nice ~ign Busiress Schodd In 2005 be ootained 3 post graduate
Specalised Master  “panze ¢ 2205 fom 23CP-CAP



Report of the Directors

The Directors present the audited financial statements of the Group and the Company and their Strategic Report and
Report of Directars for the year ended 31 March 2019 The Group comprises TR Preperty investment Trust plc and its
wholly owned subsidianes. As permitted by legisiation, some matters normally included in the Report of the Directors
have been included in the Strategic Report because the Board considers them to be of strategic impertance Therefore
review of the business of the Company, recent events and outlook can be found on pages 4 to 32
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Status
The Company 15 an investment campany, as dehined i Section 833 of the Companies Act 2006, and operatas as an

investment trust in accordance with Secton 1153 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010

The Company has a single share class, Ordinary scares, with 2 nominal value of 25p each wrich are premium hsted en
the Londen Stock Exchangs

The Company has recewved confirmation from HM Revenue & Customs that the Company has been accapted as an
approved investment trust for accountng perods commencng on or after 1 April 2012 subject to the Company
continuing to meet the eligibility conditions of Secton 1158 Corporation Tax Act 2010 and the ongoing raquiraments for
approved companies in Chapter 5 of Part 2 imvasiment Trust (Approved Company) (Tax) Regulations 2001 (Statatary
Instrument 2011/2999)

The Directors are of the opinien that the Caompary nas conductad and will continue to conduct its affars so as to
maintain nvestrment trust status The Company nas also conductad s affars, and wall continue to conduct its affars, ¢
such a way as to comply with the Indwidual Savings Accounts Regulations The Ordinary shares can be heid in Indwdual
Savings Accounts (15As)

h -~ daa - P [
Rasults and Doyiden s
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At 31 March 2019 the net assets of the Compary amountad to £1,328m (2018 £1,256m), on a per share basis
418 54p (2018 395 64p) per share

Revenue earnings for the year amountad to 14 58p (2018 13 22p) and the Directors recommend the paymenrt of

a hnal dividend of 8 60p {2018 755p) per srara bringing the total dwvidend for the vear to 13 50p (2013 12 20p), an
increase of 10 7% for the full year in armvirg at thewr dividend proposal, the Board also reviewed the income foracasts for
the year to Marcn 2020,

Performance details are sat out .n the Finanaa Highlignts on page 1 and the outcome of what the Directors consider to
be the Key Performance Indicators on pages 25 3~d 27 Tne Chairman's Statement and the Manager's Repor® gwve fuli
details and analysis of the results for the vear

Share Caoal and 3 -cane 2o
At 1 Apnl 2019 the Company nad 31/330,380 {2013 317.350,980) Qrdinary shares in Issue

At the AGM n 2018 the Directors wera gven power to buy back 47,570,311 Ordinary shares 3inca this AGM e
Directors have not bought back any Ordinary sharss at the aominal value of 25p each under this authority Tre
cutstanding authority 15 therzfore 47.570,211 snaras

This authonty wil expira at the 2019 ASA Tme Company wil s2ok Lo renew the power to make markat purcrasas of
Qrdinary sharss at this year's AGM

-

Since 1 Aprl 2019 to the date of this report, tre Company has made no market purchases for cancellaton 1he oard
has not set a specific discount at whicn snares wil be repurchased
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Report of the Directors

Mlanagement Arrangemeants a0 Fa23s

Detalls of the management arangements and faes are set out In the Report of the Management Engagement
Commuttee beginning on page 46 Total fees paid to the Manager in any one year {Management and Performance Fees)
may not exceed 4.99% of Group Equity Shareholders’ Funds Total fees payable for the year to 31 March 2019 amount
to 0 9% (2018 1.2%) of Group Equity Sharzholders Funds. Included in this were performance fees eamed in the year
ended 31 March 2018 of £6,110,000 (2018 £13,188,000)
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The Group and Company financial staterrents for the year ended 31 March 2019 have been prepared on a going
concern basis in accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), together with interpretations of the
international Accounting Standards and Standing interpretations Committee approved by the International Accounting
Standards Cemmittee (JASC) that remain i effect, to the extent that they have been adopted by the turopean Union and
as regards the Group and Company financal statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies

Act 2006

The accounting pohicies are set out in note | to the Financal Statements on pages 64 to 63

Gomng Concam
The Directors’ assessment of the longar term wiability of the Company 1s set out on page 31

As the Board 1s of the opinion that the Company can continue in operation for the foreseeable future, being for a perod
of at least 12 months from the date that thesa financial statements were approved, it has been conduded that the going
concern basis should be adopted for the praparation of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Marza 2019

interna: Contols
The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's systems of internal controls and for reviewing their effectiveness

The Portfolio Manager 1s responsiblz for the day to day investment management decisions on bahalf of the Group
Accounting and company secretarial senvicas nave both been outsourced

The internal controls aim to ensure that tha assets of the Group are safeguarded, proper accounting records are
maintained, and the finangai information used within the business and for publication is reliable Control of the nsks
identified, covenng financial, operational, comphance and nsk management, 1s embedded in the controis of the Group by
a senes of regular investment performanca and attnbution statements, financial and nisk analyses, AiFvl and Portfoiio
Manager reports and quarterly controi reports Key nsks have been identified and controls put In piace t© miigate them,
including those not directly the responsibility of the AIFM or Portfolio Manager The key nsks are explained in mare detail
in the Strategic Report on pages 23 to 30

The effectiveness of each third party prowider's internal controls 1s assessed on a continuing bass by the Compiiance and
Risk departments of the AIFM and Portfalio Manager, the Administrator and the Company Secretary Each maintains its
own system of intarnal controls, and the Board and Audit Committee receive regular reperts from them The control
systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against matenal misstaterment or loss and to
manage, rather than eliminate, risk of faiure to achieve objectives




Report of the Directors

As the Company has no empioyees and its operational functions are undertaken by third parties, the Audit Committee
does not consider it necessary for the Company to establish its own internal audit function Instead, the Audit Committee
relies on internal controf raports recewved from its pringipal service providers to satisfy itsaif as to the controls 1n place

The Board has establishad a process for identfying, evaluaung and managing any major risks faced by the Group.

The Board undertaxes an annual review of the Group's system of internal cantrols in fine with the Turnbull guidance.
Business risks have alse been anaiysed by the Board and recorded 1n a nsk map that 1s reviewed regularly Each quarter
the Board receives a formal repart frem each of the AiFM, Portfolio Manager, the Administrator and the Company
Secretary detaling e steps takan to monitor the areas of risk, including those that are not d.rectly their responsibility, and
which report the details of any known internal cantrol failures
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The Board also carsiders the flow of information and the nteraction between the thurd party senvice providers and the
controls 1n place to ensure accuracy and completeness of the recording of assets and income The Board receves
a repart from the Portfoln Alanager setting out the key controls 1n operaticn

The Beard also has diract accass to company secretarial adwice and senvices provided by L.n< Company Matters
(previcusiy caiied Capita Company Secratanal Services) which, through its norminated reprasertative. 15 responsible for
ensunng that e Board and Committae procedures are followed and that apphcabie regulations ara compiied with.

Tmese controls nave baer i place throughout the perod under raview and Up to the date of s.gnirg the accounts
Key nsks -dentified by the Auditrs are considered by the Audit Commuttee to ensure robust intamal controls and

manitonng procaduras are.n piacs in respect of these risks on an ongoing bas:s

A} T - PR - — iy i
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The AGM wili be neld oo 23 July 2019 at 2 30pm The Notice of AGM is set out on pages 22 and 93 The full text of the
resclutions and an axpiaraton of each is contained in the Nouce of AGV and explanatory notas on pages 6 and 97

Viata- 30 -~
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There wers no contracss subsisting during or at the end of the year in which a director of tnie Cempany is or was
matznally interasted ard which 1s or was significant in ralation to the Company's business o Director nas a contract
of service with tha Compay Further detalls regarding the appointment letters can be found or page 44

The Company confirms that thera are ne itams which require disclosure under Listing Rule 9 3 42 1n respect of the year
ended 31 March 2013
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Report of the Directors

VOoLng imiEresn

Rights and Obligations Attaching to Shares

Subject to applicable statutes and other shareholders’ nghts, shares may be issued witn such nghts and restrictions as the
Company may by ordinary resolution deaide, or (if there i1s no such resolution or 50 far as it does not make specific
provision) as the Board may decide. Subject to the Articles, the Companies Act 2006 and other shareholders' nights,
unissued shares arz at the disposal of the Board

Voting
At a generai meeting of the Company, when voting 1s by a show of hands. 2ach sharza affords its owner one vote

Restrictions on Voting

No member shail be entitled to vote if he has been served with a restriction notic2 (3s defined In the Arucles) after
failure to provide the Campany with information conceming interests in those sharas raquired to be provided under the
Companies Act 2006

Deadlines for Voting Rights
Votes are exaroisable at the general meeting of the Company 1n respect of wnich tre business being voted upon is being
heard Votes mav be exarcised in person, by proxy, or in relation to corporate mermbers, by corporate representatives.

The Articles provide a deadline for subrmussion of proxy forms of not less than 48 hours (or such sherter time as the
Board may determing) before the meeting (not excluding non-working days})

Transfer of Shares

Any shares in the Company may be held in uncertificated form and, subject to the Articles, title to uncertificated shares
may be transfarrad by means of a relevant system Subject to the Articles, any member may transfer ali or any of his
certificated sharas by an instrument of transfar in any usual form or 10 any other farm wnch the Board may approve

Significant Voting Rights
At 31 Marzh 2019, no shareholders held over 3% of voting rights on a discrationary basis However, at 31 March 2019
the following snarenoclders held over 3% of the voung rights on a nen-discretenary basis

b of

Ordinary share

Sharaholder voting rights*
Brewin Doiprun Ltd 11.60%
Alliance Trust pic 6 56%
Ratnbone Investment Management Ltd 551%
Quilter Cheviot investment Management Ltd 4.78%
Investec YWeaith & Investment Ltd 4.510%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 4.40%
Charles Stanley Group pic 3.24%

T see aouve L brmes etormation on Pe voling ngnts of Ordindrv shares

Since 31 Marcn 2019 to the date of this report, the Company has not been informed of any notifiable changes with
respect to the Ordinary shares
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Corporata Governance Report

The Board of Directors 1s accountable to shareholders for the governance of the Company’s affairs

This statement describes how the prinaiples of the 2016 edition of UK Carporate Governance Code ("the Code™) issued
by the Financial Reporting Coungil (the "FRC™ in 2018 have bean appied to the affairs of the Company The Code can
be wiewed at . 172073 U

Application of the AIC Code’s Principles
in applying the principles of the Code, the Directors have also takan account of the 2016 Code of Cerporate Governance
published by the AIC (“the AIC Code™), which established the framawork of best practice speafically for the Boards of
Investment trust companies. There is some overlap In the principles 1a.d down by the two Cedes and there are some
aroas where the AIC Code 15 more flex.ble for investment trust companies The AiC Code can be viewad at

-1 .0 .. Following the update of the Code, the AIC Code has also been updated to reflect the changes
mp\emented by the Code, which the Board will report on for the year end 31 March 2020

Foliowing the pubsacation of the 2018 edition of the Uk Corporate Covernance Code, the Board, with assistance of the
Company Secratary, has undertaken a full raview of the Campany's governance, which apphes to the Company's financial
yaar commenang 1 April 2018, and will report further in due course

T=e Dirzctors believe that dunng the penod under review they nave complied with the main prnciples and relevant
provisions of the Cede, insofar as they apply to the Company's business, and waith the provisions of the AIC Code

Compliance Statement
The Directors note that the Company did not compiy with the foilowing provisions of the Code in the year ended
31 March 2019

I Due to the nature and structure of the Company the Board or non-=xecutve directors does not feel it is appropriate
to appoint a chief executive

C35&C36 Asthe Company has no empioyees and 1ts operationai functions are undertagen by third parties, the
Audit Committee does not consider it appropriate for the Company to establish its own internai audit function.

D 2 1 Tne Board does not have a separate Remuneration Commuttee The functions of a Remuneration Committae are
carred out by the Management Engagement Comimittee

Composition and Independence of the Board

The 3oard currently consists of four directors, ail of whom ara ran-executive and are independent of the Manager None
of the Directors have any other links to the Manager Mr Seaborn continues to quaify as independent, despite his length
of serace due to being independent of the Manager and from any other businass that could materally interfere with his
udgment The Board believes that diversity of expenence ard aporcdch, ncluding gender diversity, ameongst board
mambers 15 of graat importance and 1t 15 the Company's policv to give careful consideration to 1ssues of board balance
and diversity when making new appaintments.

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Company's Articles of Assoaaton, the Compamies Act 2006 and any directions given by special resoiution,

the business cf the Company 15 managed by the Board who may exaraise all the powers of the Company, whether relating to
the management of the business of the Company or nat In partcular, the 3oard may exeraise all the powers of the Campany
to borrow money and to mortgage or charge any of its undertakings progerty, assets and uncalled capitai and to 1ssue
debentures and other secunties and to give security for any debr, labut, or obliganon of the Company to any third party

I'ere ara ng coniracts or arrangements with third partes whicn affect, aiter or termuinate upen a change of controi of the
Company
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Report of the Directors

Diraciors

The Chairman 1s Mr Seaborn and the Senior Independent Director 1s Mr Watson. The Directors” biographies, on page 33,
demeonstrate the breadth of investment, commercial and professional experience relevant to their positions as Directers of
the Company

Directors’ retirement by rotation and re-election is subject to the Articles of Association in accordance with the Code, all
directors will be subject to annual re-election.

Mr Marnison, Mr Seabom, Mr Gillbanks and Mr Watson will ratire at the forthcoming AGM in accordance with the Code
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election Ai Directors are regarded as being free of any conflicts of interest
and no ssues in respect of independence anse The Board has concluded that all Directors continue to make valuatle
contnbutions and believe that they remain independent in cnaracter and judgement

Directors are not compensated by the Company for loss of office in an event of a takeover bid

3222 Commiteas

The Board has established an Audit Committee, a Nomiraton Committeg and a Management Engagement Commitiee,
which also carnes out the functions of a Remuneration Committze All the Directors of the Company are non-executive
and serve on each Committee of the Board It has been tne Company's policy to include all Directors on all Committees
This encourages unity, clear communication and pravents dupncation of discussion between the Board and the
Committees. The roles and responsibiliies of each Commitee ars set out on the ndividual Committee reports which
follow. Each Commuttee has written terms of reference which clearly defines its responsibilities and dutes These can be
found on the Company's website, are avallable on request and wili aiso be available for inspection at the ACM

LiJ
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satl Meaings

The number of meetings of the Board and Committess Feid dunng the year under review, and the attendance of
indwvdual Directors, are shown below

Board Audit MEC Nomination
Aterded Zigicie AR el SigiDie Alterged Zigole Attended Eligisie

Hugh Seaborn 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1
Simon Marrison & 5 2 2 | 1 1 1
Suzie Procter* 5 5 2 2 0 6] 1 1
David Watson 6 2 2 2 1 1 1 1
Tim Cillbanks B ) 2 2 | 1 1 1

* seae Procter ehired from the Bod.d ar 28 febran 2013

in addition to formal Board and Committee meetings, tre Duectors aiso attend a number of informal meetings to
represent the interests of the Company, and to discuss operational markets and succession planning

Tha Boa-d
The Board is responsible for the effective stewardship of the Company's affairs. Certain strategic 1ssues are monitored by
the Board at meetings against & framework which has been agreed with the Manager. Additional meetings may be

arranged as required The Board has a formai schedule of matters specifically reserved for its decisian, which are
categensed under varous headings, including strategy, management, structure, capital, financial reporting, internal controls,




Report of the Directors

R L T
RSN

gearing, asset allocation, share price discount, contracts, investment policy, finance, risk, nvestment restrictions,
performance, corporate governance and Board membership and appaintments

In arder to enable them to discharge their responsibilities, all Oirectors have full and timely access to relevant infarmation.
At each meeting, the Board reviews the Company's investment performance and considers finanaial analyses and other
reports of an gperational nature. The 3oard moritors comphance with the Company’s cbiectives and 1s respans.bie for
setting asset allocation and investment and geanng Imits within which the Portfolio Manager has discration to act and
thus supervises the management of the investment portfolio, which 1s contractually delegated to the Portfolo Manager
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The Board has responsibility for the approval of investments in unquoted investments and any mvestments in funds
managed or advised by the Partfoiio Managar it has also adopted a procedure for Directars, in the furtherance of their
duties, to take independent profess.onal advice at the expense of the Company

Conflats ¢
In line with the Companies Act 2006 tae 3eard nas the power to authonse any potential conflicts of intarast that may
anse and impose such imits or conditons as it tunks fit A register of potential conflicts 1s maintained and s reviews

at avery Board meeting to ensurs ail detass are «2pt up-to-date Appropriate authorisation wiil be sought pror to tne
appointment of any new Director or f any new conflicts anse

Ralanons ywth Shaemoiles

Shareholder relations are given high priorty by the Board, the AIFM and the Portfolio Manager The prime medium by
which the Company communicates with sharshoiders 1s through the Intenm and Annual Reports which aim to prowide
shareholders with a dear understanding of tne Company's activities and therr results This information 1s suppiemented by
the daily calculation of the Net Asset Value of the Company's Ordinary shares which 1s published on the London Stock
Exchange

This information 1s aiso avaiable on the Company's website, v T 2700 27, 22 together with 3 monthiy factsnest
and Manager ccmmentary

At each AGM a presentation is made oy the Manager following the business of the meeting Sharehoiders nave the
opportunity to address questions to thie Chairman and the Chairman of the Audit Committee at the AGM Al
sharenolders are encouraged to attand the AGM

it 15 the intention of the Board that the AnnLa Report and Accounts and Notice of the AGM be issued to srarenoiders 50
as to provide at least tventy working davs' notica of the AGM. Sharehoiders wishing to lodge questions 0 advarce of the
AGM, or to contact the Board at ary other time, are invited to do so by writing to the Company Secretary at the regrstered
address given on page §8.

General prasentations are given to beti snarsholdears and analysts following the publication of the annual rasuits
All meetings between the Manager and srareroiders are reported to the Board

D.rEziars Nz

Directors” and Officars’ liability insurance covaris in place .n respect of the Directors The Company's Articles of
Association provide, subject to the provisiors of UK legislation, an indemnity for Diractors in respect of costs wricn they
may ncur relating to the gefence of any proceedings brought against them anising out of ther positions as Diractors, in
which they are acquitted or judgement is gven .0 their favour by the court
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To the extent permitted by iaw and by the Company's Articles of Assaciation, the Company has entered into deeds of
indemnity for the benefit of each Director of the Company in respect of labilites which may attacn to them in therr

capacity as Directors of the Company These provisions, which are qualifying third party indemnity provisions as defined by

section 234 of the Companies Act 2006, were introduced 1n January 2007 and currently remain in torca

Diractors’ stasameart 25 50 250502 of information to audisars

The Directors who were members of the Board at the time of approving the Directors’ report are listed on page 33
Having made enquines of feilow diractors and of the Company's auditors, each of these Directors confirms that

® 1o the best of each Director's knowledge and belief, there 1s no information (that 15, Information needad by the
Company's auditors In connection with prepanng their report) of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and

& each Cirector has taken all tne steps a Director might reasonably be expectad to have taken to be awarz of relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that infermaton

Ttus information 15 given and snculd be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies
Act 2006

By order of the Board

Hugh Seaborn

[ —

6 June 2019




Report of the Nomination Committee

NOMIN2Yon Commitiee

Chairman Mr Seabormn

L
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Kay R250075 21,
® Roeview the Board and its Committees and make recommendatiens in relation to structure, size and composition, the
balance of knowledge, expenance and skill ranges,
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® Ccnsider succession pianming and tenure policy, and

® Review the outcome of the Board evaluation process

The Nomination Committee meets at least on an annual basis, and more frequently as and when required and last met

in January 2019

Vb e A e
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Tne Committze discussed succession planming of the Board, in partcular the roies of the Charman, Audit Commuttee
chairman and SiID to ensure appropnate plans were in place In Octaber 2018, Mr vvatson stepped down as Audit

Committae Cnairman and Mr Gillbanks assumed the role Mr VWatson remains as Senior Independent Director

Foliowing tne rasignaton on of Suzie Procter from the Board at the end of February 2013, a kay issue that the
Commuttee has considered this year Is the appointment of a new Non-Executive Director Tne Committee has engaged
an external recruitment company to assist in identifying potentiai candidates, wnich it has prowvided with a role profile
outhning the skils, attributas and expenience that the Board is seeking from a potentiai candidate A shert hst of
candidates has been compiled and is being formaily interviewed by the entira Committee When considering
appointments of diractars, the Commuttee looks at the balance of skils, knowiledge and experence, including gender
dwersity, on the Board

The Commuttes annuaiy reviews the size and structure of the Board and will contirue to review succession planning and
further recrutment and take into account the recommendations of externar Board svawations

o
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32 REES
in order to review tne effectiveness af the Board and its Commuttees and of .ts individual Directors, an evaluation was
carned out for the Board This was dane in the farm of a questionnaire The procass was cansidered by the Board to be
constructive 10 tarms of identifying areas for improving the functioning and perfarmance of the doard and the
Committees, areas for additionai focus going forward, the contnbuton of individual Dhrectors, as well as bulding on and

developing indwidual and coilective strengths

The Chairman's affectiveness was assessad by all other Board members and wiews fad back to the Senior independant
Director The Crairman and Sernior independent Director confirm that the performanca of each Director continues to be
effectve and demonstrates ther commitment to the role. This includes extensive time for ad hoc communications
thiougnout the year it addition to formal Board and Committee meenngs The 3oard oelieves it has a good balance of
salls, expenience, Independence and length of service to ensure it operatas affactuvely The performance of the Company
15 considerad in detall at each Board mesting In accordance with the provisions of tre Code, 1tis the intention of the
Buard to engage 2n externai faclitator to assist with the performance evaluation every trree years An external Board
evaiuation was iast camed out in January 2017

in accordance with the Code, ail Directors will be submitted for re-election on an arrual bass
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When a new Director s appointed, he/she is offered training to suit their needs Diractors are also provided with key
informaton on the Cempany's actvities on a regular basis, including regulatory and statutory requirements and internal
contrais Changes affecting Directars’ responsibilities are advised to the Board as they anse Diractors ensure that they are
updated on regulatory, statutory and industry matters

Loz I Ao meny

No Diractor has a contract of employment with the Company Directors’ torms and conditions for appointment are set out
i lettars of appointment which are avallable for inspection at the registerad office of the Company and will be on display
at the AGM

Hugh Seaborn

& June 2013




Report of the Management Engagement Committee

Manazement Engagement Committae

Chairman: Mr Seaborn
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e Alonitor and review the performance of the AiFM and Portfoie Manager,
® Raview the terms of the Investment Manager Agreement,

Annuaily review the contract of terms and agraements of each axternal third party service provider, and

Review, on an annual basis, the remuneration of the Directors

In additon to the investment Management roie, the Beard nas deiegatad to external third parties the depositary and
custodial services (which include the safeguarding of assets) the dav to day accounting, company secretarnial services,
admimistration and registration senvices Each of these contracts was ertered into after full and proper consideration of the
quahty of the services offered, including the control svstems in oparation insofar as they relate to the affarrs of the
Company

Tne Management Engagement Commuttee determines and appiaves Directors’ fees following proper consideration,
having ragard to the level of fees payabia to non-exacutive Diractors i the industry generaily, tha role that indvidual
directors fulfil in respect of Board and Committes respons binties and the tme committed to the Company's affars For
further details please see the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 48 and 49

The MEC meets at least on an annual basis, towards the end of the financial year and last met in March 2019
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At the MEC meeting in March 2013, the Commutiee reviewed tre overal performance of the AlFM and Portfono Manager
and considered both the appropriateness of the Manager's appowntment and the contractual arrangements (including the
structure and level of remuneration) with the Manager

in addition to the rewiews by the MEC, the Board raviewed ard considerad performance reports from the Portfoio
Manager at each Board meeting The Board alse recaived ragular reports from the Administrator and Company Secratary

Tne Board beieve that the Manager's track record and performanrce remains outstanding As a rasult, the MEC confirmed
trat the AIFME and Portfolio Manager shoutd be retained for the finarc.al year ending 31 March 2020 being in the best
interasts for all shareholders A summary of the significant terms of the Investment Management Agreement and the tivird
party sarvice providers who support the Trust are set out beiow

Curing the year the MEC also reviewed the performance of ail therr third party service providers including BNP Panbas,
Link Company Matters, Computershare, both the Company's broxars and PwC (as tax adwisors) The Portfolio Manager
provides reguiar updates on the performance of all third party providers dunng the year and attended this part of the
McC Meating The MEC confirmed that they wera satisfied with tne Tevel of services deivered by each third party
provider
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Nanagement Arrangemanis and raas
On 11 luly 2014, the Board appointed BMO Investment 3usiness Limited as the Alternative Investment Fund Manager

(in accordance with tha Alternative Investment Fund Managers Dwrective) with portfolic management delegated to the
investment Manager, Thames River Capital LLP

The significant terms of the Investment Management Agreement with the Manager are as follows:

Notice Period

The investment Management Agreement (“IMA") provides for termination of the agreement by either party without
compensation on the provision of not less than 12 montns’ written notice

Management Fees

The fee for the perod under review was a fixed fee of £3,565,000 plus an ad valorem fee of 0 20% pa based on the
net asset value (determined in accardance with the AiC method of valuation) on the last day of March, lune, September
and December, payable quarterty in advance

The fee arrangements have been reviewed by the Board for the year to 31 March 2020 and will be unchanged

The Board continues to consider that the fee structure aligns the interests of the shareholder and the Manager as well as
being highly competitive.

The fee arrangements will continue to be reviewed on an annuai basis

Performance Fees

in addition to the management fees, the Board has agraed to pay the Manager performance related fees in respect of an
accounting period if certain performance objectives are acnieved

A performance fee is payable if the total return of adjusted net assets (after deduction of all Base Management Fees and
other expenses}, as defined in the IMA, at 31 March 2ach year outperforms the total return of the Company’s benchmark
plus 19% (the “hurdle rate™), this cutperformance (2xpressed as a percentage) is known as the "percentage
outperformance” Any fee payable will be the amount equivalent to the adjusted net assets at 31 March each year
multipiied by the percentage outperformance, then multipiied by 15% The maximum performance fee payable for

a period is capped at 1.5% of the adjusted net assets However, if the adjusted net assets at the end of any penod are
less than at the beginning of the peniod, the maximum performance fee payable will be imited to 1% of the adjusted net
assets.

if the total return of sharehelders’ funds for any performance penod is less than the benchmark for the relevant
performance period, such underperformance (expressed as a percentage) will be carried forward to future performance
periods,

if any fee exceeds the cap, such excess performance (expressed as a percentage) will be carned forward and appiled to
offset any percentage underperformance n future performance penods. In the event that the benchmark 1s exceeded bt
the hurdie 1s not, that cutperformance of the benchmark can be used to offset past or future underperformance These
amounts can be used for offset purposes only and therafore cannot have the effect of creating a fee in a year where

a fee would not othenwise be payable or increasing the fee in that year. At 31 March 2019 there 1s a cany forward of
outperformance of | 8% (2018: 1 8%)
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Na fee will be payable unless the adiusted net assets outperfarm the hurdie rate, after taking into account any
accumulated percentage underperformance brought forward at the beginning of the finanaai year Parformance fees
earned 1n the year ended 31 March 2013 were £6,110,000 {2018° £10,188,000) Total fees paid to the Manager n any
one year (Managemeant and Performance Fees) may not exceed 4 99% of Croup Equity Shareholders’ Funds Total fees
payable for the year to 31 March 2019 amount to 0 9% (2018 1 2%) of Group Equity Shareholders’ funds
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BNP Paribas was appointed as Depositary an 14 July 2014 10 accordance with the Alternatve Investment Fund Aanagers
Directive The Depesitary's responsibilites inciude cash monitoring; segregation and safe keeping of the Company’s
financial instruments, and monitorng the Company’s compliance with investmant and leverage requirements fhe
Depositary receives far its senaces a foa of 20 basis points per annum on the first £150m of the Company's assets,

| 4 basis points per annum on assets above F£150m and below £500m and © 75 basis points on assets above £500m
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Custody and Administration Servicas are provided by BNP Paribas and Company Secretariai Services by Link Company
Matters The fees for these sarvices are craiged directly to the Company and are contaned within otrer admastratve
expenses disclosed in notes to tre accourts

Hugh Seaborn

& June 2019
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Introc Jzoon

The Board nas prepared tnis report and the Directors’ Remuneration Poilcy, in accordance with the requirements of
Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2013 An
ordinary resclution for the approval of this report will be put to the members at the forthcoming Annuai General Meeting

The law requires the Company's Auditars, KPMG LLP, to audit certain of the disclesures provided whera disclosures have
been audited, they are «ndicated as such. The Auditor's opinion 1s included in the 'Independent Auditor's Report’

Annual Satement o 2 Charman of the Commties

The MEC met in Marcn 2013 and consdered the feedback received as part of the Board evaiuaton aiongside other
factars Non-executive fees of listad companies continue to nse, and the regulatory burden continues ever upwards
Following the MEC meeting in March 2019, it was agreed that Non-executive Director’s fees would be increased from
£34,000 to £35,000 witn effect from 1 Apnl 2019 it was also agreed that those Directors hoiding tre role of Audit
Chairman and Senior Independent Director would continue to recewve an additionar £5,000 to reflect their additonal
responsibility It was further agraed that the Chairman’s fee wouid remain at £70,000 per annum

DIF2I1073 AT LTIl T

The Company's policy s that the fees payable to the Directors should reflect the tme spent by the Board on the
Company’s affars and the responsibilites borne by the Directors and should be sufficient to enabie candidates of high
calibre to be recruted The poncy 15 for the Chairman of the Board, the chairman of the Audit Committes and the Senior
Independent Director to be paid higher fees than the other Directors in recognition of their more onerous roles This policy
was approved by the members at the 2017 AGM, and the Directors” intention 1s that this waili continue for the year ending
31 March 2020 In accordanca with the regulations, an ordinary resolution to approve the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
will be put to Shareholders at ieast once every three years, this 1s next due at the 2020 AGM

The Directors are remunerated . the form of fees, payable manthiy i arrears, to the Director personally or to a
third party specified by that Dwector There are no long-term incentive schemes, share option schemes or pensaon
arrangements and tne fees are not specifically related to the Directors’ performance, ether indwiduaily or coilectively

The Board consists entirely of Non exacative Directors, who are appointed with the expectation that they wiil serve for

a penod of trae years Dirsctors’ appomntments are reviewed formally every three years theraafter by the Board as

a whaole None of the Directars have a contract of service and a Director may resign by notice in writing to the Board at
any time, there are no notice periods The tarms of their appointment are detaiied in a letter to them when they join

the Board As the Directors do not have sarvice contracts, the Company does not have a policy on termination payments

There s no notice periad 2nd no payments for loss of office were made dunng the period The Company's Articles of
Association currently hmit the total aggregate fees payable to the Board to £300,000 per annum

Shareholders’ views In raspect of Directors’ remuneration are communicated at the Company's AGM and are taken into
account i formulating the Directors remaneration policy. At the last AGM, over 98 5% of sharsholders votad for the
resolution approving the Diractors’ Remuneration Repeort (1 420 against), and cver 98% voted for the resolution
approving the Directors’ Remuneration Palicy (1 5% against), showing significant sharehoider support.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019, Directors’ fees were paid at the annual rates of Chairman £70,000 (2018.

£70,000) and ak other directors. £34,000 (2018 £33,000) An additionai £5,000 s paid per annum for each of the
rotes of Audit Committee Chairman and Senior independent Director. The actuai amounts pad to the Directors during
the finanacal year under review are as shown below

" Amount of each Director’s emoluments (audited) D
" Thafzes pavable n respect of 2ach of the Directars who served duning the franc.al vear were as follows
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31 March 2018 S \arr 2018

E g !
; Hugn Seabom 70,000 70,000
‘ Simon Marrson 34,000 33,000
© Suzie Procter {retired 28 February 2019) 31,167 33,000
Davd Watson 41,500 43,000
Tim Gilbanss (Joined 23 January 2018) 36,500 6,388
Jonn Gian (i2trad 25 July 2017) 0 10,409

i Total 213,167 195797
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The grapn beicw compares, for the eight years ended 31 March 2013, the percantage cnange over each penod in the
sharz prce total return to shdrenolders compared to the share price total return of beacamark, which the Board
considers te be th2 most aporoprate benchmark for investment performance measurament purposes An explanation of
the performance of the Company s given in the Charrman's Statement and Warager s Report

CoaITTCI mrEtaTTTT 3natag (5 Jiady Perfaormance Graph - Share Prica Total Return
‘ for Ordinary Shara Class
The interasts of tre Diractars 10 the shares of the - ~
Company, at the heginning and at the end of the year, or T
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Since 31 mMarcn 2019 ko the date of this report, there
have meen no subsequent changss to the Directors’ et cimal i Ly etoral PvestTert it e

N 30 _ 0 So oy WA s DS s ource Tures Swaer L3t )
interests i e snares of the Company

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay For and on beralf f te 3oard

P2 Lanfdde
2019 2003 =R S
£000 v [SEACFN Hugh Seaborn
Dividends paid 33,510 35,067 126790 . - - -

Diractors Fees 213 186 367% 5 June 2019
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Chairman Mr Giilbanks
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® Review tne intemal financial and non-finanaial controls,

® Raview raports from key third party service providers,

® Consider and recommend to the Board for approval the contents of the draft Interim and Annual Reports,

® Raoview accounting polices and significant finanaial reperting judgements,

® \lomitor, together with the Manager, the Company's comphance with financial reporting and regulatory requirements,
and

® Raview the findings, performance and remuneration of the external auditor

Representatives of the Manager's internal audit and complance departments may attend these Committee meetings at
the Commyttee Chairman's request

Representatives of the Company’s Auditor attend the Committee meetings at which the draft internm and Annual Repart
and Accounts are reviewed, and are given the apportunity to speak to the Commuttee members without the presence of
the representatives of the Manager

The 3oard racognises the requirement for the Audit Committes as a whoic to Fave competence relevant to the sector
and at least one member with recent and relevant financal experience Dur.ng the year, Mr Watson stepped down as
Chairman of the Audit Committee and Mr Gillbanks assumed the role The Charman and Mr Watson are Chartered
Accountants with extensive and recent experence in the Financial Senvices industry The other members of the
Committee have a combination of property, financial, investment and business expenence through senior positions held
througnout their careers

.
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During the year the Committee met twice with all members at each meeting and considered the following:
® Tne Group’s Internal Controls and consideration of the Reports thereen and Risk Map,

® The ISAE/AAF and SSAE 1S reports or their equivalent from F&C and BNP Paribas,

® Whether the Company should have its own internal audit function,

® Tne mpact and processes relating to the recent regulation, and the continuing requirements under MIFID i, the
requirements under PRIIPS and GDPR,

® The txternal Auditor's Planning Memorandum setting out the scope of the annual audit and proposed key areas of
focus.

® The reports from the Auditor concerning its audit of the Financial Statements of the Company and consideration of
significant issues in relation to the Financal Statements;

® The appropriateness of, and any changes to, the accounting pailcies of the Company, including the reasonableness of
any Judgements raquired by such policies,
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® The Viability Statement and consideration of the preparation of the Financial Statements on a Going Concern Basis
taking account of forward looking ncame foracasts, the Lguidity of the investment partfolio and debt profile;

® The financial and other disclosures in the Financial Statements,

® The nfermaton presented i the Interim and Annual Reports to assess whether, taken as a whole, the Reports are
fair, balanced and understandable and the mformation prasented will enable the shareholders to assess the
Company's performance, business model and strategy, and
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® The performance of the external auditor, to approve thew audit fees and consider the assessment of independence

A P .
2mal contals ang managarart o s

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's system of interal Controls and for reviewing therr effectivencss. Key
risks identified by the Auditors are considerad by the Audit Committee to ensure that robust internal contrals and
monitoring procedures in respect of these are in place on an ongoing basis Further detaiis can be found on pages 28
to 30

The Audit Commuttee receved and considerad raports or intarel Contiols from the key service providers No areas of
concern were Righlighted

The Company's Risk Map was considered to identfy any new nisks and whether any adjustments were required to
existing nsks, and the controls and mutigaton measures i piace in respect of thesa risks

Based on the pracesses and cantrols in place within the 30O Croup and other significant senvice providers, the Board
has concurred that there s no current need for the Comrpany to have & dedicated internal audit function
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The Committae has considered this report and Financ.al Statements and the Viability Statement on page 31 The
Committee consderad the Auditor's assessment of ris« of matenai misstatement and reviewed the internai controls in
place n respect of the key areas identfied and the process by which the Board monitors each of the procedures to give
the Committee camfort on these nsks on an ongoing basis These risks are also highlighted 1n the Company's Risk Map

® Valuation of the Group’s Quoted investments — The Group's investments are priced for the dailly NAV by
8NP Panbas The quoted assets are priced by e Admumistrator's Global Pricing Platform which uses independent
external pnaing sources The control process surrounding tis s set out 1N the BNP Panbas ISAE 3402 internal
Controls Report and testing by the reparting accountant for the perod reparted to 31 December 2018 did not reveal
any significant exceptions The gquarterly controi rapert to tre Board from BNP Panbas coverng the period up to
31 March 2019 had no issues to report. in addition the Manager estmates the NAY using an alternative pricing
source on a dally basis as an independent check

e Valuation of the Group's Direct Property Investment - The physical property portfoiio is valued every
s months by professional ndependent valuers

Kmight Frank LLP value the portfolo on the basis of Far Value in accordance with the RICS Valuation — Professional
Standards VPS4 (1 5) Fair Value and VPCA 1 vailuatons for Inclusion in Financiai Statements, which apply the
defintian of Fair Value adopted by the internaticral financial Reporting Standards IFRS 13 detines Fair Value as

“The amount for which an asset could be exchunged. o habiity settled, or an equity mstrument granted could be
exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm s fength transaction”
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in undertaking their valuation of each property, Knight Frank have made their assessment on the basis of a collation
and analysis of approprate comparable investments, rental and sale transacticns, together with evidence of demand
within the vicinity of each property This information has then been applied to the properties, taking ite account size,
location, terms, covenant and other matenial factors

® The Impact of uncertainties due to the UK exiting the European Union - the impact of Brexit has been
considered In both terms of the effect on Sterling and the iImpact of the UK commercial property market 73 of tha
portfolio exposure 15 to currencies other than Starling and 7% of the portfolio is invested in U< commercial property
assets

There has been nothing brought to the Commuitte
t

s attention In respect of the financial statements for the per.od erded
31 March 2018, which was material or significant or

or that the Committee felt should be brought to shareholders’ attention.

Audior assessmeant 313 ndEoet iz I

The Company's external auditor, KPMG LLP was appointed as the Company's auditars at the 2016 ACM The Committee
expects to repeat a tender procass no later than 2026 in respect of the audit for the following 31 March year end, n ane
with the latest Corperate Covernance provis.ons and clf Requrements

During the year, KPMG presented e Audt Plan for the year end at the intenm Committee meeting and the Comrmittae
considered the audit process and fee proposar Tne Committee also reviewed KPMG's independence policies and
procedures including quality assurance procadures It was considered that these policies are fit for purpose and the
Directors are satisfled that KPMG are independent

Total fees payable to the Auditor in respect of the audit for the year to 31 March 2019 were £70,000 (2018 £70,000),
which were approved by the Audt Committee

During the year ended 31 March 2018 fees of £15,000 were paid to the Auditor in respect of the audit of subs.diares of
the Company for prior periods

The Commuttee has approved and implementad a policy on the engagement of the Auditor to supply non-audit services,
taking 1nto account the recommendations of the Accounting Practices Board with a view to ensuring that the externai
Auditor does not provide non-audit servicas that fave the potential to impair or appear to imparr the independence of
their audit role The Commuttee does not believe thara to be any impediment to the Auditor’s objectivity and
independence

The fees for non-audit services for the year to 31 Adarch 2019 were nil (2018 nil)
Full details of the Auditar's fees are provided 0 nota 5 to the accounts on page 70

Following each audit, the Committee reviews the audit process and considers its effectiveness and the quality of tne
services provided to the Company The review foilowing the completion of the 2019 Audit concluded that the Commitee
was satisfied with the Auditor's effectiveness and performance The Committee felt that KPMG had run an effective and
efficient audit process with appropriate chailenge The Committee was satisfied with the Auditer's performance and

a resalution to re-appoint KPMG 1P as the Company’s Auditor wil be put to shareholders at the fortncoming AGMI

Tim Gillbanks

6 June 2018



Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation to
the Group financial statements

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report, the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Raport and the financial
statements in accordance with applicabie law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare group and parent company finanaal statements for eacn financal year
Under that law they have elected to prepare both the group and the parent company financiai statements in accordance
with Intemnational Financal Reporting Standards as adopted by the Furopean Union (IFRSs as adoptad by the EU) and
applicable law.
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Under company law the Diractors must not approve the financial statements uniess they are satished that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affars of the group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that perod  In
prepanng each of the group and parant company finanaal statements, the Directors are required to

® select suitable accounting policies and then appiy them consistently,

® make judgements and estimatas that are reasonable, relevant and reliable,

® state whether they have been preparad in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

® assess the graup and parant company's ability to continue as 2 going concern, disclos.ng, as appicable, matters
related to going concar, and

® uUse the going concern bass of aczounting unless they erther intend 1o hquidate the group or the parert company or
to cease operations, Or Ndve No readstc altemative but to do so

The Directors are responsibe for xeeping adequate accounting records that ars sufficient to snow and expriain tne parent
company’s transactons and disclose witn reasonable accuracy at any me the financial positon of the parent company
and enable them to ensure that .ts iinancial statements comply with the Companies Act 2008 They are respunsible for
such intermal control as thay determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial stataments taat are free from
matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taring such steps as are
reasonably cpen to them to safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other wrragulantes

The Directors are responsibie for the mantenance and integnty of the corporate and finangial informaton inciuded on the
company's websde Lagisiaton in the UK governing the praparation and dissemination of inarc.al statements may Jdiffer
from legislation in other jursdictons

R252005 D =, 3iata e
Each of the Diractors listed on nags 33 confirms that to the best of their knowledge

® the financial statements, preparad 1n accordance with IFRs as adopted by the Furopean Uruen, gve 2 true and far
view of the assets, labilities, financial position and profit of the Group and Company and the undertakings included in
the consoldation taken as a wrole, and;

® the Annual Report, wncludes a farr review of the development and performance of the business and the position of
te Trust, together with a descrpuon of the principal risks and uncertanties that it faces, and

® the accounting records nave been properly maintained, and

® the Annual Report, takan as a whaie, s farr, balanced and understandabie and prowides the necassary .nformatien for
shareholders to assess tre company's position and performance, business model and strategy

By order of the 3oard

Hugh Seaborn

6 June 2013
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to the members of TR Property InvestmentTrust plc

1 Ouropintonis unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of TR
Property Investment Trust plc (“the Company”) for the
year ended 31 March 2019 which comprise the Group
Statement of Com prehensive income, Group and
Company Statement of Changes in Equity, Group and
Company Balance Sheets, Group and Company Cash
Flow Statements and the related notes, ncluding the
accounting policies in note 1

In cur opinien.

— the financial statements give a true and far
view of the state of the Group's and of the
parent Company's affars as at 31 March 2019
and of the Group's return for the year then
ended;

— the Group financial stataments have been
properly prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as
adopted by the EU),

— the parent Company financial statements have
been properly prepared In accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the £U and as appled in
accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006; and

— the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requrements of the
Companies Act 2006; and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the JAS
Regulation
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We conducted our audit In accordance with
International Standards on Auditing {UK) [*ISAs (UK)")
and applicable faw Ourresponsibilities are described
below. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained 1s a sufficient and appropriate basis for our
opinion.  Our audit opinion 1s consistent with our report
to the audit committee.

We were appointed as auditor by the directors on 2
November 2016 The period of total uninterrupted
engagement s for the 3 financial years ended 31
March 2019. We have fulfiled our ethical
responsibilities under, and we remain independent of
the Company in accordance with, UK ethical
requirements (including the FRC Ethical Standard as
appled to lsted public interest entities  No non-audit
services profubited by that standard were provided

Materiality: £13.9m {2018. £13.7m)

group financial )
statements as a 1% {2018' 1%) of Total Assets

whole
Key Audit Matters vs 2018
New risk The mpact of
uncertainties due to
the UK exiting the
European Union on our -~
audit
Recurring risks Valuation of direct 4p»

property investments

Carrying value of »
guoted investments




2 Key audit matters. including ourassessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of mostsignificance n the audit of the financial
statements and include the most significant assessed nsks of materialmisstatem ent (whether or not due to fraud) identified by us,
including those which had the greatest effect on. the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the
efforts of the engagement team We summarise below the key audt matters inarriving at our audit opinion above, together with our
key audit procedures to address those matters and, as required for public interest entities, our results from those procedures These
matters were addressed, and our results are based on procedures undertaken, in the context of, and sclely for the purpose of, our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion therecn, and consequently are incidental to that opinion, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The risk Qur response

The impactof Unprecedented levels of uncertainty: We developed a standardised firm-wide approach to the
uncertainties due to consideration of the uncertainties arising from Brexit in planning

the UK exiting the f;"a:g::;gi::zi?ni;gaa”te:??nthe and performing our audits
European Unionon & ’

our audit particular as described in valuation of Qur procedures included.
direct property investments below, and . R ) R
(Group and Parent relatad disclosures and the — Our Brexit knowledge —We considered the directors
Company) appropriateness of the going concern assessment of Brexit-related sources of risk for the Group's
business and financal resources compared with our own
f f the f !
Refer to page 29 basis of preparation of the financia understanding of the nsks We considered the directors’ plans

statements. All of these depend on

assessments of the future economic to takeaction to mitigate the risks.

{fprincipal nsks), page 31
{viability statement)

page 7 (Manager's environment and the Group's future — Sensitivity analysis - When addressing valuation of direct
Review) prospects and performance property nvestments, we compared the directors’ analysis to
our assessment of the fuil range of reasonably possible
In addition, we are required to consider scenarios resulting from Brexit uncertainty

the other information presented in the
Annual Report including the principal
risks disclosures and the viability
statement and to consider the directors’
statement that the annual report and
financial statements taken as a whole 1s
fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for Our results:
sharehoiders to assess the Group's
position and performance, business
model and strategy

— Assessing transparency - As well as assessing individual
disclosures as part of our procedures on valuation of direct
property investments we considered all of the Brexit related
disclosures together, ncluding those in the strategic report,
com paring the overall picture agamnst our understanding of the
risks

— As reported under valuation of direct property investments,
we found the resuiting estmates and related disclosures in
respect of the degree of estimation and sensitivity to key
assumptions made when valuing the direct property
investments to be acceptable We also found disclosures in
refation to going concern to be acceptable However, no audrit
should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all
possible future iImplications for a company and this 1s
particularly the case n relation to Brexit

Brexitis one of the most significant
economic events for the UK and at the
date of this report its effects are subject
to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of
outcomes, with the full range of possible
effects unknown.

KPMG



2 Key audit matters: including our assessment of risks of material misstatement (continued)

Therisk Our response

Carrying value of Low risk, high value:

ted investments
quo nv The Group's portfolio of guoted

investments makes up 85.0% (2018.
89.1%) of the Group's total assets (by
value} and 1s one cf the key drivers of
results We do not consider these
nvestments to be ata high risk of
significant misstatement, or to be
subject to a significant level of
udgement because they comprise liqud,
quoted investments However, due to
their materility in the context of the
financial statements as a wholg, they are
considered to be one of the areas which
had the greatest effect on our overall
audit strategy and allocation of resources
in planning and completing our audit.

(Group and Parent
Company}

{£1,189 5 million; 2018:
£1,217 9 milion}

Refer to page 51 (Audit
Committee Report)
page 66 (accounting
policy) and pages 73-76
(financialdisclosures)

Qur procedures included:

— Tests of Detail: Agreeing the vaiuation of 100 per cent of
quoted nvestments in the portfolio to externally quoted
prices, and

— Enquiry of custodians: Agreeing 100 per cent of quoted
nvestment holdings In the portfolio to ndependently recewved
third party confirmations from investment custodians.

Our results:

— We found the carrying amount of guoted mvestments to be
acceptable (2018 acceptable).

Therisk Qur response

Valuation of direct
property investments

Subjective valuation:

7 3% (2018. 7.2%) of the Group's total

(Group and Parent assets (by value) are held in Investment

Company) properties.
(£101 9 million; 2018. ,
£98.0 mlion) The farr value of each property requires

significant estimation, in particular over
the key assumptions of the estimated
rental value and the vield. The key
assumptions will be mpacted by a
number of factors including location,
quahty and condition of the bulding and
tenant credit rating

Refer to page 51 (Audit
Committee Report),
page 65 (accounting
policy) andpages 73-76
(financial disclosures)

The effect of these matters is that, as
part of our risk assessment, we
determined that the valuation of
investment properties has a high degree
of estimation uncertainty The financial
statements disclose the sensitivity
estimated by the Group.

KPMG

Our procedures included:

— Assessing valuer’'s credentials: We evaluated the
competence, experience and independence of the external
valuer,

Methodology choice: We held discussions with the external
valuer to understand the valuation methodology used;

— Benchmarking assumptions: We held discussions with the
Group'’s external property valuer to understand movements in
property values For a sample of properties where the far
value movements were outside our predetermined
thresholds, we challenged the key assumptions used by the
valuer upon which these valuations were based, including
those relating to forecastrents and yields, by makinga
comparnson to our own understanding of the marketandto
industry benchmarks;

Assessing transparency: We also considered the adequacy
of the Group's disclosures about the degree of estimation and
sensitivity to Key assumptionmade when valuing the
investment properties

Our results:

— We found the Company's valuation of investment properties
to be acceptable (2018. acceptable)




3 Ourapplication of materiality and

an overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the group financial statements as a whole
was setat £13.9m (2018. £13 7m), determined with
reference to a benchmark of total assets, of which it
represents 1% (2018° 1%)

In addition, we applied materiality of £3 3m (2018 £2 3m)
to investment income, other operating income, gross
rental Income and net revenue returns on contracts for
difference, for which we believe misstatements of lesser
amounts than materialty for the financial statements as a
whole could reascnably be expected to infiuence the
Company's members’ assessment of the financial
performance of the Group.

Materaality for the parent Company audit was set at
£13.2m (2018 £12 9m), determined as 0 9% of the total
assets of the parent Company {2018. 0 9%).

We agreed to report to the Audit Commttee any corrected
or uncorrected dentified misstatements exceeding
£695,000(2018 £683,000), in addition to other identified
misstatements that warranted reporting on qualtative
grounds

Our audit of the Company was undertaken to the materialty
level specified above and was performed at the
admmistrator’s office in Dundee and in KPMG's offices in
Edinburgh

The audit team performed the audit of the Group asif it
was a single aggregated set of financial nformation. This
approach 1s unchanged from the prior year The audit of
the Group was performed using the Group materialty level
set out above

Total Assets
£1,399m (2018.£1,367m)

Materiality
£13 9m {2018 £13 7m)

£13.9m

Whole financial statements
maternality

(2018 £13 7m)

£13.2m
Parent company materality
(2018.£12 9m)

£0.7m
Misstatements reported to the
audrt committee (2018. £0 7my)

#Total Assets

KPMG

We have nothing to report on going concern

The directeors have prepared the financial statements on the
going concern basis as they de not intend to liquidate the
Group or Company or to ceaseoperations, and they have
concluded that the Group and Company's financial position
means that this is realistic, They have also concluded that
there are no materialuncertainties that could have cast
significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going
concern for atleast a year from the date of approval of the
financial statements {“the going concern period”).

Our responsibility 1s to conclude on the appropriateness of
the directors' conclusions and, had there been a material
uncertainty related to going concern, to make reference to
thatin thus audit report. However, as we cannot predict all
future events or conditions and as subsequent events may
result in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements
that were reasonable at the tme they were made, the
absence of reference to a materialuncertainty in this
auditor's report 1s not a guarantee that the Group will
continue 1N operation

In our evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we
considered the inherent risks to the Group’s business
moadel, nciuding the mpact of Brexit, and analysed how
those risks might affect the Group's financial resources or
ability to continue operations over the going concern period
We evaluated those risks and concluded that they were not
significant enough to require us to perform additional audit
procedures

Basedon this work, we are required to report to you if:

* we have anything materialto add or draw attention to in
relation to the directors’ statementin note 1 to the
financial statements on the use of the going concern
basts of accounting with no material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt over the Group and
Company's use of that basis for a penod of at least
twelve months from the date of approval of the financial
statements; or

« therelated statement under the Listing Rules set out on
page 36 1s materially inconsistent with our audit
knowledge.

We have nothing to report in these respects, and we dd
not identify going concern as a key audit matter



We have nothing to report on the cther informationin
the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information
presentad in the Annual Report together with the financial
statements Our opnion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion or, exceptas explicitly stated
below, any form of assurance cenclusion thereon.

Qur responsibility 1s to read the other mfermatien and, n
doing so, consider whether, based on cur financial
statements audit work, the mformation therein 1s materially
misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or
our audit knowledge Based solely on that work we have
not dentified matenalmisstatements inthe other
information

strar=2am eyl a b drwlilTy Tuta ot
Based solely on our work on the other information:

— we have not identified material misstatements inthe
strategic report and the drectors’ report,

— in our opnion the information given in those reports for
the financial year 1s consistent with the financal
statements, and

— In our opnicn those reports have been prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006

[ R S LI

In our opinion the partof the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited has been properly prepared n
accordance with the Companies Act 2006

BO03. 2T 0 L ndl s

Basedon the knowledge we acquired during our financial
statements audit, we have nothing materalto add or draw
attention to in relation to

— the directors’ confirmation within the Viability Statement
on page 31 thatthey have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal rnisks facing the Group,
including those thatwould threaten its business model,
future performance, solvency and liguidity,

— the Principal Risks disclosures describing these risks
and explaining how they are beng managed and
mitigated, and

— the directors’ explanation in the Viability Statement of
how they have assessed the prospects of the Group,
over what period they have done sc and why they
considered that period to be appropriate, and their
statement as to whether they have areasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to continue n
operation and meet its labilities as they fall due over the
period of ther assessment, including any related
disclosures drawing attention to any necessary
qualfications or assumptions

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the
Viabllity Statement We have nothing te report in this
respect

KPMG

QOur work 15 imited to assessing these mattersin the
context of only the knowledge acquired during our financial
statements audit As we cannot predict all future events or
conditions and as subseguent events may resultin
autcomes that are nconsistent with judgements that were
reasonable at the tme they were made, the absence of
anything to report on these statements s not a guarantee
asto the Group’s longer-term viability.

DLt GOV e C0E IS0 05 T
We arerequired to report to you If

— we have dentified material inconsistencies between the
knowledge we acquired during our financial statements
audit and the directors’ statement that they consider
that the annual report and financial statements takenas
a whole 1s farr, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to
assess the Group’s posrtion and performance, business
model and strategy, or

— the section of the annual report describing the work of
the Audit Committee does not appropriately address
matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee

We arerequired to report to youf the Corporate Governance
Statementdoesnot properly disclose a departure from the
eleven provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified by the Listing Rules for our review

We have nothing to report in these respects

We have nothing to report on the other matters on
which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report
to you if, in our opinion’

— adeguate accounting records have not been kept, or
returns adequate for our audnt have not been received
from branches not visited by us, or

— the financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreementwrth the accounting records and returns, or

— certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made, or

— we have not receved all the nformation and
explanations we require for our audit

We have nothing to report in these respects




7. Respectiverasponsibilities
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As explained more fully in ther statement set out on page
53, the directors are responsikle for: the preparation of the
financial statements including being satisfied that they give
a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine
IS necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due 1o fraud or error, assessing the Group and
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern,
and using the geing concern basis of accounting unless
they either intend to lguidate the Group or Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
S0

N e e e s
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Cur chjectives areto gbtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
materialmisstatement, whether due to fraud or other
rregulanties (see below) or error, and 1o 1SSUE QUr OpINICN 1N
an audtor’s report. Reasonable assurancers a high level of
assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with 1SAs (UK} will always detect a materal
misstatemeant when it exists Misstatements canarise
from fraud, other irregularities or errar and are considered
maternalif, ndwvidually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users takenon the basis of the financial
statements

A fuller description of our responsibilities 1s provided on the
FRC's website at : C LI

I L IR

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could
reasonably be expected to have a materialeffecton the
financial statements from our general commercialand
sector experence, through discussion with the directors,
the nvestrment manager and the administrator {as requrred
by auditing standards) and discussed with the directors and
the manager the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations

We communicated dentified laws and regulations
throughout cur team and remained alert to any indications
of non-complance throughout the audit

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the
financial statements vares considerably

Firstly, the Group 1s subject to laws and regulations that
directly affect the financial statements includng financial
reporting legislatien (including related companies
legislation), and s qualfication as an Investment Trust
under UK tax legislation, any breach of which could lead to
the Group losing various deductions and exemptions from
UK corperation tax, and we assessedthe extent of
complance with these laws and regulations as part of our
procedures on the related financial statement tems

KPMG
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Secondly, the Group 1s subject to many other laws and
regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in
the financial statements, for instance through the

im position of fines or Iitigation We identified the following
areas as those mostlkely to have such an effect the
Listing Rules and certain aspects of company legislation
recognising the financial and regulated nature of the
Group’s activities and its legal form Auditing standards Imit
the required audit procedures to identify noncomplance
with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the directors
and management and inspection of regulatory and legal
correspondence, if any These imited procedures dd not
dentify actualor suspected noncomplance

Owing to the inherent Imitations of an audit, there 1s an
unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
materialmisstatements in the financial statements, even
though we have properly planned and performed our audit
n accordance with auditing standards For example, the
further removed non-com plance with laws and regulations
(rregularities) 15 from the events and transactions reflected
n the financial statements, the less likely the inherently
Iimited procedures reguired by audning standards would
dentufy 1 |naddition, aswith any audit, there remamned a
higher risk of non-detection of irregulanties, as these may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrapresentations, or the override of internal controls, We
are not responsible for preventing noncomplance and
cannct be expected to detect noncomplance with all laws
and regulations

8 The purposeofour audit work and to whom we owe
our responsibilites

This report 1Is made solely to the Company’'s members,asa

body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Quraudit work has been undertaken
50 that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters we arereguired to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibiity to anyone other than the Company and the
Company’'s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opintons we have formed

Richard Kelly (Senior Statutory Auditor}

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

Canary Wharf

London

E14 5GL

& June 2019



Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

P P

Year ended 31 March 2019 Claroned 3 Alarsh 2014
Revenue Capital R Capital

Return Return Total e LT . Tota
Mt £'000 £000 £000 Cor =000

Income
Investment incorna 2 44,77 — 44,71 41,267 - 40,267
Other operatng income 4 674 - 674 135 - 495
Gross rental income 3 3,659 — 3,659 3371 - 3,971
Senvice charge inzome 3 1,608 - 1,608 1,537 - 1,397

Gains on investments held at
fair value 10 - 96,594 96,594 - 140,470 140,470

Net movement on fore.gn
exchangs, mvestments

%] and Inan notes - (1,463) (1.483) - (2,847 {2.845)
g—l Net moverrent on foregn
= exchange, zash and cash
7 equivalents - (508) (508) - 921 921
g Net retums on centracts
=z for difference 10 6,469 18,380) {11,911 4024 6,558 10,982
5
Total Income 57.181 16,243 133.424 50,754 144,904 195,658
Expenses
Management ang performance fees 5 {1,514) {10,653) (12,167) (1.339) (14,355) (15,744)
Direct property expenses r=nt
payable and sersice charge costs 3 (1,930} - {1,940) 11,947y - (1,947)
Other adrmunistrative 2xpensas 6 (1,271} (564) {1.835) (1.303) (558) (1,866)
Total operating expenses (4,725) (11,217) (15,942) (=534 (14,913) (19,557)
Operating profit 52,456 65,026 117,482 46,1110 129,997 176,101
Finance costs 7 (851) (2,554) (3,405) (772) (2,070 (2,342)
Profit from operations
before tax 51,605 62,472 114,077 45,334 127921 173,259
Taxaton 3 (5.351) 3,479 (1.872) (3,383%) 2,326 (1,057)
Total comprehensive income 46,254 65,951 112,205 41,955 130,247 172,202
Earnings per Ordinary share 3 14.58p 20.78p 35.36p 1323p 41 04p 54 26p

The Total column of this statement represents the Group's Statement of Comprehensie Income, prepared in accordance
with 1FRS The Revenue Return and Capital Return columins are supplementary to this and are prepared under guidance
publishad by the Assocation of Investment Companies All tems in the above staternent derve from continuing
operations

The Group dees not have any other Income or expense that 1s not included n the above statement therefore “Total
camprehensive ncome” s also the profit for the year,

All income 1s altributablz to the shareholders of the parent company

The notes on pages 54 to 38 form part of these Financal Statements,



Group and Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Group
Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary Total
For the year ended 31 March 2019 Notes £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2018 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,089,088 1,255,559
Toral comprehensive income - - - 112,205 112,205
Ditcdendds pend 17 - - - (39,510} {39,510)
At 31 March 2019 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,161,78% 1,328,254
Company
Share Share Capttal Retained
Capital Premium Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary Tatal %
For the year ended 31 March 2019 Moes £000 £'000 £'000 E000 £000 E
At 31 March 2018 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,089,088 1,255,559 ,%
ol corprehensive income - - - 112,205 112,205 %
D IGens paid i7 - - - (39,510} (39,510) §
m
At 31 March 2019 79,338 43,162 43,871 1,161,783 1,328,254 é
Group
Soar- ore I Retame
NETEER s Rl pror SN
. LU R e e T2
For the y2ar ended 31 March 2013 S K - Sone Dot SERE
At 31 March 2017 79333 13,132 43971 851,953 1,118,424
Total comprebensive income - - - 172,202 172,202
Dradands pard 17 - - - (35,067} (35.067)
At 31 March 2018 72334 43172 43,971 1,089.083 1255559
Company
S EE caprl Peram st
A o " e T !
oo X it et T T
For the year ended 31 March 2018 Caer RN i ST =7
At 31 March 2017 79,333 43,162 43,971 951,953 1,113,424
Toral comprehensive Income - — — 172,202 172,202
Dradends paid 17 - - - (35,067) {35,067)
At 31 March 2018 79,333 43,162 45,971 1,089,088 1,255,559

Tre notes on pagss 6+ to Ad form part of these Financial Starermerts
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Group and Company Balance

Sheets

Group Company SULLp CopE
2019 2019 215 e
“r £006 £000 £ 30 e
Non-current assets
Investments held at fair value 10 1,291,442 1,291,442 | 316046 1,316,046
Imvestments in subsidianes 19 - 50,442 — 50,470
1,291,442 1,341,884 1,316,046 1,366,515
Deferred taxation asset 12 243 243 213 243
1,291,685 1,342,127 1,316,289 1,366,752
Current assets
Debtors 12 54,892 54,770 32574 32,452
Cash and cash equivalents 52,282 52,280 18114 18,110
107,174 107,050 50,688 20,562
Cunent habiies 13 (12,520) (62.838) (52.543)  (102.837)
Net current assets/(liabilities) 94,654 44,212 (1,855) (52.325)
Total assets less current habilites 1,386,339 1,386,339 1.314134 1,314,434
Non-cureent abilites 13 {58,085) (58,085) (58,875) (58,875)
et assets 1,328,254 1,328,254 1,255,559 1,255,505
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 14 79,338 79,338 793,338 79,338
Share premium account 15 43,162 43,162 43162 43162
Capital redemption reserve 15 43,97 43,971 43,971 43571
Rerained sarmings 5 1,161,783 1,181,783 1,085,088 1,089,083
Equity shareholders” funds 1,328,254 1,328,254 1,255,559 1,255,559
Net Asset Value per:
Ordinary share =] 418.58p 4218.54p 395 64p 335 64p

These financial statements were approved by the directors ot TR Property Investment Trust ple (Company No 84492) and

authonsed for 1ssue on 6 Jure 2019

H Seaborn

Tea e

The notes on pages 64 to 88 form part of thesa Financial Statements



Group an_d Company Cash Flow Statements

for e s

Group Company Lrap oo
2059 2019 2000 4
£000 £000 RN ey
Reconciliation of profit from operations before
tax to net cash inflow from operating activities
Profit frony cperations before tax 114,077 114,077 173,259 173,254
Finance costs 3,405 3,405 2,842 2,842
Gains on investments and denvatives held ar
fair value through profit or loss {78.214) (78,186) (1345,823) (14n727)
Net movement on foreign exchanga, cash and zash
equivalents and loan notes (292) {292) 134 1365
(Inzrease)/decrease N accrued income (1,129) (1,129) 218 213
Net sales/{purchases) of investrrents 115,685 115,685 (19433 (12148
(Increase)/decrease in sales settlernent delbior (3,334) (3,334) 8.253 8,233
increase,/(decrzase) in purchase serderent croad o 1.474 1.474 (5,859 (3 223)
Increase in other debtors {18,350) (18,350) (27100 (2730
(Decrzase),'ncrease i other Sraditors 371 (3.737) ERERS ERES
Serip dividends included ininvestmen: moore 374
net returns on contracts for ditferance (9.162) (9,162) (4,22J) (4.920)
Net cash inflow from operating activities
before interest and taxation 120,449 120,451 14.214 14732
Interast paid (3,391) (3,391) (2774) (2,773)
Taxation paid (1,872) {1,872) (1,625} (1.525)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 115,186 115,188 8815 5,330
Financing activities
Equity dividends paid (39,510) (39.510) (33,087} (33 2a7)
(Rzpayment)/drawdown of loars {41,000) {41,000) 35,000 353,000
Met cash (used in), from financing achutias (80.510) {80,510) 933 933
Increase in cash 34,676 34,678 10,743 177523
Cash and cash equivalents at start of sear 18,114 18,1140 6,443 5,420
Net movement on foreign exchange, cash and cash 2auvalents (508) {508) 921 271
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 52,282 52,280 18,114 18,710
Note
Dricends receved 46,249 46,249 42 097 12097
Interest recewed 669 669 484 43

The notes on pages 64 to 8a form part of these Financial Staterrents
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Accounting policias

[he hnanaal staterments inr *he vear =nged 31 March 2019 have bean prepared on a going concern basis, N azoordan~— with
intarnational Fnancial Reportng Standards (IFRS), whizh comprise standards and interpretaticns approved Dy tha 'ntermanenal
Arcounting standards Board (1AL8), 1 -g=mer with interpretations of the international Accountng Standerds and Standing

Interpratatiens Comumilize anphove i 5, e ntermatonal Accounting Standards U\r“tmvt‘%ﬂ (1ASL) that rermam i eit=ct, to ihe

ext=nt that they hays been adoot-2 5, "be Lirenean Urnn and as r=gands the Comipany finanoal statemerts 25 1sphed w
accordance with the provisions 21 e O w“pemues Act 2006 The financial statzments Pave alse Deen preparad o 3 o 1aroe it
the Statemert of R2tmmmanasd Pra-to— 1 30RE), “Finannal Statements of Investment Trust Compari=s 293 Vapt2 Capns!
frusls,” i the extent thar itis -

algt2r i PR
The Growp and Con*paf‘v fina zial statzments a2 oxoressed in Starhing, akich s thar functioral and prasertatonal ¢ineroy

S the cuntaray of th2 primany economic envircnmant o eabich the Jrosr aporaves

srerhing s tho funcioral curero
values arz roundad fa rr rezr2st thonsan | pounds (£73030) except wherc otherwise ndicated

Key estimates and judgements
The preparanor of the Snanaal starc ot o

=33ar by raguires the exercise of judgement, both i appiizaton o 2
22ton of assurrphions used in the calzulaton of estirarzs Thase ¢3f

oLy

i gres ard

polcics, which arz set out bolow, an b u o

o5 and ara centinually evaluated based on histoncal o2 AN othar faTers

[udgameants arz2 ravevied or T ey D on
Howow o actual iesal’s may dirfa fron boae osarrates Thi ondy koy 2stmatens considorsd tc be h ”1‘udt‘.tr1 2t strrent

propartes Sew secten (fy of thie anrs Thers are not corsdened o be any oy judgemants
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a) Basis of consolidation
The Group firancal staterrents Zorsondet. e rnanaal statermants of the Zorenany and sts subsidianes 12 31 Va2 213 Al

the subsichanes oany cas L e o censohcated a these finanaal statemens
the subsidhares of the Corrp, )

In accordance with IFRS 1D the Covrpary hias beer designated as an invasmment antty on the basis that

&t obraes furds from ay osters ard mrovedes ross i vestors with investirent ingnagemenrt senvices,

® |t commuts to 15 nvasters Fhat ts Busing

HDese 1s o invest salely for returns from capral appracianen and ryaseron:
income, ard

¢ |t measares ard 2valiaies pec prar e o sabstannally &l of its invesimeants on a3 fair value Bass

Eack of tha subsihanes of the Comparm, 222 astabiishad for the sole purpose of aperanng or supponting e ievestrmer eoatene of

the Zompamy (rcludirg raseg arldimoral rraraprg) and s not itself ar investment entity IFRS 10 sats cur that r k2 case of cortrolled

anlies that support the imeestmer. adnib, 2 ko mvestment entity, those antites sheuld be corsaliiated ratt or *han prosarted as

nvastmcnts at far salue Accordirgy 2 Comrary has consclidatad the resuirs and firanaal pesirans of those subsiharcs

Subsidianes are corschidated rom e dave gt thar 2cguesition, baing the date on whieh the Camipary ootains tonrel ora

continue fu be onsulidated et o dare t‘r‘at sun contol ceases The hinanaal statements of subsidignes wsed » e oronarstion

ot the zonsolidated nnanual statements st hasad on consistent accourting polices All intra-group bdld:mus and trarsadticns

Hldudlﬁg Un2dsed profts ansed e are elminated This s consstent with the oresontation TIOVILUS v 2l

b) Income

Diwidends rec2ivable ony eguiny shar s are o oated as revenue for the year on 20 ex-dawsgend basis Abore no eedosdenc dens s
available, deaidends - civable om0 Ser v the year end are treatud 36 revence for the year Provision s madce o ars Jduidonds not
expectad to be rerened YWhore tf 2 Sronn has 2lerted to recews these dvidends in the form of additional sharss tather han . ash
the amount of cash drnadend furegoee s rerogimsed as mvorme Differences betveer the value of shares rencned ar d the ash
dnadend foregore are ravogrsed i the caotal retems of the Croup Statement of Comprehensive Income Tha facd ~aturs on debt
securbies an: reoogrised on a e cprorcrmen: s 5o as 0 reflect the effective yield oneach such secunty, Interest see e able
from casl and shor* term deposits s ac.ned to the end of the year Stock lending neonre s racogrsed or an aczmidls Dasis
Lnderaniting omimissian s tak2n fo reverue, tnless ary shares undenuntten are reguired (o be taken op,irowhich case the
preportiendte commission recsned s dedicea from the cost of the investrent,

Recogmivon cf property rental ncame 13 st sut 0 secior () of this note,
Recognimon of income from cortracss of differanca is set outin section (g) of this note

<) Expenses
All wxpenses and fnanc2 zosts are acccunted for oe an aciruals Basis An analysis of retained carmings broken doun inte = orue and

o2 D

capdal itams & ghen in note TS0 armang 3t this Dreakdowny, espenses Pave been presentad as reveniie 2ims axcopr as follows



Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

-~ Vo e sy E
I AZCountng pouci2s connp el
*  Expenses waith arz inodental o the acguisition or disposal of an invesument,

of the walue of tre Investments

vhrere a connection with the mantanance or enhan.en

& Expenses ar- presented as ¢
car he demonstiated, this mdudus irrecoverable VAT incurred on costs rzlating to the axtonso

af resrdential legses as
prereiuns acsne d tor a¢endirg or termmating leases are recognesad i the capital azzeuny,
®  Cne guancr of *he base managerrent fee is charged to revenue, with throe quarters allocared -o capital retun to reflect the

Boart's a\pe:rg.hcr.s ot long rerm investment returns Al performance fzas are charg=d o :ap\‘a r2tun,

¢ Th-iflng a2, wir, depositary, tustody and company secretanal senices are chargad =iyt the Company and are

inoiveed wir Liner adrinistraive expenses’ nrote & These expenses are charged nn fhe saime Dasis 3s the base

manag= Tent e, ore qrartar 1o income and teee gquarters o capial

d) Finance costs
he firarce £250 w rosp=nt of capral nsirdmerts ctfer than equity shares 1s cal. alarad so 33 '0 = 3 22nstant rate of returs on

=

he autstanding baroce wre quarr of tha trance cost 1s charged f¢ revenu- and *hree 202 s 22oal =t

e) Taxation

Coreart "2y a5 biae lles are raasored anthe amount espacte 1 to Ea r2iovers [ iror orpore o os fasation avthorties,

oas2d 2t ooyl am g ekl 03t are eradtad or substantvely enactel 2y the balarte shes La'e

I B UL dtas o tems fratars U T PP T A ] A T AN AT AT
[ o Statorrent of Coneor =f eree nIoms
Ve tas 2t Giberert e o zpsndgilre 15 alccated ehieen capital and revepue Lsng o= Lo o5 effectyz rare of tas for
syl Tho marie o Senaon 13 besed o iz proit o the vaer and Lakas e acurt e ¢ 2. 22030 se o lemiperan
derarres Sar sen e ey rent o certan @S for idxaton and acoouning purooses

In aceoriarce o tne -ecommendatons of the SURE the allocation methad Lsed ro falcu'z2 3« relie” on expenzes presertad
agairst 2aotdl re'urts e supplerrentany infromation in the Sfaremant of Comprzitersie e 2z » ke frarainal bass”
Lnder s bass fozeliercome s capable of berg offser entraly by axpenses prasentzd i e r2er e retuen Jovren of tha

Sraterrent or Jomprarensye Ircore then oo rag renzf s transterred 1o the Cap

Duferr d g 2o ey epucid toohe ravable or rocovemzb’ 2 oo diffcrences Senoon the sane ey el 7y o aseore and Nabiees i the

Balar 2 Sf et ond e or sspording tav bascs wead e the computanon of maxable crehs anc s g contel o Lang the Balance sheet

habbir, mcted Too st may babalities ars cecegnived for all tavable e porany Gitfonec cos ana dotor corae a2t arz v ogmised to the
axtertthan e crenathe thet tavable pronts wil e avalable ggarst wvhich deductole tarmpetan, Ao el con o Lthred

The Comroar 5 or ruvesrent tust under 3 1138 of e Cornoration Tax Aot 234005 and, a4 5.3, & 0 o atie 01 Tag on capital

gans, Canta g unc arw1g n suebs'diany Torpanes are sube o tapral gans as

f) Inuestment property
es T ent orozetty 5 measteag ntialy at costircliding rarsaclion €S Trarsation DI g

Jetrarsfor taves, professional

“aps for ! gl 3o 1720 and nifial leasing commissions to bnng the prooz-"‘ ‘¢ he condimon nersssan o 'o be capable of

CDETAL™ T The JA7y g Amoun asc Inciutdes the cost of replacing part of ar existing nussi=n prInert tme that cost (s
acarred (s rooend are mel Tha purchase ard sale of oroo=ries 8 r200gnise L 1o e 2ieed on the date
aral > Ar= =xchanged

ot ba eocogninon, mvastnoent property s siated atfarvalee Sarser'o

TR P frare g g in fhe tar values

ar2andhudad ke Greep $atemoet of Zomprzbensine ncomain the yzarin abech s anes
v

Iryesriran iy, g

Javerathas been disposcd of or nerman=aty, oathdrer oo s and ne lure =oonom, -

Cere™ . e tat 10or ity Qspesdl Any gains of losses arz ree grsed n e Croup Sareren 007 pichersve Inesme e the
yedr v dispr sl

Zams ar 25,05 o0 be dizpesal af invesiment proparty are Jetarrined 25 the differercs Deryewsn 2o isoesal piocesds and the

carmarg e see et ab the date ab disnosa’

Revaluation of investment properties
Tl Gstrert progerios at far value e accosdance wath IFR>

3, revaiue e 1oeas sath cnerges in fa,

M Crop o2
valuas ey s o s s 'ha Creup statemert of Zomprzhanswe Income The Droun 2eaazen kg™ rank LV as

indeponaan Ldvat e spenalists o detormina far valus as ot 31 Mareh 2o
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T Accountng policies won

Valuations of investment properties
Mrororrrinann of the fan value of investment propertios aas feen prepared on the Bass dete od By the RICS Valustion Standards
Ath Ediven (The Red Bunk) as followis

s punt farwhich a preperty should exchange on e date of Laluaton oy on vading Bover and 2 wailling seller inan
8 ;
ar s lomgHy frorsa en after proper rearketng whieren tho parbies had earh actod bncededoany rodenthy and without compuleicn”
L 5 ¥ ; ¥

"The st

Tr e vl demon Lakes Into account future Cash #on from asscts (ach a5 lettngs, enans pronles e rvenue strears, Lapital vaiues
af fngincs 20 tuegs plant and machmeny, any environmental matters and the ovorall par 2o ondieer of the property) ard
discourt oz nnicabie o those assets Trese dsaurmipiions are: bas 2d 20 fecdl mars et Lo Smuns exiying at she balance sreet date

a3 o esfemiates of far values s at 31 M @Ich 2013, the Lalues Dav s Luod e rrarket knowledge and professicnal
g o e a7 have ot only relied selely on Pistoneg! transactioral Zomnanabhes Forales of ot 1@ the valtugtion <an be
secr i the s e sty aralysls disdosed inonete 10¢5)

Rental income
Rerat n e rocevable under onerating leases 15 recognised on a straghiin= fosis o2 Ve rerm of the ledsg, axept ‘or

contng=nt ool eooree phath srecognised wher tanses

= F e T znler o ledse agreements ars spraad 2v=nh over ne letas o 2ierf fhe payments are not made
O ST 1 Dass The ledss termas the nor cancellable pennd of e e se toge e v oo u e tzrm for which thz fenart has

the _pLer b corheue the ledse, where, at the incention of the 'zase, the Jrector 47z r2aan

voaerain that the tenant ol

)
=4
(TN}
=
ey
=X
o
(-]
=
=4
=
L

=x2t 7 se thar ophior Bremiums racersed to terminats or extend 'eases aiz rerogni- o2 0 e Ceptan ac eent of the Group
STatertert o Tomprznensie Incomea when they anse

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants
moom= e sng toam espenses rechdrged o terants s recogersed 0 the encd e e T e —eperse 2t be contiactually

feriueres Lerae charg=s and other such r2eeipts are included grss of the rela =d s b reveree 15 the directors Zonsids:

IhAtth- e LD 3t as anncipal iy Fs fespert

g) Investments

Whon 3 ur_bas 2 or sale s made under contract, the ternes ot which recurs Sebuor, wre o B Cametrare of the relovant miarker,
3

the my2stments cong e d ans recognised of derscogmised on the frads gate

Nhe Groes s sestments are defved uider 1IFRS as awestiments designatcd 4, tar saie drough profir orloss but are also

doscmbod i e mraneal statsments as imvestreents held at fair velue

A vestroorts are dosignatad upon mital recogniton as held at farvale and are measur2 o 5 Esequent raperting datos at
far varee abich, for quoted nvestments, s deemed tu be cosing press for stucts sourL sl irem Soronean stock 2achanges ard

f21 3FTE wiwtks sourced from the Londen Stock Excharge SETS is the Locdur Stocs Eacman e 2'edionic tading senitce covanng
mest ui the arket wonding all the FTSE AN -Share ard the most gued WL orstiuents Chouotxd investments of Investnras
fur it shore s only an inachive market are held at favr value whidy s Dased or vaiarers made Ly the diraders in accercance

Wb IPFLCA quidelires and usiog curent market prces, rading conditions and the

_ren il ccanemic dimiate

s inanaal Sfatements the Company noogniscs s investirients 1 subsdianes 2t 13jusic S net ass 2t value The subsidianes
have Pistuncaliv Been holding vehidlzs for dirsct pronerty investmest or finarang vain s Mo asscty are currently held through
the susidiany structure and all inanang iestruments are dicectly Feld By the camoan

Changus ' the tar value are recogrised i the Group Statement of Comprehunsive Ihears 2 7in deposal, raalisad gans and
105s0s ars Alse recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensie income

Derivatives

Denvatves are beld at fair valus based on traded prices Gams and fosses on dervy ative rarsartions ars racngnised in the Group
Staterment of Zumprahensive Incorme Gans and losses on CFDs resulting frum mov=rrents i Lhe orce of the underlying steck
are reated as capital Dindends from the underying investment are treated as revenue 3nd finarang costs of CFOs are treatad a3
reverLe, 2apial expenses

Cains and losses on fonvard currency cortracts used for capital hedgmg sutposes ar2 treated as capital



Notes to the Financial Statements

contiiued

| Accounting policies Ciran e

Contracts for Difierence ("CFOS™Y ate synthelic egquities and areva’eed o relerence o the investmerts” undarlying market values,

Tre sources of the retume under the dervanve contrazt (¢ g aotonal dudunds inarang cnsts, interest roturns and capital
thanges) are alloated to the revenue and capital accounts in alignre _et vt the nature of the undedying source of incomie ard
in accordance with the guidance giver oy tha AT STRP Motsna il il momae or 2xpensas dansing on long or shrrt pesitons

ane anportionead wley 1o the revenLe account Notonal Int2r_st xpons. oo fung positans s apportioned betacen revenue 4o

AT

N aezordance with the Board's long @erm. owsectzd returns of e Zompary | errently determened to be 35% to the
vl e Lro o anderdly 1z pree movertents of seeunties wrelaton

re L docount Mid 757 to capital reserves) Chang
VORD

sostres At altocated whally ko capital resens

h) Borrowings, loan notes and debentures
Allcans and debentures arz mitiaky ranognised at the fam value o0

sarmderation reconed less siue costs where apploetie
Arter iytial zcogrution, 2l interest bearng loars ard bomosninaes 4o Lo uenly measured at amortised cost

sts of arrarging any interess

)

Acrerizad costs caloulated By teang inte 2o

2ng 035 ars cepitahised and amertised ovar the wf L ot an e 2 basis

i) Foreign currency translation

Tramgach ang ek TS areldn Turen ties ar2 2ia e e, areredars of he fracsaon

TSN TLUTENGY, MANeTdTy 15585 an @'t omra s g 2 b e mara g oo the Da'apce shest Cate Jorewr
2virange diferences are racopmis2 | e a2 TR

a1

[} Cash and cash equivalents

S33n and cash #juvalents comrprss 2ass n rard ong derand fecee e

k) Dividends payable to shareholders

lpoonr Zaidends are rezogmsad i the pencd moabich they oo s 20 d ane doadonds ar reecgesed when approved by

1) Adoption of new and revised Standards
Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period

The accounuey pelises adeopred ars corsstent ath hose of e pi-y o 5 corsoldaied firanaial statemaenas excepl as pored
Dol
FRus g Fhanaal Insroments [FRS o meadures pan renor s ents or s astlioagen and easprerrent 2f inarcal asse s

ard imaraal habidias, eparman, o fear T #53ets ang g-nen nedse 1ty The Gronp has appled the stancard 0 the

~Lr=nt finercia go o ard tha iepe o aseessment fram be adnener mretded thar there sas nn mateeal mpact on e narcal

arsments e Sreep’s nv=stments 2oz lassiied asfar vy - mrush peefrncinss ard are preasur2d at far valte frioegn

croft or sy The applicatan of IFRS 9 has net ressfted noar, hang - o e vl ee of mvesarents ron aere A other

adistriemts reguired Otrer assets ard ladihies —ortne= oo be e sured voamor sed 33 excest for Contracts inn diference
1

ard Fa=gn 2change ‘rrvard “ontr et ATICN ToninLe T Se oeenr2d 1 V‘.Ji.‘v‘ Ltrer assets vers assessad or rradis fsk

ard acirpairment ormvmons wers required The Cronp doss wor mdecake a0y medge aToruarng actvibes

R v Qevenue rom Contats wrh Costumers RS Lz spe nties Pow aed aben an ety shoulz r2eognise ter snle The
1oL a5 aophed the standard o th= curent fnaraial g2ar apd the moact asvsessrent omogs ageonen worciuded that thes
ws o raenal impact on the finarcia statments grueen e apoowemaley, 20 oy the Groen s ncome 15 derved from finareal
NSl s ander [FRS o

I 2adien the Ginup has adooted the ialiyag amerdment, 00 emr=rainnsir the o rect firarcal p2ar nens o e

fav- had a matznal impact e the Gnandoal statamerts
RO 2 - Share based paymerts
lAs =0 - Transt=r o7 Investment Property
R Irterpr=tation 22 For2an Crrercs Iransarinn acd Advanc: _mrsderiae

AN A rpeeyemen s 0 IRRSs 2ul4-20 e Lods (Arendirants e RS | st e Aunpten o 1FD35 and 1AS 23 Invesimierts 0

A5, mares and ot Yentnes)
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[

Accounung policies w2

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

The standards issued befare the reporting date that beome of aain 2 afrer 31 March 2019 will not have @ matenal effect on
equity or profit for the subsoguert pennd The Group has rot eardly adopred any new Internatoral Finaraal Reparting Standard or
Intzrpretatien Standards, amendments and INTe protaner s ed Dot not yet effective up o the date of ssuance of the Group
financal statem=znts are lsted below

IFR3 16 - Leases (efocive 1 danuary 2012 Tre Gronn do s not zepect the fimancia’ impact of this staedard on the finaraal
staterents 13 be matenal The chjecive of IFRS 15 & to ~et t, e prodipies Fot recogmition, Measur2ment, praseniatiern and
disclosure of leases The Group has rot erterad nto am Fzases as 2 essee and acts oniy In its Capaaty as a lesser The Group s
wases vt Lortinuge to be dassiied s operatmg laases ot 02 leasod ssets recegrused mthe balance sheot

IFRS 3 amendments (effectve 1 Januar, 20203 The arrerdr ts provide morz guidance on the defimtion of @ business to
assist ' determining whether a transacticn resalts a0 a5 2f o7 1 bustess acquisiion. The amendments ar2 rot expected o

Pave a ratenal mpacs on the Group s nnandel statarents

Arcondments o AR 1 and 1AS 8 — Defininen of Vate Jaruary, 20203 Tho Intzrngtional Accounting Standards

i
ndan.. or @nphyng e cone zpt of matenaiity The

Board haw rehired s defimtier of 'matenal” and ssued oraut 2
yrerdre ents are not oxpuectad t have amatemal wrpac oo Le Jroup s fmanaal statemerts
FRS 17 —nsurance Cortracts (Cfeztve 1 lamiary 2071 Tow SRS rtiodiug s 0 zomprzhensive modcd for a'linsuran e and

re-nsuranee contracts, based on fulfilinen: objectve sz wr ont ssumprens and discount rates Given the pature of the

Croup’s business, the IFRS 18 not expacizd te have @ 1 et s ampact ob the inseder stataments

A cndments o IFRS 10 and 1AS 23 — Sale or Cormanton of \ssets bunocen an lnvestor and its Asscaiate or Juint Venture

(=ffecty e date pestponed until completion ot Broades ~oow 1 Tre amendrents sees e rosobea a contliut betnesn exsting
guidancs or wensolidation ard edquity aucountng wlher 1 pares _ormpany uses zontrol of a subsichary it g transaction aeth ar
JssuClate or et venture The armendiments are net cape: ted tu Dane 3 matena’ rmnact o the Group's finacdal statorents

nvsstment income

2019 2o

£000 BT

Dividends trom UK Bisted inuestments 2,304 3555
Dividends from oversegs lsted moeslments 23,085 24,204
serp Jivdends from listed nvestments 8,226 4523
Property income distributions 11,156 7130
44,771 10267

2019 T

£000 REwT
Gross rental incocme 3,659 E
Service charge mcome 1.608 1337
Diract property expanses, rent payable and senice charge costs {1,940) (3 317

3,327 3421
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3 Net rental mcome -:> o

Operating leases

The Group has entered into comm.erid kadses o0 s property porttolo. Commicraal property loases typicatly have lease Tenm s
bebtecen 5 and 15 years and wdlude daus s to enable penedic upvard revision of the rental charg accordirg 1o pravaurg

markst condiions Some leasas contan rtiens o broak before the end of the lease term

Future rmumimum rentals under rop-carcelablz opereting leases as at 31 March are as folloves
2019
£'o00

1,600 4100
10,750 Iz,JO-J
16,725 23

Vitthi 1 year
Aftar 1 year but not muorz thas 2 vean
Mora than 5 years

U

31,075 357

=
| Z
N f¢ NS E MR em = [}
o LTS ODel2N g 1 LT =
2019 R “
£000 - =
m
» <= =
INt_rost maeeradie » 39 5 m
Itorost on rafund of Luvarseas Lothro e g o 351 R A
Lrdonerarg commims i 284 -
674 412
Lodenanting 15 part of fhe Droc2ss ©F 0D ILG ¢ A0 32001126 1o the Tarket The Sormpany may partiaipate 1 e und 2ot
of invastes comrpemes’ securnes 13 0r L of o o urbar of nariopants, for vhizh compensaton ir the form of —ormsser s
recened The Comrpan, orly aamiopetts v el roiryg hanry assassed e nsks mvovod ardin seountes nowheh g
prenared o ncreasa ts boleryg chod' D thar De the ourcare The comemizsion camed is raker to revemua urloss 2 seiuanes
urderantten are raquired w0 Se fa<en Lo it snize 22sc the proportionat: commission s deductod trone the cost ot the
rveshient Durcg gl Bre Jompan ‘ar'r.;a-’eu‘i e oone (2013 nene} underanting and all commissicr earnad 5as fanon
revenue ard s soear wrdan Oror aoersta g iroors
= R D T
) SAETEgEMENT AT P AT IS
2019 10i9 2019 L e R
Revenue Capital Total Tae fIa| [
Return Return L T
£000 £000 £000 TN e ST

Varagemer feo 1,514 4,543 6,057 (RS Vs 3zo
Fart fo - 6,110 6,110 - H .88

1,514 10,653 12,167 1,339 PR St

Asummany of Pe l2rms of he manmager=nt age-mert 15 guen n the Repor: of = Dirsciors on dages 35 and £
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6 Other administrans

& OXDENS2S

2019 218

E'000 £

Directors” tees (Directors’ Romuraranen Report on pages 48 and 49) 213 196
ALdItor '3 remuPeration

— for audit of tha cansalidatad 3d narer: compary fingnaal statements 70 70

~ for audin of prior penad nnanoa statemenss of sehadiares - 15

weal fees - 17

Taxaten fzes 182 7P

Other admiinistrative expises 185 134

Other expenses 490 199

frrecoverable wAT 131 155

fxpenses charged t Revens 1,271 1308

564 553

1,835 1,326

Tho andt o tre o ponud fnanca' statemes s of subsidianes comparative haure relatcd e the 13 ronthe e D Apel 20005 0
30 September 2013

Other adimisiratee capenes i otode Jepesitan custody and company secrotanal servies Thoese egonies 3 b arged opbe

=
=
(XN}
=
=
=L
&G
—
=
[
=
-
=
o

sarre besis as tho base rmaragrrert e one quarter temeome and three Juarters o waprta’ Total other a et se
S
ewnenses tharged 1 both weonc ard apite are £74C,000 (2018 £7365,000)

ruarketing and PR Losts, Directors’ Natonal Insurance and recratnesr, Regairer, and lstirg

Other expenses include brosor toes

fees, and annua' report and crrer nuhlaver prntieg and distribution costs: These expenises are charced saicn mo & revenue
coount
VAT on costs incurrd 0 Zorectan wits the exension of ‘he rosidental leases on The Cowonnades are 2harg <L e the capial

Jccount

7 Financs costs

2019 B

E'900 £

Bank loans ard oversrafts »opasabie awthie 1 yzar 2,017 1324

Loan notes ropayd e aftar 5 veadrs 1,388 RIS

HMRC interest - B2

3,405 2842

Amount ailccatad o zapdal reran (2,554) (2,070)

851 742
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continued

8 Taxation

a) Analysis of charge in the year

2019 2018 1019 M ~ma 2
Revenue Capital Tatal I Lapita it
Return Ratum Ao Rt

£'000 £000 £900 e <00 el

LK zororator facgl 1A~ (2013 19 W) 3,488 (3,488} 4 2,374 (2,371} -
Oversaas @asahon 2,729 - 2,729 2,281 41 2,908

6,217 {3,484) 2,733 DA% (2,330 2,903
(Oven)/ue der proviser in respect of prior years (866) 5 (861} (153 4 (i351)

Cut T2t 14 2harg=for fra yoar 5,351 {3,479} 1,872 3,533 (7,325) 1057

b) Factors affecting total tax charge for the year
The tad 2ssesszs t rtha =ans lower (2013 Ieuer) thar the standard rate ot torserae e U = e arze company of 19+

12273 19

The ditferans = = oesigined Dol

o
z
£
=
€
=
Loms
9
b
o
=
2

2019 2019 2019 Lo oA
Revenue Capital Total e NANOSH
Return Return dal LU
£'000 £'000 £'000 Y -0 LR
St promn o or Lrae aotumes boror faxation 51,605 62,472 114,077 15438 127927 175233

V203 1% ) 9,805 11,870 21,675 20 2= 305 32915

Ot st oe Taa Sz at
I

Eifast ot

Nontaxgsle 30rs popestrents - {18,353} (18,353} - 75389) {2r,h37)
Cur2n s, moLs et pot rasable - 374 374 - IEA Bihe

Favrziiel on op2nses orarged) redited o capial - {939} (939} - 303 203

N Dl et - 3,492 3,492 - (1,201 {1,20%)
Non-tasabie UK dvdencs {841) - (841) V335 - (33A)
Neretenable zrieas dadends {5.546) - (5,546} ARSI - (2,330)
T f"'g A 2,729 - 2,728 3 2ad 11 RECISE

COvsre eder vsior p respect of pros vears (866) 5 (B61} 11753 4 {1.85

)

Oisailewyablz 2 oeryes 64 {27} 37 1 - ]
s R el TR 6 99 105 37 SLe) 76

5351 (3,479} 1,872 5354 (23260 1097

Tre Cronr s rolresaamised deferred fax assers of £1 106,000 {2013 1,807 000 ans00g 27 4 Lot of ‘oszes camed forvard

225 consider T tee croorrar shat the Group wall 3oneratz profits in th ~2lovant formparezs that S osses would be available tu

oifset g anst 2ol on s bans, the doferrad tav assat w respect of thost cxperss bas cotbasr - Ingrised

Dot e JIminmy s sarLs as a0 Investment Trust, ard the ntertion f contirue mrecttg The corditens reguead o cbtan

a0 for e fortacy e tuturs the Companry Ras not orpwidad geferr=d tax on sy captal 2307 arsoyg o0 the erealuation or
1
vl

isaul’ of 2ty e respes of rroperties held i subsidianies, provis ae for Lt sans i pas Doee made for rovaiuanor

sLoolus s n o Lbeltared by brovght ‘orvard capital 'esses or non-rrade dobits
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Notes to the Financial Statements

contirued
g Taeaon otz

c) Provision for deferred taxation
The arrourts for defermed taanen provided at 190, (2018 199 ) compnse

2019 2019 019 AN Zara 2008
Revenue Capitat Total RN Caprrs, uld,
Return Return L Re.Lrr
Group E'000 £000 £'000 R SULo LU
Yoozlerar=] capral allowances to7 - 107 107 - 107
o3 0S5y zamad fonvard - {350) (350) - (350) (500
Shonr s
Do rreed =3¢ Pabiity Cassety 107 {350} (243} 107 (350 (21%)
2019 2019 2019 My RUE REIE]
Revenue Capital Totai AR Tapna. NS
Return Return feLrm Retwe
Company £'000 E'00¢ £000 = SoTn L
Accaferat=2 aptal allosancss 107 - 107 17 - W7
L e i3S e onvarnd - (350} (350) - {45 (3>
shan as
Detor st s hanility Tassety 107 (350) {243) pO7 (55) (243)
Te oy 2 orth i Drovision in the yoar .5 as follows
2019 2019 2019 RO il AR
Revenue Capital Total R e wapitd ol
Return Return Powm Returr
Group £'000 £000 £'000 -y e I
= v e stert L the vear 107 (350) (243) 107 (330) 243)
Wozzler#t=d napeal allowancas - - - - - -
Sraeses 3t e 2nd of the year 107 {350) (243) 13/ (320) {243)
2019 2019 09 sl EORE
Revenue Capital Totad Capal Tval
Returm Return it
Company £'060 £'000 E000 Ea b
Proveler u e stars of the yvear 107 (350) (243) 17 {350 12435)
Acr=lenit=d camtal allowances - - - - - -
resien at b2 ond of the year 107 (350) (243) | (350 {2143)




Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

Earmings per share

Earnings per Ordinary share

The warnings par Ordimary share can be aralysed Botwoun o 2oue a0d capital, as below

Year ended Yoareral !
31 March oVt
2019 FOR
£'000 L

Nat revenu: oroft
N2t capital profit

46,254 1l
65,951

Nt tetal profe

112,205

Woelght=d averags number of shares in issue dunrg Hie | «ar

317,350,980 317332840

pence .
Rouel 2o canninis 5or share 14.58 1322
Capt.t 2awngs por shar 20.78 404

Larmirgs per Uidipare share

35.36 o 2

Tre Croup Fas mo secuntas inosswe trat ol e re s o o

Oranan share are the same

Ivsestinents halc

a) Analysis of investments

v

Jenmrr, shars Theeetora the basos ana distod rotaer oee

Group Lompany s ~p
2019 2019 M3 o
£'060 E'000 T P
Lstedin the Urise 2 Gngdom 426,798 426,798 407 367 131,367
Unlsted 1 e Lpitad ngjc;m 3717 377 133 133
LsT=d Oversans 762,338 762,338 815,913 R Y
westTent propernes 101,929 101,929 938,001 PERN
Fvostrerts heb ) oar far valee 1,291,442 1,291,442 HERECRDR £ 1,317 "ln
InyvesTments i 5 bsidianes a- farr valle - 50,442 - 9041

1,291,442 1,341,884 1,375,045 [EETSERERES

b) Gains on investments held at fair value

Year endad e e !

31 March s Mlert

2019 RS

€000 N

Reabsad 5305 on sale of investrents 79,858 SPaT
Lereausa moverment moanyesttent nelder g gens 16,736 52325
Zaimns o0 rvestmonts hald 3 fair valle 96,594 14470
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10 investiments held at fair valug o o

<) Business segment reporting

Gross Gross

LA et A Nt Valuation revenue revenue

1 PR sparz ton, 31 March 31 March 31 March

JolA T sel sy, EnTaalon) 2018 2019 2018

A Y (b £'000 £'000 £000

Lisred mvestments 1,217.822 (121937 95211 1,189,136 44,682 40,267
Unbsterd ipvestrerts 153 - 224 3177 89 28
Contracts ‘or difference 135 Fhofy (13.380) (3.210) 6,469 4,624
Total wvestiments segment 1 2i75%) { LT 23T 75,055 1,186,303 51,240 44,919
Dnrect propany segiment ELRGE 759 2159 101,929 5,267 5,368
1,515 5.1 (105 523) 7a214 1,288,232 56,507 50,287

In seekrg to achieve its nvestment ohiecive the Taoay, w2sls i tha sharas and secunties of propers, companies ard
property related businesses intaraneiraily an also i mvestent propery lesatad in the UK The Company thersiorz coraides
that there arg two dishiact reporting senr2ns rvestmects L direct oragery which are wsad for evaluating 22-mimance ar

S

al'ocanon of resources The Board which 5 the prrap v J2cmon maker, receiv=s nformation or the o seements on 3 res lar
P F 5
an ~e atnbuted to the reporting segmrents, gzreral adrmsiram, 2

basis Whilst revenue streams and firect oropers, ~29'3
expenses canrot be split to aliow 3 profit for earh seqre~t *2 De detarmire | The assets and gross ravenues for each szarmaent

g
=
E
g
z
[T

are shown above
Tre property costs included wirthin rete Sare =1 o by 200 72213 €1 3470000 and deducing these costs from the dire.t
property 4rass revenue above would resud in petniore ol £3 324000 (2013 £5-121,000) for the direct proparty regortiny

Segment

d) Geographical segment reporting

Gross Gross

Loadr T Nt Valuation revenue revenue

TN BIEN MR RN 31 March 31 March 31 March

Mot e G S A ] 2019 2019 2018

o - oy £000 £000 £'000

UK listed equities and Zonvartibles RN 17 47 6,538 426,798 13,371 10,838
UK unlistzd cquities 133 - 221 377 89 28
UK diract property 2011 7543 3,154 101,929 5,267 5368
Continental European hsted equities 815,313 (133,355 36,322 762,338 33 29,429
1,312,045 211 96,594 1,291,442 50,038 45,663

Uk mrnttacts for differ=ncs ¥ 7420 (17,324} (2,924) 3,635 2,383
European contracts for difference (2% 7135 (7.0548) (286) 2,834 2,241
1 31%k,04] N REY] 73,211 1,288,132 56,507 50,287

C {2013 £470000) and sales custs of 2114000 (2013
£211,000) These compnse maily stamp duty, and commmssien

included i the above ngurss are purchase 'usro of

Vel Aoy Carpeaalty or e S 1 a0 TS ST Ld e e s T Lte NOT AR Tl Cder e oLon ) incuges amennt e Tl
el Ir e noras

Crr S FOVRNUR SO0« aMrac T tar Jittees o relates i A lords v g o x Bviderd ase, or e wrderyres poancns okl e

appreoaten, venrecaton ) n TFL ;’.ﬂ ESESI B I AN A o AP TT U TES B S NN 1

e) Substantial share interests

The Group held mterasts in 370 or more of any class of cepital i 12 comparies (2013 8 companies) we invest 0 Nene of
these mwvestments 1s considerad significart in the cortest of these financal statements See note 21 on pages 37 and 33 for
further details of subsidiary irvestments
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10

Investments held at fair va'lue ooz

fy Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

Firancal ass=ts and financia! habiives arz camod in the Balance Sheet aither at therr fair value (investments) or the baangs shoet
amount s @ reasenable approwmaten Af for value (due fram brokers, dwiderds and interest recavable, due t brogers acoreals
and cash at bang)

Fair value hierarchy disclosures
Categonsation within *h2 rierarchy has oo determined on the basis of the lowest levelinpur tar iz oigmificart to o far valae

measdtarent of the ralevans asoo 25 tollows

Level | —valied using guotoed orces ~ an actys markat for idertical assets

Level 2 —wabie d Dy rotoronc e b Laiuanen s bnigues wsing osservable mputs other than guntzd proze s Lo U0
Level 3 —valued Dy ratererce 12 vaiLaneor eonmgues using InpLts that are not based on cbsenatle mrarket Jdata

The valuaticr rechinues L=l “heroun are —xplained 0 the accounting palicies io rotes 1 (N and L (g

The table ba'ow sets oLt farva'ue mezturaments sing 1I9RS 13 fair value hierarchy

Financial assets/(liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 31 March 2019 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Equaty my-stmer s 1,189,136 - 377 1,189,513
Inuestment Sieperiies - - 101,929 101,829
Cuntracls for dificronee - (3.210) - (3.210)
Fore.gn exchaege teraand 2o - 1,969 - 1,969
1,189,136 (1,241) 102,306 1,290,201
Level 1 Level 7 Lavel 3 Total
At 31 Aar 2018 €000 £'000 £000 £'000
Tquity imvestrerts 1, 317882 - 1-3 R R L
nvesiTert o perti=s - - 37700 EREN |
Crntacts for difference - 433 - 153
Foreign exchange forsard onracts - 542 - ERN!
1217382 1,132 PRI TN 1317135
Tre "able above io7 5 e LOILp s al e merarchy, The Compary's far value hrorarchy 15 dennzal aszept b

r
tahanes v an 3 March 22005 aas £50, V12000 (2002 co 10 D00

nousen of the far vaue o hos o

Trese nave beon Zategonssn 1 evet 3 on borh years Tre movement . the year of 223,000 (2013 uel U0y 5 e _h:ngc in
fan ealue ir e year Tre mcha neanaal azsers @ ra valve for the Compacy et 31 March 200 swas 20,51 325 1
(20,3 2l 3a 50000

=
£
=z
[
=
L i
3
o
=
n
2
o
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confinued

P

loy p e — J— 1 [
10 Invesimearts ne i -

P value ante e

Il = Y PR

f) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities -~ 25
Reconciliatton of movements in financial assets categorised as level 3

31 e et 3% March
073 P, ek o oy 2019
At 31 March 2019 “t0 P S TS £'000
Unlisterd equity muesiments 194 - - 221 3717
nvastrert Properhizs
- Aled use 573,580 a7 (737 1552 54,362
- Offuze & rdustoal 14,5710 729 - 10T 46,967
33,011 1,494 (737 31539 101,929
23,1644 1 195 [ PR 102,306
All approaangr (doepr . waren) g, stated sbone colates o movenients i far value of aristed cquahy 1y ostents and investment

properties ©ond 373 Moo 3013

The Crour held ure uoguers i pveserent at the , zar ond (see 116 overdeof
' 1 H

Transfers between hierarchy levels
Therae were no trarstaos dupeog =2 vear botaeop laval 1 and level 2 nar betyesn levels | or 2 a~d icval o

vy
E
[TH)
p=
x}
=
7
—
2
(=]
S
i

Koy az3UunTonens usa b s o use caliulanons arz cxolained i the accocuntme poleies o onore 174

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations
The sigrmifcan® urobserabie nputs ssed in the far value measurement catzgonsed within Lav=l 3 of he larval e terarany of

nvestment properties a2
e  [smratad armalvalie wo —woudpersgft (2003 ks - £30)
o Cantalisation «ates 3207 = w o000 (2013 52000 - 300 ©)

Stgrifican® incrzases (Jdecreases) in zstorated replal value and rant growlh nosolahion aouid rasultin a sigrihzapthy Ngher
(owery far va'ue measar=mert A significant increase (decrease) in lopg-tarm vacancy rale insclarer sould reset 0

a sigrificanily lowae (higheny B valve measurement

There dre ipterr=labonsrin, Seraeen the vie'ds and tental valses as they are partially detenminad by mass. e condiruns

The sensituit, ~F the vaaanen W rangss in the mest signifweant inputs per dass Al iryvestment prooery arz shown behowy

Office &
Estimated mavement in fair value of investment Retail industrral Other Tatal
properties at 31 Mastch 2019 arising from £000 £000 £000 £000
increase in rental value by 3 o 500 2,075 - 2,575
Decrease nrenlat valte oy > - (575) (2,120} - {2.695)
Increase mopeld by 2 50 (5,425) {5.550) {360) (11,935)
Decrease myleld by 0o « FAKL 7,650 1,350 16,175

CHIcT N
Estimated rovement 0 rar s aiue of ipvestrant <erall stral Ctper ol
properties at 31 March 2013 arsing from E oo nl B A
increase n renial vaike oy 50 400 1,510 - 2,010
Decraase in rental valus by 5-¢ (129 {1,220) - (1.945)
Increase in yeld by 0% - (5,920} (3,370) (1325} {11,045

Oecraase poyeld by G50 0,300 5370 10 15,940
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Instruments

A

Risk management policies and procedures
The Troer Invests IN @guities and other instruments for the long term mthz puraait of *h

Iny-sstment Jbjeotve set out on
pags 23 The Group s axposed fo a vancty of rsks that could rosult i aither a redecion o 10 micrzase 0 the profits availabla for

dstrbuton aovay of dinedends

The nepemalnsss the Croup faces in its portfolio management activties iz
\

Ltk b sl mnnsng pre sk, urreney el and interest ko rsk)

. | [ L L

ol and processes fur managing s s ar2 suTimatsad r 032 37 10 37 and bave been appli=d

ek ET T 2l

11.1  Market price risk

oo pemove oEms actvation, the Greup s wmvestrents ars oaesed tuoraerhon e e s

Management of the risk

[zt aczsr sus 2 dnershied poertfeho and reports "o tee 3oand 2

merteo T Ao Lmomiiors e anvostment actaty an dostaresy

Cges in markar pnees s

st Ty el 1t far nal Lo 1,291,442 1,314,047
T2 e ADOSLTE 166,656 125777

Concentration of exposure ta price risks

Y wmtoub potts inuesirent Poboes on page 25, there are guadaines o L ammon v U oxdzisLte B4 s rgle comoany,

NeAr e ge m or Are T preoert, These Zuldedtes Snsli2 an 40D R bz = ndeadual or sector prcz

Faesmrentreirrary dodiated o imvestrentin the oropery soctor Do Captsed oo0nce ey amieis Al0ss

vl 30, 1asel Clasy 3 Al

Price risk sensitivity
T fone s ranls st s the senaiteoh of dhe arobt atrer taxation for e s ard 0 s or srarchaiders funds woar

Tocopurty irvestroeats Ths level

oot 15T the tarvalues of fre Giowz s 2w, nxad nror o

Lton T e astration sbown o the srevious soar Too Jeromem oL Ledon the Soup's aqum freed

277 ard direct oroperty exposura at each batarce saaot date vk ail oo v araings Pold constant

2019 2019 P I
increase Decrease i % R I

in fair value in fair vatue moel aun [T Q3T
£'000 £000 Cnd o

staborent o Comm bonsine Incerie — oront 2o fag
Royer w2t (87) 87 (92 22
Capey et 193,000 (193,000) bat 24 (V24,230

et et aftae tax for the year shar chobers furds 192,913 {192,913) VRS 13754

Chang- tor -l 2armmgs por Or 2oary shore 60.79p {60.79)p £200s GBI 1p

11.2  Currency risk
A sicportior of Tt Drows 3 parsolla 15 nvestod i cuerseas secuntes ard e 3ty il e oo sianitcanthy affoctad by
' b R

Sy LD

< Ror ran oxchange mates

£
:
X
z
:
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continuad

instruments one =g

T moanim
11.2  Currency risk comnne
Management of the risk
“a Board recaves a repart at each Board mesting on the proporien of the nwzzi-ont portfouo held in Sterhng, Eurcs or other
curranaes The Sroup may sometimes herdge foraign currency moverrents ours 2 th 2 Surozona by funding investments in
cuers2as sceuraes with unsecured loans denorinazed in the same catrency o1 througr forward currency confracts

Cash leposits arz held in Starling and/or Buro denamirata] accounts
Foreign currency exposure

3¢ reporting date the Group had the followng =xpesure

fst=1n3 nas been shown for referance

2019 EDIRS
v sorling 27.1% 291
= Fura 57.1% S0
E S.adish Krora 9.6% EXeR
[ ‘
E (yrin o 6.2% 6
g F-e “xlicrg fab'e sots out the Group s total exposure o foraige cotraray ris 101 the ner exposure o forewn curranaies of the
Z re’ mwonatary assets and habiires
= Swedish
= Sterling Furo Krona Other
2019 £000 €000 €000 £000
Reo_enables « Juo from Srokers, dmdends and other incomie recenaklod 6,033 46,556 - 334
Casllat Bank and on deposit 8,060 34,212 8,498 1,512
Rank eans, Inas notes and overdralts {15,000} (43,085) - -
F o oables tdue tr orokers, aceruals and other creditors) (10,867) (274) {1.379) -
RS STAYETIMN {157,239} 104,396 - 54,812
lcal barergr currency Sxpostiie or net maonefare items (169,013) 141,805 7119 56,658
investrents held at far value 529,104 617,028 120,312 24,998
NOTeCLITnt assels 243 - - -
T30 Jurreney 2xDosurs 360,334 758,833 127,431 81,656
Sure et
2() ! 5 LAt I=realy]
Rzzonebles (due from brokers, dvidends and other incomre recarab2) 7233 21450 - -
Casn at bank and on deposit 3,523 12773 551 1,257
2ar klcans luar netes and overdraft. (37 00 (1% 375) - -
Eayabies (due to brokers, accruals and other craediters) 71423 (170 - -
X fonmards 173383 53232 (15,910 33,183
Te tal forengn —urrency exposure on Net maonetary items (135233 36,450 (15,379) 34,442
Inyestents held at far value 30150 553,333 116,951 40,631
Nopecuirant assets 243 - - -
Tetal Zurrency 2xnaosure oo 121 BN 120,272 75075

Foreign currency sensitivity

The folowang table llustrates the sensiivity of the prebt alter tax for the vear oo the Group's equity in regard to the exchangs
1ates for Sterling/Fure and Sterling/ Swadish Krona and other currences

I- assumes he followimg changes In exchange rates

Swertng Bure /=137 (2018 15%0)

Sterting, Swedish Krona +/-15%g (2018 .5 o)

arering/Giher +7 =70 (231815 o)
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11 Fnanca! instruments o =2

11.2  Currency risk onn, =

:

Foreign currency sensitivity = r- o =
if Stering ha1 strengthened aganst the curranzies seooe, this would bave hal the following 2ffect

Year ended March 2019 RERLNATHER A
Swedish R
Euro Krona Other fry ~et
£000 E'000 E£°000 <) =T
satement of Compiebensive Income — profit aft-r ta<
Revente caturr (2,7718) (328) (177) (2,341 (231) 277
Capital retlrm {75.341) (15,669} {3,256} (8011 (17230 (5,230
Change to tho profit after *ax for ]
e vear, sharsholders’ funds (78,117) (15,997} (3,433} {33282y (1-482)  ¢n 223 %
a
2019 R 1
=
ang: to toral 2arvngs oer Cr linary scan (30.74)p P32 A ©
E
i Srerting Pad vzakered agyost e Coreng s shee s el b ove had re Bllowerg offect %
Year ended March 2019 R DRIV LR Wt . é
Swedish RIS
Euro Krona Other N e
E'000 £000 £000 - 20
Statcreent of Comprehensiy 2 INcorte — rront aft o ag
Reyenue rarem 4,596 401 233 13 20 312
Captal return 108,472 21,214 4,407 Iin28 20w22 paet
Changs to the profit after tax for the year,sharshaides’
furds 113,068 21.615 4,640 113725 20233 TaT
019 ot
Chang= to total zarnings oe- Ordinary share 43.90p RIS e!

11.3 Interest rate risk
rirast rite moy=rents nhay 3t

s pe

8 trafar Lalue of any investir ot e fxad inler=s, 30
e thofarvalue of -ha loar notos

e tha lovel of incor e recowable from cast at bank s

Goon dopost
o tha level ol irterast 2xnense an 20y vanable rite Darajeans ard

e the proas of the urderlvirg secuntios pald o the pertobos

Management of the risk

T mosabie offects er farvalue ar-d cash foves shat coll 1 arze as 3 -2sul ot Zhargas inirterzst rares arg taken In'c accoun”
Sroporty SOoMparies Goua’h rave sorowings themseles ard the loval of geanng and

Aen making (nyestment deasions
stryctur: of s dobt portfolic s a key ractor wibor 35525508 Yo rvestrert in a roperty companry
Tre Croup has fixed and Ras had vanab'c ras berowpes juros tha yoar The aterest rates on the loan morss s S, ferals are
satautnnete 13 10 2 Mliten to the loar sotzs tbo Srown hasurszoaes ) oralnecurreng sevelerg ftar fachnes abich carry
varable ates o‘ Aterest sasad o the curanaes dran, ':\u: aarar Tresa tacilings total £6% LG 00 (2013 SR N0 00}
The Menagar cena fors Both the lovel b debt on the Balane » sheet of the Crour (e the loan roras ardany bank leans even)
and the see through’ zeanng, fakang Inte aczonrt the gt an . f'1t:|‘ ras of *ha underheerg ieestroonts, whan ansiocrry b

Aveshrent poralio Thesa gearra lovels aro recerted aularhy o he -
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continued

I

Financal Instruments oo .

11.3  Interest rate risk .~/ 2

Management of the risk » nu-

The majonty of the Group's mvestmert portdons s nen-rizrest beanng As a result the Group s finanoal assets are rot directh

subject 1o signficant amnunts of nsk due to fu-taarens in the prevaling levels of market interast rates

Interest rate exposure

The: ceposura at 31 March of finanawal assers 3od »roe 2l labidiies tointer2st rate nsk s shown by ratersnze o

o floaung interast rates when the inbarast ratz 15 due to be re-set

o fxed interest rates wvhen o nnaraa’ msramont s o2 o e ropaid

The Group's exposure 10 floalng in'erest rares o0 as3=3 .5 £92 415,000 (2013 =12 56 LO0Q)

The Group's exposure 1o fixad wrcrest rates oo lebitnes 15 252,035,000 (0.4 £55,875,000)

The Group’s exposure 1o Hoatng inferest fates « e aakares s Fril (2008 £41,000,200)

Interest recenable and finance 2ot are ¥ rhe Iolowrg rites

e Interest recaned on cash balancas, or paid or 2ark oncraratts, 15 at a reargie aver |BOR or its foregn cumrey 2guivalert (2009 <am

o Interest paid on borrmwings andes the Ml cnrtanny lear faalnes, s ata margin over LIBOR o its fureign urrers 2gun a=nt
for the type of loan (2018 sam=}

o [he “nance chargas on the SUIM and o iom con ptes e abinferast raes of 132700 aned § 5% - respactineny

The year erd amounts are not reprasentaty e of 7o apesala feoptarast rates dunng e year as the level of exposare wnaoz s s,

investinents are made i teead nterest sestbties boranas o drawn down and ropaid, and the mix of borrowiras Lorneen

Hoatng and freed mterest rates _hae e

Interest rate sensitivity
A change of 20 or nterest rates at the cporng a2 ol | have bad the following Jdiretimpact

2019 2019 R To-
1% 2% ! !
{ncrease Decrease Ir=—-v e EE
£000 £000 v [
Change to sharcholders’ funds 556 {556} (428) PRk
Change to total carmings per CGrdinary snars 0.18p (0.18)p (D21 0GP

This level of rhange s pot reprasertative of the =2 as @ abole since the axposure changzs throughour the pencd The
assevsment does not ke inte aceunt the i oas ot interest rate charges on the market value of the investmants the Crup
holds

11.4  Liquidity risk

Unguoted mwvestments in the portfelio a7e subrec o uidieg rsk Tie Croup held one anguoted invesement af fe ooar i e
116 belovy)

in certam market condittons, fee Tquidity o irsdt promery ainsestments mgy be redeced At 31 March 2019, 7 0 (2072 72 aar
the Group's mvestiment portfolio was held i G 2c propersy, mvastierts

AL 3T Narch 2019, 9350 (2013 33 3) of the Grous s imestim ent portcho s held ny listed secuntes wouch are predorminants
readily redlisable

Bank 'can facihines are short term revelnng leans wuch s wterded are renewed or replaced but cenenal canrot be Zertan

The teble shows the tming ot cash outflows to scrt'e tre Group s current habilities together with anticipated imterest costs
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Financal Instruments ~vw 2

11.4 Liquidity risk -~ . .
Debt and Financing maturity profile:

Within Within Within Within within  Mote than

1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yeats 3-4 years 4-3 years 5 years Total
At 31 March 2019 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 E'000 £°000
Bark loans™ - - - - - - -
Loan rotes - - - - - 58,085 58,085

Frojected soerost cash tHows on bans and
i0dn nesles
ACTTUa,S ard deleired ooms

Other cr=ditors

1,366
7,450
392

5,423

12,253
7,440
392

1,366

78.170

k- e P R - g
1z VO mars 2 - - . Yl 8
AT 31 Marsh 2913 £ SO . w R =
Ears loons EIRAY] - B - - - RN §
e e - - - - - SRATS 32AT3 é '
ol Cted mtaraat case Hovs Lronas ‘ g
luan rotes 1,833 1,381 1341 A L =L 14 32A .
Aczria and doforred poavee 18D - - - - IR
On er 2 2ditons 335 - - - - - 333
54,431 1,531 Pagt T =T RIS R

Management of the risk
Tre Man,

maels gty o

B rasmim edpisare of the

oD

ool o wnguoted ard Do o pwr e

_all

s

-,
[ TR [

T TRt

st out e the Iy ostoers Foocies o oage 25 Al engueted imvestments with A vaiae ove TH e d direct oo er

Buard tor purzrase

eract Lath e banks providing roseleeg rachnes and res el s s ommoees sl

Ne Corrpany mamsan  gilar

aread o fcliy, morewar 1S 0oaddmer 2 Compaery s xplonng now opporumt2s fer the provs 0 2R 0 e irguing

D80

11.5 Creditrisk

The “alure of 3 counts

e Croun suffenng

oAt A st

ST () 0= Tl

| o
2aubalort: ahene

Management of the risk
INyestT 2nF fransactor s e Zamied out sy 3 curber of Droees, wihesa reuir stardme s riaened coandicall, by e Yanagen,

ar M are st e the amane ot may b2 Zuae from ary ons troker Caskoat bamxos one oo sak

[P
SRR LAY

crovht sanngs
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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11 Finanga Instrovents oo Lo

11.5 Credit risk

Credit risk exposure
Ir summan, coresars ] the gmourts 1 e Balance Sheet, the mawirrum exposura 1o aradit nsk ar 31 M larth was as follows

2019 2019 2 UM
Balance Maximum g [IRETCRTERS
Sheet exposure :

E'000 £000 LR

Dzbiors 54,892 54,892 30574
Cast ard zash = rivalents 52,282 52,282 13,714 18,114
107,174 107,174 50523 30,633

Offsetting disclosures

Inorfer 2 Delter =hee s ontacig’ nghts aned to secure nghts “hat wili nelp the Group mihigye w3 oou

srerpary <sk, the Group

may 2nrerIrte 30 150A Vit Agrsemert or similar agresmert with its OTC dematvs cortrac ooo 2rpati2s An iSDA Mlaster
AZreament 5 30 darser 2t kerpeen the Group and the counterparty that governs UTD 12 ate 25 ard rorangn ewbange
CONMraC's ard YpIcal, T2itleins, armong other things collateral posing terms and e tog provizensin b2 ever: oi a Jefault

and or rAerminaner et s lar 20 150A Vaster Agreaiment, the Group has 3 contactial ngbt o srises s fhe founterparty

zatan clervatne nparcs g

nents payables and ‘or recawables wath collareral el and, or cost2 1 ar | or2a'e ona single net
o
]

Lt ircludirg the barkruptey or insolvency of the countarpart. Howeser 2an<uptsy or nsohency

P oAy Impose rastnelions on of prohibinens agaist o2 nght of 2¥set o Tarkmiproy, insolvency or

payimant it the evert of lei

%
=
L
=
fu
<<
&
=z
(W)
=
<
=
[

laws of a partclar !

other evarts

The discloseres 527 0w 2 followey table indude finarcial assets ard finarca hablines *na* ar2 51, e ar enforczable

master ety 2rangemen or sirilar agreement

AL 31 Motk 2003 ar § 2002 be Cronp's dernvame asiets and fabilties (b type and connrerzarsyy are 20 foilows

Year ended 2019 o peeel Tyl
Net amounts of e wortoor
financial
assets/(labilities) sl
presented
in the Cash
Balance collateral 2l
Sheet pledged e
£000 £'000 S
CF"> positicrs
ING {3,210) 40,133 495 24,450
(3,210) 40,133 s 24,450
PCtarvar | contraces
Rarclas 1,440 - _ -
PP Paibds (33) - 5.4 —
R 651 - — -
iP Morgan (112) - - _
Societe Surerale 23 - - -

1,969 - 544 -




Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

11 Fimanazal instruments ooveog

11.6 Fair valyes of financial assets and financial liabilities

Eozunt farthe loan notes which are measured at amortsed cost {rofor to Netl 130 fos fair values or the financarn assats ard
foeual labiiities are oither carncd w the balance sheot at their far value tmvestr-onts) or the balance sheet amount s a

leasabie appreamaton of far value (debters, crzditors, cash at Sank and Lankoo rdrabs, acoreas and prepayments)

e of the listad invostments are derved from e dosing pnzs or 'ast 7aded prco et which the sacunties are quioted

r

e the Lendon Stock Exchangs and other recegised exchanges

I far alie of contracts tor difference are based on the edory ng isted roesronzyvalue as set sl above and the amount

see Tont o the ceuntaiparty Lador the contract s recorded as & assom e laowt, 2 ordicely, whizhiis disclesed in Note 13
7 /

DT LoDt yar

T marvaines of the propartios are dermved from: ao gpan maret (Rond Book) L3 wmen - sroparties on the Balance Shaet
Sats 7y ar independent fism of va'uers (Knight Frark)

rod i eastmiert at the Balasce Shoor dats Yeramo Lo avotal LaL 2 ot 23777000 ,20°0° Algto, £153,000)

' S @Mmed b e prohit orioss for the yoar
Aoas 2 LB TATI000 (2003 pront of £146,823 000)

11.7 Capital management policies and procedures

T o Zroun s eamtal managomant obectives are

z
2
[a]
=
s
al
=
m
=
wy

o roooraire that ol Deable to cortnLs as 2 goir g coreen and
® T A e e ot retur ety eguty shereolders throlgr an ancropnate taiehe of Jquity capital and 3abt

d frum canisa) redemption and

wi Lalled e s s

oo, _apinal of the Gronp at 31 Marlh 2018 Zonsist
>

!
o e resee s olalvog £1,328. 23,000 (2073 £1,255,552 200 The Jrewp toos nutregard the 'caiy motes and loans as

SN AT L2

T can cLTEs agreament raquires complidres with a set of mnacaal con arents 1wt

i

®  Tonal Borovangs shad oot exce=d 3300 of Adpistod Met Azset Yaile,
o e adsted Total Assets shall at all iores Be equwalent 'o 3 mimmnm ot 300 1 Tetal 2orreonangs, and

o o Wated NAY shall ot Ba fess thar £260,000,2C0

Group Company O [t
2019 2019 W RO
£000 £'000 N LAY

Arcerisiallieg due wemin e jear

Sy ard prooestes S0ld for iture settientent 3,603 3,603 293 REE!
Taw o 10de 1,296 1,174 1,294 174
Deana ver by and aeed naome 5,666 5,666 3537 4,337
Forzgn exarge foraard contracts for settlement 1,969 1,969 A B4
st o ek in respect of Contrests tor Diftorenece - - 495 435
TR varz. oen 40,133 40,133 24455 24450

[4+)
W
i

cipr dbtor, 2,225 2,225 873

54,892 54,770 52574 32452

NIN-CLIE T 2530ty

oo ed aten dsset 243 243 243 213

Hncluees arrourl i respect of et e penads



Notes to the Financial Statements
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j—

Cuirent and nonh-current habihines

B
Greup Company Cruup Cumpary
2019 2019 oG8 e
£000 £000 F00 300
Amounts faling duz within one year
Rark loans and overdrafts - - 41,000 41,000
Secanues and properties purchased for future settiement 1,474 1.474 - —
Mrounts due to subsidianas - 50,359 - 50,341
Ameurts payabie in respect of Contracts for Differance 3,210 3,210 - -
Tax payable | a -
Aceraals and deforred mcomie 7.359 1324 11160 11143
Cther craditors 473 467 333 37
12,520 62,838 57,543 102,387
w
LZ—: Seon-curr2nt kalalines
E VO3 Furo loan Notes 20726 43,085 43,085 43,875 43,375
§ 35 GRP I oar Notas 2030 15,000 15,000 15,000 15200
g 58,085 58,085 58,875 58,879
=
3
= Loan Notes
U the 10 Febiear 2014, the Company ssued 1927~ Unsasared Lur e suu, 000 Loan Notes and 3 590 Unsocurad GBP

13,2000 Lhan Nofes which are due to be rAdAen 2 At par on e buth —=Cruan, 2226 and 10 February 2031 respectvaly

+

Toe far value of the 3
vl13 373000 (2008 &1
23t=gnnse d within Level

©2%¢ Cure Loan Motes was #45 255,000 (29172 =34, 003 0UO)Y and the 5 52 ¢ GBP Loan \otes was
5.2/1,000) at 31 Maich 2213 Using th= H—R; 15 tar L2 werarchy the Loan Netes are deemed to be
2

"= lzan noles agreement requires compharce with 1 set of finance Jovenarts, noluding
& otal Borrovings shall not exceed 350 0 of Adustad Met Ass=t b as
o e Adjusted Total Assets shall at all times be equivalen. o a micimem 2t 300 of Total Borrowings, and
e e Adusted NAY shall not be less tan £250,000,700

The Campany and Sroup complied vtk the terms of the loan netzs agr==rert "broughout the vear
Multi-currency revolving loan facilities

The Croup also had unsecuad, multi-currensy, revalving short-term 'car raclnas wotalling E55,000 00w (2013 £05,000.000}) a7

31 Marzh 2013 At 31 March 2019 £nil was drawn on these tacimes (2002 £47, 3720 000)
e rratunty of these tacilties 1s shown mnotes 11 3and 114
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
Long ferm Shart term
debt dabt Total

Croup and Company £000 E°000 €000
Openirg habilibes from finanang activities at 31 AMarch 2018 58,875 41,000 99,875
Cash flows
Repayment of bank lears - (41,000) (41,000)
Movement on foraign exchange {790} - (790)

ioaing habilives from Ninancing actvites at 31 March 2072 58,085 - 58,085
Net debt

Net delt includes the value of the loar rotes, loars, the nohional exposaur2 ro CFDs, tess cash (Including cash collareral held by
ha CFL provider which 1s shown as a debtor in the Finanoal Statemerts) as a oropertion of equity shareholders' funds




Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

13 Current and non-curient habilitiss .~ os

The net geanng has been calculated as follws

Group o
2019 Vit
£000 P
Loan notes 58,085 33,375
Loans - 11,000
CFD pusitiens (netional exposure) 166,656 125677
Less Cash (52,282) [GERRES!
L2ss Cash cobateral (ecluded wirbipy 'Oteer dzbrors im Note 12) {40,133) T IEG
132,326 132,933
Eouty sharchodors” tunds 1,328,254 1,235,559 o
Net gzanmg 10.0% 14 o %
) =z
(]
=
I ot
15 Cabed up share cania, =}
» ~ =
Ordinary share capital =
The balance cassmed as 2rdinar, shars zapitan ime' 2= o= rerinal value proceeds on the ssae o the OUrdimar, =101t 500t )
capizal corepnsing Ordwary sharzs ot 229
Toze 20 e T
. e
a2 [ I
Qrdinary shares of 25p
AUT Apni 2018 3773502305 [=INE
At 51 March 2019 31350 386G e R
The votirg righ's ar2 aisclosed i the Repor 2f *he Direc'urs on pagde 53
Durng the yedr the Cormpany Made o market 2urraz=s fo- carcellation of Ordinany snares of 25p 2ach (2075 reone}
Sirce 3. March 2009 ne Ordicary sharss na= 2aer surchase | ang Janceilad
1z Tl - - . e .o < - LN ~ -
12 hars prentiuim aoToun [cialethe TOTA T2 e TmDOoN eSSV

Share premium account
The Ralarce cassified 35 share prapmiur ro 105 7o e above reminal value trom the procecds arssue of the Jgusy

snare capia comprsing Or frany shasaes ot 250

Capital redemption reserve
Tre -apical redemptor resere 5 rsad 02 ired oo arennt aguivalent o e nerural valus of purcnases of the Compan, 5 7p

shares N Arder to maintain the Compary’s a0t
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Group Company ST TR

2019 2019 23 i3

£000 €000 00 L

nvestrrent holdirg gans 402,635 435,107 404,379 A5t iy
Reahsed capital roserves 688,986 662,303 621491
1,091,621 1,092,410 1,023,570
Revante ressnvs 70,162 64,373 3412

1,161,783 1,161,783 1083038 1,0c 2 223

Sroup investent holling gang at 37 Vlarc1 70 pincde a £355,000 loss (2018 £1,172,000 loss) r2lating to unhstad

mvestmants ard gams oF T3 142,000 (7 22 15 000) relatieg fo mestment pronertics

Corspany investiment holding gans 21 71 %27 2o ec'ude gans of £76,630,000 (2018 €72,553,000) relanng o Loz !

ard stbsicdiary Investmienty itk a TR Loe Sy sanon gain (2013 €40 106,000 gany) rolating fo invastmort pranenos

Dradends arz only dstrbutabio fromr the mvenue 25000

Year ended [N
31 March St
2019 o
£000 [
Amounts tecogrised as distibulions @ e Beiersn the ear
Final diadend fo the vear ended 41 Marth 2 2s o0/ oop
{2017 640p) per Ordoary sharo 23,960 2.3
intenm dividend for the vear ended 30 Mare 200 - ot doup
(2013 4 0Sp) pur Ordmary share 15,550 45
39,510 3207
Arounts not recogrised as distrbutions *2 2 Feiders in the year
Propased final “widand tor -ha vear enidad 31 Mara 203 of 800p
(201& 735p) por Ordieary share 27.292 7350

1y

The final dradend ras not been included as 1 Ly 0 these iiranaadl statzments 10 accordance vath 1A3 15 Fuents a%2r e
Balance Sheet Dat="
Set cut below s the tota' dradend o 2e oad ir resnet of e year This s the basis or which the reawrertents of 5 1158 2 e

Corporatien Tax Act 2012 are consicersd

Year endad EEE LRI
31 March 2ot
2019 o
£'000 - our
Intenm dividend for the year ended 51 Marth 2073 of 430p

(2018 4 63p) per Or linary seare 15,550 RWEN

Propnsed final dividend tor the year ended 31 Marrh 2074 or 380p
(2018 755p; ser Ordhinary share 271,292 23000

42,842 33707
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18 Company Staer-znt of Comprehensive income

As permilled by Sectar g of the Co

mpanies Act 2004, the Company has not presented its mn stalzmen

ot

Comprefersye Insure e net profit after taxation of the Company dealt with in the accounts 2t e Croup was

E1V2205000 (2018 £1/72,202,000)

19 Net assatva'iz parlrdinary shara

lapar & e shere s based on the net assets atnburable

T1235,55 3000 ) an 40 a3 280 (2018 517450 330) Ordinary 51ar2s in 1s3ue ar the L ear erd

20 Cammri=rt: it coantpzent Lahilbae

FIESE R W
vy

smmitments of £337,000 (2 by Ber po contingert e

il

AT Marsb 200% G oup bed caiai o

1 T ety

PNt O RUFIS B FRN N N

The Crown ~as tm2 0o sund dlanas 20 o wbich are restered and gperating o wootand Epgloee s 0

to Ordinany sharos or 71 427,230 100 {2013

(2012 )

Principal activity

Name Reg. Number
Ny England RS TEBL 45

Tihe Coinrma bos Lirs 2 23265 72
Showart Larod 29000 1D

~ap - - N [ ~1 ~ s | s
Trust Umien Prepor.»s <25, 2070 Dav'oproen's Lirited

Toe Preoury, Imesse o Truss Loy

Toe Roai Bsta2

Toe Tarra Proparn, i

Trust Uirwen Proraes, i
Truet Lrner Propartos (unesber o) rted 2417839
Trizs Uricn Preparias (N e 310 Hirited
Trost Unien Propertes (uroer Sz bl ted
Tros® Unier Procsart s (e ey izt insfed

Trust Ve Proper oy (L rrer Mice Lt

T Upion Preocarass (o Tend e

Trust Urien O cor Ly FhLroer flouen) reeed

N

Teast Ulrae 0 Prec=gm =y ™

e Tezh=) Livsted

Trust Umon Precar ey ureder Truteen) Limated
Tross Lo Procortes L et Foresn) irersd
Trust Urk.n Properes (NLeber Bleent Limited

.

Trus Unier Prop=ri-s (aLmeBer sude=rt imit=d
Tress Unien Pre

Cartet (N, Der 3oy =nt=en) L
Tr.st Uninn Proper~5 5,rher Dignl-eny Ly

2341040
2415772
2Hin0>!
2115785
ERNEIE TS
212053

Trast Uneon #par oy o) - 2A5 336,

Trst Unimm Prop=rties s 30080200 LTid

Trust Umier Procor o 0 and 7 LTty

Trust Upian Pros—r =5 e 2wy Lamite

Tryst Umen Proo=re e L ner Saoanr-Tyn) Limrrad
Trant Umap Propartian (omiser taant Thraz) Lirirad

Skallion Financs L ad

FCH Develepraonte _ird 1181 '

UM Dovelonmarts {30 2 woer ) Lipopredd (2730500 SChA M9
IH Meveastley L P IRRG

NER YR Lt AR

N g comoan,
Nonetracd g company
cormpany

Nt e g

Non-radatg compant
ooty company
Nen-trading compam
Nt adicg company

Nertrading company

g
N -trading company,
N oon-paditg company
Nen-trading company

N TIGNE company

Non-madieg company

'G JQ

N adatg company
Np-fradie

TR Tell

mmoam

UCJ UO

COMPany
Neon TrAding company
Ner-trading Sompany
Non-trading compans
Nernerading company
Nen-trading ompany
Noendradieg romoany,

Propg—rty i estn
N tseg company
No-tradiuty Company
Nian-tradirg corrpany
Ner-rating company
NN g compaT

[vastrent *manary
NOm tradsg Comoany
NE-traceg comnany
Nar trandieg company

Ner-trying cempany,

:
O
=
4
=
3
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Subsidianes - oes

Name Reg. Number Principal activity
New England Cevelrpments Limit=d 1335902 Nen-trading cormpany
New Frgland Iruestmeants Limitad 2613905 Nen-trading company
Newy England R=tal Prop=ries Limiled 1437221 Non-trading company,
New Ungland (so ey bin 1787571 Non-trading company
Sapug Cre Limred 803510 Neon-trading company
frus* Umion Propart 2s Limiter] 2154624 Non-trading company
Trust Urmign [narca Lritad 1233328 imestmert holing and finance company
TR Biopert, a2 L2 2415941 irvest ot ol ling and firance company
Trus: Umian Pree-=rtes {3cuth Bank)y Limited 2420uU87 Nen trading company

The Cnr-pary has prowd=d @ guarantee for each of thase subsidianes in ordar for them 1 raxz e 2wempte 0o the
redh.ren et cfan ande 0 ine wvath the requirements of 5 4794 of the Companies At 2004

Al e e = ars flly ~oined aed all the Poldings are ordinary shares

Al companies Fave e registerad sfice of 11-12 Hanover Straet, London, ¥ 1S 1YQ aeth the gozehor f FOH Developments

tADerdaor) itz d Al s cegistered o 50 Lothian Road Festival dquare, Tdinburgh cH 5 #5-

d- N T P

Relatz 1 pare, ramsactions disclosures

Balarces ard ranuactars betveen the Company and its subsidianes, which a2 relaiod prnes ha 2 boen elringted on
consoidaror (R Dalancss o wtorast free, unsecured and repayable on derard

AmaLms dus oy e Corpary o subssicdhanes per aote 13

2019 RS

£000 T su

Tre Cnlonmed s el d 22,619 225139
TR Propor Sra o Linted 27,760 27752

Newv, Srglar 1 Properies L ted (20} (20}
50,359 50,351

Remuneration of key management personnel
B rerpunaratior 2f e diractors, who are the key management personnel of the Carmpary ~or 2ach of the relevant categones
speafedin A 21 Relaed Pary Disclosaies s provided in the audited part of the Jirecrors’ Ramuneration Repert o pages 43

ard 10

Directors’ transactions
[Fansactiors . shates 9y dirctors are considerad to be a ralated part transaction due o th= matur= of ther rle as directers
Moverants i Jiraciors” shar=beldings are disclosed wvathir the Directors’ Remuneralor Repart o odge 49

Dviderds totading £11,000 (2018 £10,000) weare pad 0 the yvedr in raspact of shares beld v the Company s directars




Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

Alrernative Performance Measures

Anemaive Performance Measures are numencal measur=s of the Zom2anmy's “uir=et or historcal performanca, financal posiion
et zash flows, other than the finanoal measures defined or sperified in “Fe Fnancal Staiements

The measures defined below ara considered o be Alternative Parformance Mazasuras They are viewed as particularly ralevant
and are trequently quoted tor closed ended investment companies

Total Return

The *Av intal Returnos calrulated 2y reinvesting in the dwidends i the 235205 of the Company fiony th= relevant ax-dndend
sate Onadeads are dezmad to be remvested on the ~x-dividend da= a3 'l*w; s = pretncol used by the Corrpary s barchmark
and omerindires The Shars Pres Tetal Returmos calculassd by raryvesus g e dived=nds 0 the sharss of the Company from the

ievan: ex-dwderd date

Net Debt

Nt dert s the tetal value of loar notes, lodans (ncluding cononal 2xoosare i Lrs) less 2ash as 2 properlion of net assat value
e ocaltuiancr s sel ot ronote 13 0 tee Firarae Steta rants

Ongomg Charges

Craorg Charges rahio has Deer ca'zulated i accorsance it the wirizres csued by the MiC as the total of imvestment

~tezeTent fess and dminisative Sxpens2s enorasse | as

e m=rzzE et AsseiVaies througnoot e year
Tre evmimen of atmimsirative espenses Hees incluee prepe raats [ =pers2s e Cngoms, Chargas caicdlation s show
Lene ar § excliane of these axpenses "o aliow corrparsar o ke e 1m0 23t 2 and manageresnt tharges wir the

sy 2f i astmant Trusts abich do not eld any direc crop=rt, iny trants

3
3
=

T Lrgorg ~harges rang iovided 10 the Zomoan,'s 42y iniormaton Tocwment 5 ca'lulated i ine with the PRIPS regulatiors

=)
ks didzrert o e AL methodciogy abovs

o
Q
3
%
=
p
b=
o
>
i)
=
(o)
)
a
Q
w
C
s
[na]
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

continued

Clossary of Terms and Definitions

AlRVID

Al

All-rnatne Perforrrance Meastr=

Jiscnunt

K=y Informaton Decument

Koy Pericrmance Incdieator "KPY

A

Mzt Assal vate (NAYVY per shares

The Altermatiy= fund Managers Direcive is Eurepeaan l=gislannn which creatad a
Europaan wide rarensin ior ragiialing e managees of ‘alterpatine investmant
funds” (Alks)y Amy und whizh s not a UATS (Undertakings for Coltective investiment
n Transterable S=c int-sy tun 1 and which s managed or marketed in the EU

The A330matom ot invesiTent Companias — the Al 15 the represzntative body for

rlused-ended ey estir2nl o Tnanes

A hiranaal mreasur= ot inanaial serformane o finanaal pesition other than a inanaal

meastre defined o soecded in the accounting statements

The amrourt 3wk 'he mac=t poce -f 3 spare of an vestment trust s lower than

the Met Asse L= o= et 2wprassed as a parosnlags of the NAY per share
2 p p g

Under the PRUPs Regulaioes ashort, tensumer nendly key Information Doecurrent s
raquirad sert g onr he ke teangres nisks, re ards and costs of the PRIP ard s
pended by asssturues’ s 4 etter gndarstand the ust and mak- compansons

e

The Jecum=nt et des =512 =2 ol imvesiTent gertormance under 2 number of
scerancs These —ale datens 32 presorbd By the regllator and are base d pur=4y on
recent hisorcal dary I'os ep rtant forinvestors te notz that there s ne ndzemert
apolied and thea= . ~oum a0 sy r=tlect the Board or Mangers visuss

Tty 1= L evaly tes how ser e

ATKPE s A art
e Iries = &Pl are disrussed onopages 2/ tw 29

il the trust s n meehing

it5 olentivas
The Markets in Sirar wal isaments Dirscivs s the LU I2gisiaton that regulates irms
AN PIOVIE= Sernr-s  Cllerts irk=d to Tipanaial inslroments” (shares, bends, e
i olleclys evesieert s oeres ard dernatv=s) and e venues whera those

[ B
e

peftmrEnts 2

The vale of Lol dasss s Ilaadites ¢ noludirg borresangs) dwvided By the rumber

of ahares in &5




Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

continued

3.0 Alternative Investmeant Fund Vanagers Directive ("AIFMD")

In accordance with the AIFMD, informatiar 0 rzlaunn > the Company's leverage and remunerator of the Lomoan,’s A b Fea
lovestment Susiness Limite 4, s raqured 0 be made avalable o nvestors Detalled ragulatery disclosuies ncluding thrse e th=
AIFM's remunerahon pohry are availasle on the F&L website or from FAC on request The numercal remunerabicn discesar2s e

relanon o the AlrkYs vrst relevact accuunung p=rod wil' 3e mada avalable 0 due course

Leverage
Undor the ARV Directive, 1 rocessar, o AIFs to Jsclose ther leverage in gzcordance with prascibed calonlan s

Although leverage 15 ofter Used as another e 1or g2anng, Lnder the AIFMD ieverage s specraal’y dened Fvo npos ot

‘everage caleulatans are dotred, the Temereent methods These roathods summanty express loverazs 25 10300 27
32

the swosure of the W agarst i, -t 2 Exposdre typizally ndudes debt, the vatue of any Qh\,su

(0 mortgag.e, Non-5tring durroaty, coab, or Lol hedsirg at absolute netong! values (aven thosa beld purch fern &
e
= P
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o
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

THIS NOTICE 1S IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you arz in any doebt as to the action vou showd tak=2 you should seek your own advice from a stockbroker, sobaior, accountant or other
independent professional adviser

if you have sold or othenvise transferrad all of [ our shares, nlease pass this document, together wath the accontparyirg docamerts 1o the
purchaser, or franstercy, oF 1 the person w hy armacged the sake or transter so they can pass these documents to the person abho now
helds the shares

Notice is hersby given that the Arpeal Gereral Viecting of 11 THAT

TR Property Investment Trust ple (the “Company, '3 ol be held at (a) (subiect to the passing of Rescluhior 10 52 2 abover the
230 prmioon 23 July 2019 at the Roval Astemetile Club, 8979, directars be smpowered oursuont fo Sachion 5.7 and

Pall Mall, London S¥W 1Y 5HS for the puisose of trarsaseg he Sacton 573 of the Act to aliot equ, securtfies 125 lofne
follovung business n Sechion 560 of the Act for cash pursuart @0

ferred by Resclution 10 abov 2 and &
To consider and, i thought tt pass o folloy weg Rescl rons }fo\njeb CL: \fCR solstion 16 abow 2 :ﬂd . :
Ca eld by the Company as treasury sharcs for cach as
of whrch Resolutons 1o 12wl te promased 1 7irany e by e pafly a5 JFRasury 5 A
N Sector: 561(1) of the Act did not apply e ary s.ch

Resolutions ard Resolutons V1 ard 12
Spedal Resolutions

soalt e propesed as
alletrert, provided that this powver shal beurtxd ©

1 7o rocene the Roeport of tre Miracturs 3 o Wohtod () the aillcoment ot eguat, secantes aod sal= ol r2asur,
2l POTT O T Jirndurs ard s Aated ) .
Accrtnts for tha y=3 ended 37 Varch 2009 snar=5 for ~ash o Zonnester arh an ot of o
@y : larch 279
nvitation o apphy fon equity s2manties

2 Toapprove the Direstns Remianeraien R-mo et or the year

erded 51 March 2619 (aa) to sharehel ders i~ proportor (33 ncar a5 ras

4

be practicable) fo thor ovstra b

To rdedarz a firab dwidend of 3 200 per Or 'many srame
(bby i polders of uther eguiry seurties 5 relned

To reelect Simon Marnson a5 g Dirzcte s by the nghts of these secunres, v 45 *he Roard

- . . - 0 accan
To re-elect Hugh Seaborn as a Duecter othenvise Considers necassary

ancd se that the Beard may v posae 2y Loviss or ‘
restuctions and make any arrangareests euch T

woclect T
Ta re-elect Tim Gillbanks 44 2 Direred corsiders necassary o aprreprate “o d2al with reasar,

To reselect Davdd fiarsen as a Direlva

To re-appoint KPMG LLP as auditors of ke Jomrpar 10 hoid sharss, fractional entitemens, rooord Latzs, "ogal,

o o~ N A W

othce untl the cenc'usier af the ~oxt Arruar Sareral Meeting requlatory or practical problams nor urder e of,
of the Campany any tarntory or any ofhar mater ard
9 To authense the Diractors to detarming ke rar uaeranen of (1) nthe zase ol he autonty granted Lnder

the: Auditor Resoluton 10 and,or i the ase of am, sal= f r2asers
sivares for zash, to the alletmert ¢athersise than Lrder
paragraph (1Y abovey of 2quit, semurtss or salz ot

treasury sharss up 10 a noriral amcunl of £ 366,83/

10 THAT the Dirzctors be generall, and ure.nditic nally authorsed
ourseant to and ' accordancs weth Sechor o9l of the
Compames A 2006 (the "Act’) o 2xardise all the povers of the
Cermpany to allar shares in e Campany 20! o grant nghts to
subscrbe for, or to corvert any sacunt, o srares n the

(baing approxmately 5 1 of *he olal ssied share
capital of tre Compary as at the ‘atest pracicable date
price "o publication of the notce of neshng),
Cempany up to a rerural value of ©25 .31 153 (being
approxamately 3570 of the tota' ssued seare aptal of the (L) the power given by this rasolution stall 2pire upen e
Company as at the latest practcable dare prer to publication of
this Notice) proveded Far this authenty anal 2xpre at the Jate of
the nevt Annual General Meeting of e Zompary (o, f carher, at
the close of business ur 23 October 2020, save that the
Company shall be enttled to make offers or agroenvents berora
the expiry of this authenty which weuld or right requrs shares

expiry of the authonty conforred 9y Resalunor 10 above,
save that the Cornpary shall e ertided <u make offers or
agreemients beforz the eapiry of sudd poweer aich would
or mught requirs equity secunties to be allomad after sucn

expiry and the dirzctors srall be entited o ailol ecuily
secuntes pursuant o ary such offer or agrce—ont as f

to be allutted or nghts to be granted after such expiry and the the power conferred hereby had notexprred

Directors shall be enttled to dllot shaies ard Zrant nghts puzsuant
to any such uffers or agroemients gs i+ tis authorty had not

expired



Notice of Annual General Meeting

continued

12 THAT the Company he ard 's Pereby gererally and (c) the mramum price (2xcusve of 2xpenses) which may
uncondinanally authcrse 1in accordance wath Section 701 be paid for an Grdimary snars shall be 25p, baing the
of th2 Act te make marker purchases (within the meaning neminal value per Grdinary share, and
of Saction 633(1) or *2 Act) of Sridinary shares of 25p cach
n the capital ot the Carpary on such terms and in such (dy the authanty hereby conferred shall exmire at the
manner as the droctars mas from brme to tme determine cordusion ef the Wnuel Coveral Meetng of the
orovided thar Zerpdny in 2072 say 2 that e Corepany shall be

entitted to anian intu a coniract tu puschase Crdinary

chwall or mray e werploted o 2veoutad

(a) the mawmur norrber of Ordingr, shares hersby sharas wh

authcnsod 12 2 purcmasad shall be 1.1 390 of the bl partly ater the pov or evorss and the Compan
P y o ¥ T :

Compary 5 Jriiran srae2s nssuc at the date of the may pUrthase Crdean, s ures surseant te such contract

Annual Gepors' W oet g {8 ubdlent to 472570911 as 1f the poer confered Sor=by had not 2upired

Ondinary shares ot 230 2ach gt 6 Jipe 2019, e latest

practizabic date pror o aunuation of -his Notwee),

YT mRNITLR TRt 2oaus e Of avoonses) whiah imas
2uomad tor 4y Lk scarz siall not Be more than the

boarorof

ty 0% 22 07 e proddle rarket Regstr.dmeng
A Trdeany sharsas taken from the =12 M STl
Pneden Scs Bazrargs Dok el Lst for the Londun
s s e e adar ] srcceding the date VS VG

or oAb Sl Jomrany agress by the shares
“encerned and By Crder of the Buard

{

A 1w pre Lt the last independent trade

ard ‘be ughest st ndenemdent bid tor ar

Crdrar. 5ot nte Cnmeany, on the rading venue

where he auehase s mamad curat the relevant tme, Fon ard ar bepalf of

Link Company Mattars Limited

5 ooune 0T
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Notes to the Notice of Annual General Meeting

1

Merrbaers s onirle 5o appoint a progy 10 axeizse all or any
of ther ngnts 1o artend and to speak and vote or ther behalf
arthe reehirg A ~rararclder may appaint more than one
orexy in celatiop tobe Annual Jereral Meeung (CAGMT)
provided tar 240 oroxy 15 appointed to eercise the nghts
attached @ 4 Dtlriart shars or skares held by that
shar=huder 3 proe, pee=d not e a sharehnlder of the
Corrpan, T appomt more than one proxy, the proxs farm
snould be ahercesmad and the name of the proxy to be
appomtz=d irdicatzd or each proxy form togethar with the
numeear ¢ snares rat such proxy 1s appainted in respect of

To be w2y amy proay forms or other instrument appointing

a progy mist 2e refumed v post, by courer or by hand to the
Compary's Regstrars, Computershare Investor Services PLC,
Tre Paviliors Brdgwater Road, Brstol BS09 82Y or
altlemnately, oy gong o L 2pr o ppominTer 20t and
followirg e wstruchens providad All proges must be
appomntert by ng lafer thar <13 hours before the tme of the
AGLT Tha retur of a contpleted proxy form or other such
instrumert aall ot 2revent a shareholder attending the AGH
and voting .« parson it he/she wishes to da so

in order te Se able o attend and vote ot the AGM or any
adjourmed mesting {(and also ‘or the prurpose of calculating
how many votes a person may cast), a person must Nave
his/her name antered on the Ragster of Members of the

Compary D 500 prroon 21 Juby 2019 (or 500 pm on the

date two days bear= a1y adjaumned meeting) Changes o
anines on the Rewsier 51 Members after this tme shall be
disrzgarded 0 detarrunng the nghts of any person to attend
or vore 3t the meeling

Sraregholders sho nd notz hat tis pussible that, pursuant to

requests made £y =hulders of the Company cader
Section 327 oF ire Jompdnies A 2006, the Comparny may

be regirred to cuzish o0 2 a2bsite 3 statament setting out

apy prater ralaliog se () the au dit of the Company 5 accaunts

{mecluding tha audizrs -2oert ard the conduct of the au i)

that arz to be land boforz he ASAM, or () any aroumistance
conreced anth an au ror of the Jompary ceasing fo hovl
offica 3nze the prive, e krg at which annual accounts

ard renarts o laci s accordanse wath Sacton 457 of tho

Tie Compamy nay, not - ziere the snarzholders requesung

-3

any sueh welsite m b e iy pay % 2xpensoes wLomphirg
SAtl Sechors B2 7 o 55 2o Zompanios At 2006 Ahere
the Corpeny = ruqurs S plesl a statement on a websie
urdoer Sector 237 ot e Coropa s AL 2306, 1T st
farsrard the starer orr vt Zorenany's auditor ot latzr than

coabon b e s o watimert avalkakle onthe

vienate T 2 Busd uss il mray £ sealt vash at the A0 !
meludes ary statarront bes e Jomoany has Boen required
urder Sectoe 327 01 e Corrpaces Act 2006 to publish on

4 pzbulz

Any orporaLer wheth e 2 ety of the Company can
APROINT P 3 YO COrTorAie rIneisentatives whe may
"

exargise on s oebolf all ot s poysars as @ membar proveded

rat thoy o not do 5o n relaten o the same sharss

The ngr to apoowrt 3 praxy lo=s ot apphy o persors whase

sharzs ars held on e Lebalt by arether person and aho

Faye bocn porratad 2 recen 2 commumzation o the
Compary 10 acooniance o Section 146 of the Companies
At 2006 {“portinates persors ) Nonungted persons mdy
e e g nghr ard o an agrecment with the registered
sharzholder wne hoias srares or thar tebalf o be apported
{0t to have SLmeee wise appeintad) as a proxy Aitamatieely,
if nemipatad porsers St tave such a nght, ar do nat msh
to exercise it they may fave 3 nght ander such an agrzoment
te g INStrLchions te B sersen holding he shares as to the

exerise of mieg Lghis

CREST memzars wig wish o appoint a proxy or progs
through the CREST alectronic proxy appointiment seruice may
de se for the AGRY to fe reld on 23 July 2019 and any
adioumment(s) trereot by using the procedures descnbed i
the CREST Macual TREST persunal members or other CREST
spansored mamiders and these TREST members who have
apremnted  voting serice provider should refer to their



Notice of Annual General Meeting

continued

CRLST sponsors of vating senvice provider(s), who will be able
12 take the approprate action on thewr bebalf

i orde for a proxy appointmant or nstruchion made by means
of CREST to be valld, tne appropriate CREST massage
{3 "CREST Proxy Instruction”) must be proper'y autherticated n
ccorlance weh Euroclear UK & treland Lirited's specificanors
ard rmust cortan the informanen required for such instrucions,
a3 wesenbed i the CREST Marual The mossage must be
nansimutted s as te be recered by the Company's agent,
Computershare ievestor Senvices PLC (CREST Paropant 10
IRASCE ;o latzr than 43 hours Before e tme appoirtzd for
tre mestirg Tor this purpose, the tme of receipt will be tanen
to ¢ the trw (as determined by the time stamp appiiad @0 the
oo sage B, e CRIST Appliation Hest) from which the
2t s ehle o retreve the mossage by orgun te

Conrparm 5 ag
s manner presenbed by CREST
rCREST spurser

CREST mrerners ard  ubare apphicabls, tha

af LR 2 st piesder soeld note thet B des UK S

raUmred 2

\R.s.w

e o

LW

ke

Ir.-

SUEs T

[y Partl Aar Mmessdges

Mgt sustar tirgs and lmitations wull therel re ape’y in
selaner e npnt o CREST Prony Instinctiens s the
=5kt of the CREST rrm*bar concerned o take (o
fi 2 URED
et f PAS 1PDANIed 3 VONNG SEnIcs DIy den To pie oL

member 15 4 JRLST persond’ merrbar Lr sponsor=d

tha Fiz LRSI spomsar of voling serace provider takes) sueh

Ao 35 chal Bz necegsary tooensure thal a messad= s
! 5

Marsritted 5 means of tha CREST systam by any oarhicn lar

fre I ‘h-r “znnechon, CREST rermbers ard, whes
ey CRES

'e\':*ren ~ooarcular e thes:

SENACE DIOVIGES 3re

ST Marual

[ sporser or veting
sectiaors of the Zf
cxcanirg practical imiratons 3t the CREST svster ard
asnvamd a CREST Proave

=z 5

S sctoutin %”%chr‘ X033

Hrires o COTRary mav raa
rstuction n ine QrcLTsance

ot the Lrcartizaled Secunties Requlancrs 200

Any reneter aiterding the mesting has the nght 'o ask
ared ary s

I g
ef (a) o de sowelld

guestors Trg Jompart mLst caLse o De ars

coestoe danrg rothe business borg Jealt anh atthe
Bt ne seen ansner coed oo gve [l

Lodiy sith e preparaten for the meenng or evonee the

Asdustrs ot cortdennat i fonmanon, (B e arseer das aiready

Been Zwat on g achwto e o tomy of an answer o 2 Juesiur
T, s undosinabie e b 2ontorests of e Jomrare ot

g order St the mecting that the juesten 2o anwered

A cooy of s note, and otber inforration tequire 1 by
seeton 20A of the Zermpanes At 2006 can be roued o

i1

12

Merbers satisfying the thresholds in section 333 of the
Cor panies A 2006 may require the Company o give o
mrorbers X the Compary enttled 1o recave notic of the
AG! nanze of a resolution which those members intend ta
rrove (and ahich reay proper'y be moved) at the AGM

A rzzelutien reay propery be moved at the AGM unless

o wedtd f passed, be ineffectve (whother by reason of any
iransstero cath any 2nactiment or the Company's
ansntoher or obrenase), (n) s defamaton of amy persen

exatous A mequest madae purstant to

ar et s frivolous or s

e gt Ty e hard cony or elecironic form, must dertfy

st of which netoe s e be gao i, must ke

atrrernest od oy e oersondsi making 1t and must be

coetsd oy e Zompary not lator than sixoweeeks before the

-

Sats e A0

s 1 sechien 3337 of the

Vg 5075ty £g e thisshn
207 mray rogoest e Comman o NGl in
ot 3t the AGN ary rattor (other
resaluron) wheh ray orepery te mduded
- *Hc AN Amattes may proper’y Do

trbe AR Litese (s

. f“l person o (1)t s foluls or exatous
L syt a0 puUisLaet 1o s nght mav e an hard copy or

roreustudenuhy e ratter te be ipciuded i the

Bt ose most e aciemipacied by A statentont seting oot the
3e e da ot T e raauest, st be avtherncete d by the
Pt e A st T2 reered by the Compae

ACM

o g T sixon eeks bofore the date af the

i )

aetals of the diresiors are shown on page 53 of

Rooert & AoLsunts

heing the latess nracteahie day oaor o

{
Nonld), te wsaed share apital ot the

Corracs o 307356 330 Ordivar, shadies of 25p cadk

wimer ofLouna aghts i the Compary o

ronce of the e i Commutce, the

et C‘U‘C e Cormitiee f > Momiranon

Cor mattes and e Letters of A\pp:\\r‘tr*‘.cnt Frrdirmatens aty

rorpapecses for 4t e st 15 munutes pror tooap

oond b Juepar, s AGRE

sob sz an, e

sl adarxss provides aitherin this
Lot ey reletod docamoaets o omrunieate foroary

ooarotses o the these :xpr:asl\, slated




Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting

Rasolutions 1, 2 and 31 Accounts,
Diractors’ Remunaration Report and
Dwidend

These are the resclutions which deal with the presentation
af the audited accounts, the approval of the Direclars
Rermuneration Report and the deciaration of the final
dwidend. The vote to approve the Remuneration Report

15 adwisory only and waill not require the Company to

alter any arrangements detalled in the report should the
resolution not be passed

Resolutons 4, 5, 6 and 7 Eleztion and

Fe-alocton of Diraciors

These resolutions deal with the re-election of Simon
Marnson, Timy Gillbanks, Hugh Seaborn and Dawid vatson
In accordance vath the UK Corporate Governance Code, all
directors wall retire on an annual basis and have confirmed
that they will offer themselves for re-election

A performance evaluation has been completed and your
Baard has determined that each of the directors continues
to be effective and demonstrates thair commitment to
their role

Raselutons & and 3. Auditor

These deal with the reappointment of the Auditer,
KPMG LLP, and the authorisation for the directors to
determime their remuneration,

Easoiuhon 10 Allormant of shars

Cur Board considers 1t approprate that an authorty be
granted to alfot shares in the camital of the Company up
to a maximum nominal amount of £26,131,455
{representing approximately 33% of the Company's
issiied share capital as at 6 June 2019, being the latest
sractical date prior to publicaton of this Notice of the
meeting) As at the date of thig notice the Company, does
not hold any shares in treasury.

The directors have no present intention of exerasing this
authonty and would only expect Lo use the authonty if
shares could be issued at, or at a premium to, the Net
Asset Value per share

This authority will expire at the =zarlier of close of business
on 23 October 2020 and the conclusion of the Annual
Ceneral Meeting of the Company to be heid in 2020

R-solunon 11 Disapphcation of statutory,
orz-emphion nghts

This resolution would give the directors the authonty to
allot shares (or sell any shares which the Company elects
o held ip treasury) for cash vathout first offenng them to
exisung shareholders in proportion to their existing
sharaholdings

This authorty would be imited to allotments or sales in
connection with pre-emptive offers and offers te hoiders
of other equity securities | required by the nghts of those
snaras or as the board othenwise considers necessary, or
crhenvise up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£3,356,887 This aggragate nomnal amount represents
5 . oof the total issued share capital of the Company as at
5 June 2019, the latest practicable date prior to
publication of this Notice [n respact of this aggragate
rominal 2mount, the directors confm ther intantien to
foilow the prowisions of the Pre-Emption Group's
Statement of Prnciples regarding cumulative usage of
authorities wathin a rolling 3-year penod where the
Prinaples provide that usage 1IN excess of 75 shouid nat
take place wathout pror consultatton with sharcholders.

The authory will expire at the carier of close of business
on 23 October 2020 and the conclusion of the Annual
Generd) Meaeting of the Company to be held in 2020

1

P20 Authonty to maks Marker

At the ACM held on 24 July 2018, a speaial resolution
was proposed and passed, giving the directors acthonty,
urtil the canclusion of the AGM in 2019, to make market
purchases ot the Company’s own issued shares up to

a maamurm of 14 899, of the 1ssued share capital

Your Board 1s proposing that they should be given
renewed authonty to purchase Crdinary shares 11 the
market. Your Board believes that to make such purchases
in the market at appropnate times and pnces is a suttable
nethad of enhancing shareholder value. The Company
would, within guidelines set from time to tme by the
Board, make either a single purchase or a senes of
purchiases, when market condions are suitable, with

the aim of maximising the benefits to shareholders



Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting

continued

Where purchases are made at prices below the prevailing
Net Asset Value per share, this will enhance the Net Asset
Value for the remaining sharehalders, It s therefore
mntended that purchases would only be made at prices
below Net Asset Value Your Board considers that itwill be
most advantageous to shareholders for the Company to be
able to make such purchases as and when i considers the
tiring to be favourable and thereforz does not propose Lo
set a bmetable for making any such pur-hases

The Companies (Acguisition of Own Shares) (Tr2asury
Shares) Regulations 2003 enable companies in the United
Kingdom to hold in treasury any of then own shares they
have nurchased with a view to possible rasale at a tuture
date, rather than cancelling them If the Jempary does
re-purchase any of its shares, the directors do not currantly
ntend to hold any of the shares re-purchased in treasury
The shares so re-purchasad will conbirus to S0 carcelad

The Listing Ruas of the UK Listing Authenty irwt the
maxmum once (exciusive of expenses) which may be
paid for any such share it shall not be mrorz thar the
higher of

(1) 105". of the average of the middle market quotations
far an Crdinary share as taken from the London Stock
Excharge Daly Official List for the five business days
immediately preceding the date or which the
Company agrees to buy sharss concerned, and

() the higher of the pnce of the fastindopendent trade
and the highest current independen: ki for an
Ordinary share in the Company on tre trading venue
where the purchase is carmed ou®

The mummum price to be paid will be 23p per Ordinary
share {being the nominal value) The Listnmg Rules aiso smit
a histed company to purchases of sharss ~soresentirg up to
15745 of #s 1ssued share capital In the market pursuant to 3
general authonty such as this For this raascr, the Company
15 hrriting s authonty to make such purcrases to 14 89%
of the Company’s Ordinary shares i 1ssue at the date of the
AGM, this 15 egquivalent 1o 47,570,911 Ordinary sharas of
25p =ach (nominal value £11,892,727) at 6 june 2012,
the latest practicable dat= prior to publication this Notice
The authont, il last untl the Annual Gereral Maating of
the Company to be heid n 2020

Recommendation

Your Board believes that the resolutions contained in this
Netice of Annual Ceneral Meeting are 1n the best interests
of the Coempany and shareholders as a whole and
recommends that you vote i favour of them as your
Directors intend to do i respect of their benshicial
shareholdings
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Directors and Other Information

Directors

H Seaborn (Chairman)
T Gillbanks

S Marrison

D Watson

Registered Office

3rd Floor
11--12 Hanover Straet
London WIS 1YQ

Registerad Number

Regstered as an investment company 1 England
and Wales No 84432

ALFN]

BMO Investment Business Limited
Exchange House

Primrose Street

London EC2A 2NY

Portfolio Manager

Thames River Capital LLP, authonsed and regulated by the

Financial Conduct Authority
3rd Floor
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General Shareholder Information

[ A S S
Rewzase of Rasulr
The half y=ar results are announced in late November The
full year rasults are announced In early June.

Annual Genara VMoeiing

)

The AGhL1s held in Lordon in July

Drudends ar2 usually paid on the Ordinary shares as
follows

intenm- lanuar,

Final August

Dotdon 1Pz, v

Divdends can be pawd b shareholders by means of BACS
(Bankers’ Automaiad Cleanrg Senaces), mandate forms
for this purcese are o alasle trom the Ragstrar
Alternatvely sivarenoldars can arte to the Registrar

(the address 1 gwer or page 93 of this report) to ghe
therr instructons, these must include the bank account
nurmber, the bank account tfle and the sort code of the
bank to which n2ymen's are o be made

Croden iR mrenr 2an (PDRIPY

TR Property Investrrent Troust oic rowe offers shareholders
the opporiurit,y o purthass turher shares in the
Comgpany through the DRIP DRIP forms may be obtained
from Computersharz trvestor Sernzes PLC through therr
securs website 0 L wrrz sk, or by phoning
0370 707 1534 Charges o aJpl, dealing commission
of 075 (suhetto a munimum of £2 50) Governmeans

~

starmp duty of © 370 aiso apphies

The markat przas of the Company's shares are published
daily in The firanzal Vmes Some of the mformaton 1s
published i other leading rewspapers The Finanaal
Times alsa shows tigures for the estimated Net Asset
vaiues and the dscoun's apehcanle

P e e et 3o

B I P . . ~

I1SIN GBOOOSO6-4h97
SEDCL 096404y
Bloomberg TRY LN
Reuters TRY L
Datastream Ty

Benchmark

Detalls f the benchmark are gaen in the Strategic Report
on page 24 of this Report and Accounts The benchmark
index is published daily and can be found on Bloomberg,

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Eurcpe Capped Net Total
Return Index in Steiling
Bioomberg: TRORAC Index

Int=rnat

Detals of the market price and Net Asset Value of the
Ordinary shares can be fou.wd on the Company's website
ar st :

Shareholders who hold their shares in certifizated form
can check their heldirgs ath the Regisirar Computershare
Investar Seracas PLT v BRELE AP

Please nota that fo gar Ju.2ss o your detals on the

ead the holder reference
armer of vour

Computershars sit2 vou vl
rumber stated on fL‘* sop eft hand ¢
share certificate.

szl A

Copes of this Report and A-counts and other documents
issued by the Corrpany ar= avalable from the Company

Secretary If needed, cop es can be made avalable in

a varety of formats rauding Bianle, audio tape or larger
type as approprace

You can centact *l*‘e Rams’mr Commputershare Investor
Services PLC, whith bas wstalled texiphones to allow
speech and heanng mpalred seopie who have ther own
textphone o centact ther directy, vathout the need for
an mtarmediate operiter, by diafing 0870 702 0005
Specally trained cperators are avalable dunng normal
business huurs to arsuer queres wia this sernce

Aftarnatively, 1f you Dr’Jar o 2n through & ‘typetalk’
operator {provided 5y the Roval Nanonal Institute for Geaf
Pecple) you shiould diar 13001 followed by the number
you wesh to dial
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GCeneral Shareholder Information

continued

Nomunzes Shace Code

Where notificaon has been prowvided in advance, the
Company vl arrange for copres of shareholder
communications to be provided to the operators of
nomines accounis. Nominae investors may attend general
meelngs and speak at meetngs when mvted to do so by
the Chatrman

PR T
s I

CGr
Taxation of capital gains for shareholders who
formerly held Sigma shares

3

Lot

=l
a

Upen a dispesal of all or part of a sharehelder's halding
of Qrdinary shares, the impact on the shareholder’s capital
gans tax base “ost of the conversion o Sigma shares in
2007 anrd the r2designation to Ordinary shares n 2012
should be considered

In respect of the corversion to Sigma in 2007, agreement
was reached vath HM Revenue & Customs ("HWRC™) to
base the apportonmeant of the capital gans tax base cost
on the properton of Qrdinary shares that were converted
by a shereholder into Sigrma sharas on 25 July 2007

Therefare, +f an Crdinary shareholder converted 2000 of
ther existing Ordinary shares into Sigma shares on 25 July
2007 the capral gans tax base cost of the new Sigma
shares acquirad wouid be equal to 20ui of the onginal
Zapital 2ans tax base cost of the Ordinary shares that they
held pre-conversion The base cost of ther remaining
holding of Ordinary shares weould then be 802 of the
onginal capital gains tax >ase cost of their Ordinary shares
held pra-comarsion

As part of the re-designation of the Sigma shares mnto
Ordinary shares in December 2012, a further
shareholder's agreement was reached with HMRC that

a shareholders capital gains tax base cost in their new
Crdinary sharss should be equivalent to thewr capital gans
base cost in the pre-exising Sigma shares (1.e therr capital
gains base cost under the existing agreement if
applicable)

I in doubt as to the consequences of this agreement
with HVRC, shareholders should consult wath their own
professional advisors
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Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc

Marker Purchases

The shares of TR Property Investment Trust plc are listed

ard traded on the London Stock Exchange Investors may
ourchase shares through their stockbroker, bank or other

firancial intermediary

Holding shares in Cettincatad Form

Irvestors may held ther investment in certificated form
OQur registrars, Computershare operate a dealing senace
wihich enables investors to buy and sell shares quickly and
2gsily oniine without a broxer or the need to open

a trading account Alternatively the investor Cemre aliows
mvestors to manage nortfolios quickly and securely,
wpdata details and viev. balances without anrual charges
Furthar details ara avallable by contaciing Comput rsnar2

P e T

on 3370 707 1355 orvisit . AT ARl

TR Pronerty Investrment Trust ple now offers sharerolders
the opmr. imy 10 purchasa further shaies in the co~pam
through the Drvidend Re-nvestment Plan ("DRIPT
thiough the registrar, Compttershare Shareholders car
ebtain further mfoimaton on the DRIP through their
secura viebsite oo ainn=sTartentre 2o uk, Or by phoning
0370 757 1694 Chaiges do appl, Please notz that to
231 access to your details or register for the DRIP on the
Cormpnutarshare site you will need the holder refererce

Lrmiber stated on the top left hand comer of your share
certificate

[543 ] otmor ooans

A rumber of barks and wealth management orgamsatens
orovde Savings Schemes and 1SAs through which UK
zherts caninvest in TR Property Investrient Trust plc

I5A and savings scheme providers do charge dealing ard
othe- faes for operating the accounts, and investors
should raad the Terms and Conditons provided by thase
sompantas and ensure that the charges best surt therr
puanne# ievestment profile Mast schemes carry annual
charges but these vary between prowvder and product
Whers dealing charges appy, 1n some cases these are
applied 2s a percentage of funds 'nuvested and others as
a rlat charge The optimum way to hold the shares will be
different tor each investor depending uper the frequency
and size of :rvesiments to be made

Detals are given below of two providers oftering shares o
TR Preperty Investment Trust, but there are many athar
opIOnS

Alliance Trust Savings

Allianze Trus: prowde and adnunister a range of selfselect
mvestmment plans, including tax-advantaged 1SAs and SIPPs
(Self-lnvested Pension Plans) and also Investment Flans
and First Steps, an Investment Plan for Children For more
informeaten Alllance Trust can be contacted on

01382 573 737, orwisit v ahiantatrustsan 135 40 Lk

Irvastors i TR Property through the ATS Investmeant Plan
and 1SA rerere all shareholder commumications. A voting
rstrachion forms provided to facilitate voting at genaral
restungs of the Company

F&C Asset Management Limited (“"F&C”)

F._ offer a number of Povate Investor Plans, investirent
st and Jumior 1I5As and Children's Investrrent Plans
Iryestments can be made as lump sums or thiough
ragiilac sa ings For more informetion see mside the back
coer FAC can be contacted on 0800 136 420, or wisit

AT TL K

Pleass remember that the value of your investments and
ary, ncome from them may go down as well as up Past
nerforrance s not a guide to future performance You
may not ge* back the amount thet you invest f you are in
amy doubt 35 to the suitability of a plan or amy investment
avalable within a plan, please take professioral advics

Sa o arrermes and 1545 ransfered om
:“‘l_' :,q:").‘;;
12012 BNP Parbas closed dovin the part of therr business

tha: operatad S aings Schemes and [SAs Im estors wers
aren the chowe of ransfering therr schemes to Allance
Trust Savings (“ATS”) or to a provider of their ovin choice,
or o gose ther accounts and self the haldings

B

i astors wd rot respond to the letters from BNP
Banbas, her accounts wers transferred to ATS

Any questions regarding accounts transferred to ATS

srowd be directed to ATS 01 01332 573 737
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Investing in TR Property Investment Trust pic

continued

Share Fraud and boier room scams

Shareholders 1 a number of Investment Trusts have been
approached as part of a share fraud where they are
informed of an opportunity to sell their shares as the
company 1s subject to a takeover bid, This 15 not true and
1s an attempt to defraud shareholders The share fraud
also seeks payment of a “commuission” by shareholders to
the parties carrying out the fraud

Shareholders should remain alert to this type of scam and
treat with suspicion any contact by telephone offerng ap
attractive investment opportunity, such as a prerium pnce
for your shares, or an attempt to convince you that
payment s required in order to release a settlement for
your sharas These frauds may also ofter to sell your
shares in companies which have littte or no value ar may
offer you bonus shares These so called "bailer room’
scams can also mnvolve an atternpt to obtain your personal
and;/or banking informaton with which to commut identisy
fraud

The caller may be friendly and reassunng or they may take
a more urgent tone, encouraging you to act quickly
otherwise you could lose money or miss out on a deal

if you have been contacted by an unauthensed firm
regarding your shares the FCA would lke to hear from you
You can report an unauthorsed firm using the FCA helplre
on 0800 111 6768 or by wisiing their website, which aiso
has other useful Information, at waww > ~1gx

If you recerve any unselicited investment advice mako
sure you get the correct name of the person end
orgamsation. If the calls persist, hang up ¥ you deal with
an unauthorsed firm, you wall not be eligible to receve
paymrent under the Finanaal Senices Campensation
Scheme

Please be advised that the Board or the Manager
would never make unsolicited telephone calls of
such a nature to shareholders.



How to Invest

One of the most convenient ways to wvest 1n TR Property investment Trust plc 1s through one of the savings plans run by

BMO

BMO Investment Trust ISA

You can use your ISA allowance to make an annual
tax-efficient mvestment of up to £20,000 for the
2019/20 tax year with a lump sum from £500 or
regular savings from E50 a month per Trust. You
can also transfer any existing 15As to us whiist
maintaining the tax benefits

BMO Junior ISA (115A)*

You can mvest up to £4,368 for the tax year
2019/20 from £500 lump sum or £30 a month
per Trust, or a combination of both Please note, if
your child already has a Child Trust Fund (CTF),
then you cannot open a separate JISA, however you
can transfer the existing CTF (held ether with BMO
or another provider) to a BMQ JISA

BMO Child Trust Fund {CTF)*

If your child has a CTF you car invest up to £4,368
for the 2019/20 tax year, frorn £100 lump sum or
£25 a month per Trust, or 2 combination of both You
can also transfer a CTF from ancther pravider to a
BMO CTF Please note, the CTF has been replaced by
the 1SA and 1s anly availlable to nvestors who
already hold a CTF.

BMO General Investment Account (GIA)}

This 15 a flexible way to invest in our range of
Investment Trusts. There are mp maximum
contrbutions, and nvestments can be made from
£500 lump sum or £50 @ month per Trust You can
also make additional lump sum tap-ups at any atme
from £250 per Trust.

BMO Junior Investment Account {JIA)

This 1 a flexible way to save far a child in our range
of [nvestrment Trusts There are no maximum
contnbutions, and the plan can easily be set up
under bare trust {where the child 1s noted as the
beneficial owner) or kept in your name if you wish
to retan controd over the nvestment. Investments
can be made from a £250 fump sum or £25 a
month per Trust. You can alsa make additional lump
ST tOp-ups at any time from £100 per Trust.

*ho Troard Ll JLoonmt: a2 Speted v she o,y e na e,
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BMO Asset Management Limited
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Charges
Annual management charges and other charges apply aczording to the typa

of plan

Annual account charge

ISA: EGO+VAT

GIA: £40+VAT

HSA/NA/CTF: £25+VAT

You can pay the annual charge from your account, or by direct debit
(n addiion to any annual subscrption imits)

Dealing charges

I15A: 0 2%

GIA/NA/NSA: postal instructions £12, online instructions £3 ser Trust
Dealing charges apply when shares ara bought or sold but nct an the
reinvestment of dividends or the mvastment of monthly direct debits for
the GIA, JIA and JISA

There ara no dealing chargas on a CTF but a swatching chargs of £25
applies if mora than two switches ara caried aut in one year

Governmant stamp duty of O 5% also asplies on the purchase af sharas
(where applicable)

There may he additional charges made if you transfer a lan to another
provider or transfer the sharas from your plan

The value of investments can go down 3s well as up and you mey not gat
back your anginal mvestrant Tax benefits depend on your ndiidual
arcumstances and tax allowances and rules may change Please ansure
you have read the full Terms and Conditions, Privacy Policy and -zlevant
key Features documents befors investing For regulatory purpasas, olaase
ensure you have read the Prasales cost disclosdras refatad to the oroduct
you are applying for, and the ralevant key Inforration Docurents {KiDs)
for the investment trusts you are weanting to mvast inte

How to Invest
To open a new BMO olan, apply online at bmogam.com/apply

Note, this 15 not available If you are transfernng an axsung clan with another

provicer ta BMO, or if you are apphing for a new plan n rrore than one
name

New Customers

Call 0800 136 4207 .2 30 2 — 2 57 77 as2ddns:
Emrall info @bmogam.com
Existing Plan Holders
Call, 0345 800 3030%* (2 "L 2 — 2 D0 2 pae s
Email investor.enquiries @bmogam.com
By post BYIO Adrmistraher Japtee

POBox 11173

{

2lrgtoed

Chlagd 200

You zan also invest in the trust through online dealing olatfarrs ‘or prvate
investors that offer share dealing and 15As Companies inclace

Alliance Trust Savings, Barclays Stockbrokers, Halifax,

Hargreaves Lansdown, HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lloyds Bank,
Selftrade, The Share Centre
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TR Properly Investment
Trust plc is managed by
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BMO ¥ | A part of BMO Financial Group




